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The China Development Bank (CDB or the Bank), established in 1994, is a state-funded and state-owned
development finance institution operating as an independent legal entity under the direct leadership of the
State Council. The Bank is dedicated to supporting China's economic development in key industries and
underdeveloped sectors.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s livelihood, the Bank aligns its business
focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position
as a leading bank for medium- and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so as to raise and channel
economic resources in support of the following areas: (1) Economic and social development, including infrastructure, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management; (2) New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced
regional development; (3) Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation, environmental
protection, advanced manufacturing, and the transformation and upgrading of traditional industries; (4) Public welfare,
including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans, and inclusive finance; (5) National strategies, including
those in science and technology, culture, and people-to-people exchange; (6) International cooperation, including the
Belt and Road Initiative, industrial capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure connectivity, energy and
resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going Global”; (7) Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic
and financial reforms; (8) Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development strategies and policies.

CDB strives to become a world-class development finance institution and provide sustained support for China’s
economic and social development. To this end, it pursues reform and innovation and taps into its strengths as a
development finance institution that supports national strategies, operates on market principles with the backing
of sovereign credit, and ensures principal safety and modest profitability. CDB never ceases to enhance its own
competitiveness, relevance and presence, as well as risk resilience.
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ATEESRER SREEARRIEAFEREFBANFAFEETTERICE. REUKR
FEERER, FHEABRNEL M AR TEMERIEN B KEFTE,

RTEBES2018EEELINF2018E6H6H EINEIT 7T AEEIRE .

ATHERFESITANNERYSREENEGH2017EFEYSHREEL L LKERREIT
IRESA (FHREBEK) DRREFEMEFETANST, FHARELRBRANET
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The Board of Directors and Executive Management of CDB confirm that the information presented in this Annual

Report contains no false or misleading statement or material omission; they and each of them assume joint and
several liability as to the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of this report.

The Board of Directors of CDB reviewed and approved the 2017 Annual Report in its annual meeting in the 2018
financial year (the calendar year as adopted by the Bank) on June 6, 2018.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 are prepared in accordance with
Chinese Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) respectively.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP has audited these financial statements in accordance with Chinese
and international standards of auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(4. ART10{27Ts B 42 L Billion RMB or %)

:E;Elf;ssets 15,959.3 14,340.5 12,619.7 10,317.0 8,197.2
iiﬁféﬁutstanding, Gross 11,036.8 10,318.1 9,206.9 7,941.6 7.148.3
ﬂ:of_fjﬁfmmg Loan Ratio 0.70% 0.88% 0.81% 0.65% 0.48%
Eliiw%ﬁior Loan Losses to Total Loans 3.57% 4.11% 3.71% 3.43% 3.05%
%tjglfﬁabilities 14,718.8 13,177.8 11,549.4 9,636.2 7,627.8
Ee%t@?cﬁi%fiffed, Gross 8,446.6 7,898.5 7,359.5 6,353.6 5,840.6
g%tfl%ireholders’ Equity 1,240.5 1,162.7 1,070.3 680.8 569.4
ééazgi§|%iquacy Ratio 11.57% 11.57% 10.81% 11.88% 11.28%
ﬁjug‘?om 113.6 109.7 102.8 97.7 80.0
ilufl;rielﬁr(e)s\t Income 180.3 136.1 158.4 178.7 1715
gzﬁ:lﬁ}ﬁl&ﬁ}: 0.75% 0.81% 0.90% 1.06% 1.02%
eturn on Average Assets
¥ El s i 9.45% 9.82% 11.74% 15.63% 14.82%

Return On Average Shareholders’ Equity

AT AEERE (BRI FTEmMY S EERERETPE(DLSTHENY R, BREIRAN, ARTERABETASEH
AR, MARTRR.

F2. ERPOSFRNEEERAREREZRBER(HURTEAATENZ (HKT))FHEXNEHE. 2015F U FEER
AREEZRRES(HURTAARTZREEME)ERXAETE. RENIRAN, KRERREMBALT REAX
BRI EIF AR,

Note 1: All financial data and indicators in this Annual Report, other than the Appendices, have been prepared in accordance with the Chinese
Accounting Standards and, unless otherwise specified, are consolidated amounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries and are denominated in
Renminbi.

Note 2: The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio for the year 2015 and after as shown in the above table has been calculated in accordance with the
Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) issued by the CBRC and other relevant requirements, while prior-year capital adequacy
ratios were calculated in accordance with the Rules for Regulating the Capital Adequacy Requirement for Commercial Banks and other
relevant requirements. All figures relating to capital adequacy ratios in this Annual Report are presented on a consolidated basis unless
otherwise specified.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

BRRBEETLSH
Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by industry B B %

— B % 7.31%
Railways
0 28 16.05%
Highways
=V 8.20%
Electric Power
[ AHEMEHE 11.12%
Public Infrastructure
P X & 25.83%
Urban Renewal
) ARl 6.15%
Strategic Emerging Industries
Hit 25.34%
Others
BRURFEU X 5 2017 RITARTRFHR S
Outstanding Net Loan Balance: Breakdown by Geography Renminbi Bonds Issued in 2017: Breakdown by Maturity
BB % B HOLE %
0 FEB#x 42.61% 0 S8 (—FHUT. 8—F) 18.24%
Eastern Short-term Bonds (under 1 year, inclusive)
[ X 18.04% [ PRE(—FHZRFH, 88F) 37.22%
Central Medium-term Bonds (1 to 5 year, inclusive)
[ AR 29.98% 0 KB (AFHZE+FH. 81F) 40.00%
Western Long-term Bonds (5 to 10 years, inclusive)
FierX 7.02% B (TEUE) 4.54%
Northeastern Super Long-term Bonds (over 10 years)
0 KEEMSMEX 2.35%

Outside the Chinese Mainland
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The year 2017 was a momentous one for China as it continued to build a society of moderate prosperity and pursue supply-
side structural reform. It was also an important year for CDB as it explored new possibilities for serving national strategies upon
the delivery of its Three-Step Reform Strategy. With a keen understanding of China’s vision and priorities for economic and social
development, CDB endeavors to put its resources and expertise where they are most needed in China’s reform and opening-up,
guided by the country’s new development philosophy. As a development finance institution, CDB makes dedicated efforts to fulfill its
mission, advance reform, and break new ground in its growth.

In 2017, we remained committed to a prudent and proactive approach and delivered proud results. Our assets steadily increased
to RMB15.96 trillion, with a drop in both non-performing loan balance and non-performing loan ratio over consecutive quarters,
leading to an NPL ratio of 0.70% at the end of the year. Our performance was as strong and stable as ever, with a net profit of
RMB113.6 billion. Good results enabled CDB to break new ground and step up support for key areas and weak sectors in China’s
socio-economic development, including poverty alleviation, affordable housing, infrastructure, basic and pillar industries, strategic
emerging industries, balanced regional development and the Belt and Road Initiative. We provided over RMB3 ftrillion financing
to support the real economy in the past year. CDB also deepened its own reforms. Concrete actions were taken to implement the
Articles of Association. The new board of directors was established. And corporate governance was strengthened. We worked with
regulatory authorities to develop the Regulation on China Development Bank as a guide for CDB’s compliant operations and an
institutional foundation for CDB'’s sustainable growth.

Over the past 5 years, with unwavering efforts, CDB has provided full support to national development strategies, played a strong role
in helping China deliver historical achievements in its reform, opening-up and modernization, and broken new ground for development
finance.

In the past 5 years, CDB’s role in serving national strategies has grown in importance, as the Bank continued to deliver the
unique advantages and values of development finance in promoting economic and social development. Through supporting
the supply-side structural reform and advancing initiatives in trimming overcapacity, cutting oversupply, deleveraging, reducing
costs, and shoring up weak areas, CDB has remained an reliable source of funds in supporting China’s transition to high-quality
development, with a cumulative funding of RMB16.5 trillion to the real economy and a reduction in funding costs of nearly RMB200
billion for enterprises through lower rates and fees. Putting poverty alleviation high on its agenda, CDB provided relocation loans for
the benefit of 9.11 million registered poor population, and student loans that have enabled 10.39 million students to study in college.
CDB strongly supported the affordable housing initiatives, and the urban renewal loans enabled more than 20 million households
to leave their poor quarters and have a proper place they can call home. CDB is also a major contributor to major infrastructure
projects, including 16 thousand kilometers of highways and over 10 thousand kilometers of high-speed railways. In addition, CDB
plays an active role in promoting the Belt and Road Initiative, and is deeply involved in international financial governance.



In the past 5 years, we have focused on deepening reform as the key to our efforts to lay a strong foundation for CDB’s
long-term growth. In accordance with the master plan of the Chinese government for financial reform, CDB has explored the
theories and practices of development finance. In light of the actual needs and with a commitment to development finance, CDB
has formulated and successfully implemented the Three-Step Reform Strategy: First, obtaining permanent sovereign credit support
for CDB bonds with zero risk weight; second, shaping up a group governance structure; and third, receiving an official mandate for
CDB as a development finance institution, to elevate CDB’s development finance concept, methodology, experience and measures
to an institutional level, and establish development finance as a crucial component in the Chinese financial system. This is a major
achievement in China’s financial reform, a major breakthrough in the financial sector, as well as a milestone in the history of CDB'’s
development and reform.

In the past 5 years, we have been increasing our focus on risk prevention and control as well as improving our risk
management quality and efficiency, with significant improvement in our precision-driven management and overall
sustainability. We have made many breakthroughs in our proactive risk prevention and mitigation, thanks to our efforts in fostering
our risk culture, adopting innovative approaches and methods, heightening end-to-end risk prevention and management, and
enhancing our group audit management system. We have devoted strong efforts to optimize business structures, streamline
management processes, improving synergies between the asset and liability portfolios, and expand and diversify our funding
sources, as we continue to reduce costs and improve efficiency. We have intensified our efforts in building the comprehensive
financial service system in line with the “Operate as One CDB, Deliver Customer Experience as One CDB and Deliver Services as
One CDB” principle, and further deepened the market-oriented and specialization reforms of our subsidiaries.

In the past 5 years, our unwavering commitment to corporate social responsibility has been applauded by all sectors in
society. CDB has been awarded “People’s Social Responsibility Award” by people.cn for 12 consecutive years, listed as the World's
50 Safest Banks for 7 consecutive years by Global Finance magazine, and voted Bank of the Year for Best Contribution to the
Supply-Side Structural Reform, Bank of the Year for Best Contribution to Urban Renewal, Bank of the Year for Best Support to the Belt
and Road Initiative, among others, by Financial News and Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, Institute of Finance and Banking.
None of these achievements would have been possible without the support of China’s central and local governments, government
agencies, shareholders, clients, people from all sectors and, of course, the hard work of all CDB staff. To each and every one of you,
| extend my heartfelt gratitude.

2018 is the first year in our all-out efforts to implement the strategic plans of the 19th National Congress of the CPC and marks the
40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up. It is a year to build on past achievements, deliver the vision of a moderately
prosperous society for China, and implement China’s 13th Five-Year Plan. It is also a year in which CDB will step up efforts in the
new era to support the real economy, effectively manage financial risks and deepen financial reforms. In this year, CDB will pursue a
proactive yet prudent approach, adhere to the new development approach, and focus on supporting China’s supply-side structural
reform. As China is transitioning to high-quality development, CDB stands ready to make new contribution to the sustainable
and robust economic and social development in China by maintaining stable growth, advancing reforms, supporting economic
restructuring, improving people’s livelihood and managing risks.
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In 2017, in close alignment with Chinese government’s reform strategies and objectives, CDB focused on the supply-side
structural reform, supported the five major initiatives to help “trim overcapacity, cut oversupply, deleverage, reduce corporate
costs, and shore up weak areas”, continued to strengthen its operation and risk management, further enhanced the quality
and efficiency of its growth, and delivered strong results in various areas. At the end of 2017, CDB achieved its goal of
supporting China’s social and economic development while sustaining its own development, with total assets at RMB15.96
trillion, the balance of loans at RMB11.04 trillion, a net profit at RMB113.6 billion, a capital adequacy ratio of 11.57%, and an
NPL rate under 1% for 51 consecutive quarters.

Fully supporting key sectors in infrastructure, basic and pillar industries. We further deepened cooperation with
government agencies and enterprises, increased resources to review major national construction projects, and provided
strong funding support to building China’s modern transportation system, including RMB147.2 billion railway loans,
RMB298.5 billion highway loans and RMB103.1 billion urban rail transport loans. With respect to water resources, the Bank
provided RMB96.7 billion in loans to support major water resources projects, including Baihetan Hydropower Station on
Jinsha River. CDB’s RMB313.3 billion new urbanization loans played a key role in improving the quality of new urbanization
initiatives, including utility tunnels, sponge cities, and distinct and unique small towns.

Contributing to economic upgrading. In order to promote the innovation-driven development strategy, the Bank increased
its efforts in supporting the five major projects and ten industrial sectors as part of China’s vision to be a country strong in
manufacturing, and provided RMB344.3 billion in loans to strategic emerging industries, as its strategy of combining lending
and investments proved highly effective. As part of its strong commitment to green development, the Bank increased its
efforts in promoting green finance and green bonds, and provided RMB327.0 billion in loans for environmental protection,
energy saving and emission reduction projects to support ecological and environmental protection, green urban and rural
development and the green transformation of industries. With respect to balanced regional development, CDB supported the
development of 6 new cities and districts, including Beijing’s sub-center, developed the investment and financing master plan
for the Xiongan New Area, and the loan balance of regions in central, western and northeastern China increased by RMB498.1
billion, with RMB93.4 billion and RMB60.6 billion loans to support Xinjiang and regions with predominant Tibetan populations.

Improving people’s livelihood. CDB is committed to delivering poverty alleviation solutions that combine sound rules and
systems, funding, and knowledge transfer and technical assistance. It has financed provincial programs for relocating poor
populations, county programs for infrastructure development, and village programs for nurturing industrial development, and given
financial support for poor students to pursue their studies. The Bank provided RMB444.5 billion in loans, as it intensified efforts
to carry out the Three Campaigns, namely poverty elimination in extremely poverty-stricken areas, coordinated poverty alleviation
in Eastern and Western China and targeted poverty alleviation. As a major fund provider for urban renewal initiatives, the Bank
fostered a diversified and sustainable financing system and made strong contributions to the successful completion of the
three-year urban renewal plan, with more than 20 million households benefiting from the Bank’s RMB3 trillion urban renewal loans.



Actively and steadily promoting international cooperation. In order to implement the deliverables of the Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation, we completed 22 major international planning projects, provided an additional USD17.6
billion in loans to countries along the Belt and Road, and committed RMB99.1 billion as part of its special RMB lending
scheme. The Bank’s funding support ensured the steady progress on many major projects, including the Kazakhstan
petroleum oil refinery renovation and credit facilities to the Ministry of Finance of Oman. As part of its efforts to further
promote multilateral and bilateral cooperation, CDB initiated the China-CEEC Interbank Association. At the end of 2017, the
Bank maintained its leading position among Chinese banks with a balance of foreign currency loans equivalent to USD261.7
billion.

Continuously strengthening risk management. The Bank makes every effort to ensure forestall risks, as it stays faithful
to its mission of supporting the real economy. It has developed 27 rules and measures to consolidate the institutional basis
of risk management, including the comprehensive risk management measures. The Bank made institutional and procedural
improvements to its group client management practices and adopted a client-centered model. It intensified risk early
warnings in key areas, as part of its increased efforts in risk management and mitigation. The Bank strengthened internal
audit to improve internal control compliance. In 2017, the Bank’s asset quality remained stable, while both the balance of
non-performing loans and the NPL ratio decreased.

Pursuing finer operations and management. In response to market changes, the Bank adopted innovative solutions to
further enhance its financing system, continued to strengthen its asset/liability and liquidity management. A total of 1.65
trillion RMB bonds were issued last year, bringing the stock of its financial bond issuance to RMB15 trillion. The Bank
continued to improve group management, as it made solid progress in reducing costs, improving profitability and promoting
synergies among the parent and its subsidiaries. The Bank continued to solidify the basis of its management practices to
provide strong support for its operations. IT systems were strengthened with newly developed mobile applications and big
data platforms.

In 2018, CDB will faithfully implement the new development philosophy, leverage its advantages in development finance,
contribute to higher quality and efficiency in the Chinese economy as new growth drivers are emerging, and support the
fight of the “three battles”: forestalling and defusing major risks, pursuing targeted poverty alleviation, and preventing and
controlling pollution. We at CDB will spare no efforts to make new progress.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AEEFAESRRE(ETESSRIMEFLE AP SEE AASERBFNESRAK.

The Bank's Board of Supervisors are appointed in accordance with the State Council's Provisional Regulations on the Board of Supervisors of

Key State-owned Financial Institutions and other relevant laws and regulations, and report to the State Council.

EE. BREE

ERRFRTIER

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF
-

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

H8 BEERK WiTESE 3 1955¢£09 7 20134048
Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director M September 1955 April 2013
A BEREK HTES = 19584F05 8 20124E108
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director M May 1958 October 2012
BEE WITES =2 19624098 20174E108
Zhou Qingyu Executive Director M September 1962 October 2017
B4R WEE=R 5 19624 12H 20174108
Lian Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
SERE BEES 2 1958406 5 201746108
Shi Yaobin Government Agency Director M June 1958 October 2017
B0k BEES 2 19674027 20174108

Li Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017
KiRE BEES % 19564054 201746108
Zhang Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1956 October 2017
Z A0 B’ANESR 5 19584037 20144087

Li Shaogang Equity Director M March 1958 August 2014
R BANESR 5 19595124 201542058
Mi Jingping Equity Director M December 1959 May 2015
RUCES BINEE % 1969406 5 20174108
Liu Xiangdong Equity Director M June 1969 October 2017
kER BNES 5 19664F03 B 201746108
Zhang Shenghui Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
HEER BNE=S 3 1969404 H 20174108
Chu Aiwu Equity Director M April 1969 October 2017
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

WA (ERS 3 19584051 20124108
Zheng Zhijie President M May 1958 October 2012
BEE BliTi % 19624E09H 20164E07 B
Zhou Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 July 2016
KB JE EIESR S % 19644104 20135094
Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President M October 1964 September 2013
g K BTk 3 19684104 20164E08 5
Cai Dong Executive Vice President M October 1968 August 2016

_ ZERIC
E=tE NP e 1963406 A 20165128
Wang Yungui Secretary Gif 112 CPC DIseElne M June 1963 December 2016

Inspection Commission

5 k* BiTK % 19671118
Ma Xin Executive Vice President M November 1967
PO BT 3 19674028
Liu Jin Executive Vice President M February 1967
[N FBESWB L2 19624078 20084125
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008

* ERAREFREESDE,

The qualifications of the new executive vice presidents are subject to approval by the CBIRC.

EEIRT BN
CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

SATEFR01BEF R WHILET, IR, &8
FEARGESK, HERAREFRALESEE.

THAB2018F4B A BEEARTEIfITK.
B B2017FEI A A HIEEATE RN E.

As discussed and adopted at the second meeting of the Board of
Directors in 2018, Ma Xin, Liu Jin were appointed as executive vice
president of the Bank. The qualifications of the new executive vice
presidents are subject to approval by the CBIRC.

Wang Yongsheng no longer served as executive vice president of the
Bank starting from April 2018.

Yang Wengi no longer served as chief risk officer of the Bank starting
from September 2017.

5 T1E5
STAFF

BE0I7TERARTHEBRTI47A, HFI827%H AT
WHEARE I EZH, 66.67%HMATHMERRER I
25,

At the end of 2017, the Bank had a staff of 9,147 people, of whom,
98.27% held a bachelor's degree or higher, and 66.67% held a
master’s degree or higher.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HIRFR
Hu Huaibang
EFEK WOTES

Chairman, Executive Director

RZA

Zheng Zhijie

BIESK HITES

Vice Chairman, Executive Director

FEE
Zhou Qingyu
HITES

Executive Director




TR
Lian Weiliang
HEEE

Government Agency Director

Shi Yaobin
WEEE
Government Agency Director

ZRLEN
Li Chenggang
HEEE

Government Agency Director

SRARE

Zhang Xiaohui

WEEE

Government Agency Director
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24BN
Li Shaogang

BRAREE
Equity Director

TR
Mi Jingping
BREE
Equity Director

X[EZR
Liu Xiangdong

BAREE
Equity Director

wES

Zhang Shenghui
A ES

Equity Director

EZER

Chu Aiwu
BNES
Equity Director
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

WA
Zheng Zhijie
K

President

AiEE

Zhou Qingyu

BTk

Executive Vice President

SiKhBE

Zhang Xuguang
EIEERS

Executive Vice President

g K
Cai Dong

EIEERS
Executive Vice President

/
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

EriE

Wang Yungui

L&RHiC

Secretary of the CPC

Discipline Inspection Commission

5
Ma Xin

EIEERS
Executive Vice President

X &

Liu Jin

EIESRS

Executive Vice President

B B
Chen Min

EESWB
Secretary of the Board of Directors
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YNGIR=g
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BRI

SHAREHOLDERS

BE017TFRATRERFAERNG BN TE.

CDB's shareholders and their shareholdings by the end of 2017 are shown as follows:

BREAR FER G
Shareholders % of Total
T BUER

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
FRCERAFRTELT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. &5 e
AR AT & ARFAT R~
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. o
SEHSREESEES 1.59%
National Council for Social Security Fund YR
att o
Total 100.00%

THBER A E SRR AMAR ], RER T EM B MBRBREE. WEREESE TENRIOREREST.

FRCERFERTALIZKREFE(PEARKNERADENAERHARINEFTRE LS, RIBEE S RFN, U
AMARRFERKENEFEREREVTEEAARFNBETEAAXS, RAEEERA~RELEE.

BRMRAFLSAERTEADZREFE(PEARKMEADEIBEFIINLERREARINABRIFELT, TEME
BRSNIE. B, N EE. RRBRANURASZAEE. RAEE.
TEHEREESEERE2EHSREESNEEETENMY,

The Ministry of Finance (MOF) is under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal and tax
policies and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment (Huijin) is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial
institutions, and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, helps preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company (BIH) is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, and mainly focuses on investments in domestic
and overseas projects, equity investments, debt investments, fund investments, loan investments, and asset management and investments.

The National Council for Social Security Fund (NCSSF) is the operation arm of the National Social Security Fund.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OPERATIONS

RERESHRAENCERFRRTER), ATEESHISRERTAN BESEHTER (REEK). 42HEEEM
BRBRNEE. BRNATESKARHNPELT, BESKHBNEE. ATEEEE. N, B2AK. BEE: BEE
EHERRRUEZ VB, §5H. ARRTEERIZBBZEATAET, 8 SER . LB, TR KRE &
NEFARFEMER, 15 AR BRE. MNEK. KES #HER. ESSWB. KR,

2017F11R6H . AT BAF —REFSAIASTEEEZRF AW FNBATEEZWENAN EXETNER
SWEAN FRIEAVNEHE MREESZENERATARTRFVYANERE  REELTH —REESRLEE,
RTASIAERMHE—FTE, NEIGEKTRMEH . AEFHRS ERKIIT T 7 BSCEAM,

20176 ATEZEZUHARESASIAN. INEEFELXTARBRTRUBETR, MARUERENIBFERPRARRK

B, 2FBAEELIWIOCR, FNBE2017EMEME. 2016FMFRE . €RHAFRTIT. " +=82" LERREM

k‘J BAUBIMRERL. 2ERREENEZFIOTUR. BAEESLTNZERALSWOX. BNBISEFMH. WEF S/
R BIUTEFIESERFONUE AESFTRHTUERRIEIL.

In accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board has 13 members, comprising three executive directors
(including the Chairman), four government agency directors and six equity directors. The Board is chaired by Hu Huaibang, with Zheng Zhijie as Vice
Chairman; the executive directors are Hu Huaibang, Zheng Zhijie and Zhou Qingyu. The National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC),
Ministry of Finance (MOF), Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM), and People’s Bank of China (PBOC) each appoint one person as government agency
directors, including Lian Weiliang, Shi Yaobin, Li Chenggang and Zhang Xiaohui; and the shareholders appoint the equity directors, including Li
Shaogang, Mi Jingping, Liu Xiangdong, Zhang Shenghui and Chu Aiwu. The Secretary of the Board is Chen Min.

On November 6 2017, the Bank held the inauguration and first meeting of the new Board, and with the deliberation and adoption the rules of procedures
for the Board, rules of procedures for the special committees of the Board, and rules of work of the Chairman, among other rules and procedures, and
also 14 proposals, including the formation plan for the special committees of the Board, this day marked the beginning of operation of the new Board,
as the Bank continued to improve its governance framework and enhance its governance capability to better support the state’s strategies.

In 2017, adhering to the new development approach, the Board diligently implemented the CDB Reform Plan and applied development finance
to fully support the state’s medium- and long-term strategies. Over the past year, the Board held 10 meetings, and deliberated and adopted
40 proposals, including the 2017 financial budget, 2016 financial statements, financial bond issuance plans, business development plans for
the 13th Five-Year Plan Period, the establishment of representative offices overseas, and the comprehensive risk management measures. The
special committees of the Board held 5 meetings, deliberated and adopted 6 proposals, including compensations for the senior executives,
additional capital contribution to CDB Capital, and amendments to the articles of association of CDB Securities, and provides their counsel
and recommendations to the Board.

frEERS
THE INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL

AEREGAE BRER—RTAMEESRNME, KTTI199EM T BRMENZRS, AERBESR. RMERAM
BATEN BEEF—REW RHERXONEFEAZFTEREBHER 1 BEATERARELRILEH T,
ARTEREBNEEEERMEOMNERN. 201778 ATE18EEFRMEZR RS WELRET, SWESRHT
EHEZFERMEE RUBEMNEMUERNEEFLNSRNERFTWERF T ZRANNR, FERERHRIR.

The International Advisory Council (the Council) was set up in 1999 to broaden the Bank's global vision and support its efforts to become a world-
class development finance institution. With world-renowned leaders in the political, business and academic communities, the Council convenes
once a year to brainstorm on economic and financial developments both in China and across the world, share insights on the CDB’s reform and
development, and provide recommendations on its development strategies and management. The Council held its 18th meeting in July 2017 in
Beijing, engaged in in-depth discussions and reached broad consensus on issues including the economic and financial landscapes in China and
across the world, and how to maximize the value of the supply-side structural reform and development finance.



At
INTERNAL AUDIT

REBATER AMBHITBIIRAARARDERATARELE ABHITHINEZEEZLTEES. 2017F, RTUR
SEREE. FFEFRASREATE TRERARKREH T, ARESHITBREXERENERIERREHIT, B
BLREER PTRRESL RHESAELE AREENKEEE B LS SNCRR. TEESESUEE FTRANZEF
FIMEIT RESMIE ST, MER T RS RITIBIG, BRARABERITE S AEAIFREFFREFIT, RN AT
TETERNNFAMEE, ATFZEHSER, TEXREENG. EANERE RHELELAMG ETE ., ZIHIT
BRAX. ISR IS FEX RN FK & B, LA SMBREE T2 &0 EERIUTHIE, B EEE, RMAFINZHTLA, BUHT
REEE MUART L, HITE NIRRT,

In accordance with CDB's Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors, and work
under the guidance and oversight of the Board of Supervisors. In 2017, in line with the Bank’s commitment to supporting national strategies and
safeguarding the safety of the state-owned assets, the Bank organized follow-up audits of poverty alleviation loans, and assisted the National Audit
Office in follow-up audits of the implementation of the state’s major undertakings. As part of its efforts to focus on regulatory priorities, strictly comply
with risk management requirements and promote compliant operations, the Bank carried out special audits in various fields, including group-wide
risk management, interbank operations, foreign currency loans, IT business continuity management, and NPL write-off, and also audits of overseas
operations. For branches and subsidiaries, the Bank established audit communication mechanisms to improve the overall group audit capability. The
Bank further tightened its standards and increased its focus on substance in conducting economic responsibility audits, as it continued to strengthen
control and oversight over the executive members’ use of power. Public complaints and reports were addressed in a transparent manner, as the Bank
continued to improve its supervision mechanisms. The Bank focused on drawing on audits to facilitate its management, and by promoting immediate
follow-up and remediation and improving relevant rules and procedures, enabled audit to deliver greater benefits. By strengthening interconnection
between the oversight and audit functions and joint oversight, the Bank strove to maximize the synergies in internal and external risk prevention
and mitigation capabilities. Thanks to more refined audit rules and procedures, routine supervisory activities, greater application of offsite audits,
heightened audit quality management and more streamlined mix and structure of its audit force, the Bank’s audit capability and efficiency continued
to improve.
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20174, ATINARMEREWUBR, MRSHANEMMREITE REK FEE. ERE REERKBERE
MOE, 2EVERSRES, UTHRERRMBNKGENH DR, FHE~KEER (ROA)0.75%, FHR AN = Kz
# (ROE) 9.45%,

In 2017, the Bank rigorously implemented national policies, supported the supply-side structural reform and facilitated China’s efforts to ensure stable
growth, restructure the economy, and improve people’s livelihood. In the meanwhile, the Bank’s strategic role of serving country is more prominent

improved its business performance, and further strengthened its sustainability and risk resilience. Thanks to these efforts, the Bank reported a return
on asset (ROA) of 0.75% and a return on equity (ROE) of 9.45%.

i 53 4
PROFIT ANALYSIS
W55 32 R

Income and Expenses

BATHEES
n RMB or %
#Oégje!?gt':ig Profit 140,523 111,253 29,270 26.31%
A E‘Jjﬁgg; Income 180,250 136,124 44,126 32.42%
?e%i??o%ﬁii{gn Income, net 9,773 13,151 (3,378) (25.69%)
?fvfsl.[f(nim Income 20,525 5,590 14,935 267.17%
gﬁt@fﬁ}ég&sﬁ/ﬁ(msses) 3,857 (8,000) 11,857 148.21%
li%fifgfﬁExchange Gains/(Losses) (57,002) 69,794 (126,796) (181.67%)
g%frﬁgiﬂgax and Surcharges 3,899 11,102 (7,203) (64.88%)
fwggﬁéﬁeﬁ%osses on Assets 5,080 82,770 (77,690) (93.86%)
éke%;ezriajéaI%?Administrative Expenses U7 12,125 52 0.43%
C%(ﬁ%ﬁi%}é\me, net 4,276 591 3,685 623.52%
Nﬁe%ﬁgggrﬁf I)ncome/(Losses) 101 29,494 (29,393) (99.66%)
fﬁgir:?eﬁiri Expense 27,035 31,080 (4,045) (13.01%)
ﬁeﬁugilj'ofit 113,589 109,667 3,922 3.58%
iitﬁ?ﬁjzr:&ffeige Assets 0.75% 0.81% (0.06%) (7.41%)
AR g W 9.45% 9.82% (0.37%) (3.77%)

Return on Average Equity
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20175, AR EVSGRLEK, 2 ELIEFE1,135.89127T, ELLiGHK3.58%, FIE R BRANRERITRFEMRAR
B, £ FERIA 28K AN1,802.501Z7T, FI BB WANE L EF32.42%; ZETNARTRIBRES W, =4 KMREK
570.021Z7T, 20174, AfT@idz BSNCETE @M TR, B WAL R R,

In 2017, the Bank continued its steady growth in profitability, with an operating profit of RMB113,589 million, up 3.58% from the previous year.
As the largest source of income, net interest income of the year was RMB180,250 million, up 32.42% from the previous year; foreign exchange

loss were RMB57,002 million due to significant depreciation of US dollar against RMB. The Bank employed foreign exchange derivatives to
hedge against part of the currency risks in 2017.

ERFFNARAGRAREHIBRR

Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities and Changes in Average Interest Rates

ARTMEATHEDL
Million RMB or %

ERHA>

Interest-bearing Assets

2017

R
Average
Balance

GES

Interest

Rate

2016
FRE G
Average Interest
Balance Rate

TE +/(-)

FIREN
Average
Balance

xR
Interest
Rate

FR R RBATHFERE WK

Balance with Central Bank and Other Financial

Institutions

1,157,423

2.62%

1,024,582 1.96%

132,841

0.66%

HHAS
Due from Other Banks

248,825

2.12%

175,617 2.10%

73,208

0.02%

INBRE SRUE = R H A

Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements

and Others

556,411

2.95%

930,839 2.51%

(374,428)

0.44%

RIREFRMER

Loans and Advances

10,703,903

4.27%

9,629,459 4.40%

1,074,444

(0.13%)

RERR
Debt Investment

1,475,024

3.46%

949,284 3.16%

525,740

0.30%

&it
Total

14,141,587

3.96%

12,709,781 3.94%

1,431,806

0.02%

FRHEER
Interest-bearing Liabilities

Bk % H At £ @A FRR I
Deposits from Other Financial Institutions

2,827,312

2.77%

1,885,602 2.62%

941,710

0.15%

15 BUR A1 H fth & R fE K
Borrowings from Governments and Other
Financial Institutions

367,811

2.76%

360,576 2.26%

7,235

0.50%

U 77 5%

Deposits

2,188,360

0.60%

2,065,587 0.58%

122,773

0.02%

EXTHRSIUES R

Debt Securities Issued, Gross

8,130,510

3.39%

7,694,710 3.82%

435,800

(0.43%)

Hith
Others

74,877

4.12%

61,780 2.80%

13,097

1.32%

&it
Total

13,588,871

2.80%

12,068,256 3.03%

1,520,615

(0.23%)

BRE

Net Interest Margin

1.27%

- 1.07%

0.20%
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FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS
B ZE20178E K, ATHE = 2F159,592.88127T . FIELIEK11.29%, RABAFTHIZLE=, 2017ERK M BN R HEK
% 5106,426.751Z 7T, FILLIEKT7.57%, &5 B 7 = F966.69%, fafR 8 5147,188.131Z 7T, FEL#EK11.69%., kK R2ATT
REBMRMARIR, 2017ERERITHRFIESFRHB4,465.92{27T . FILLIEIK6.94%, & 2 7 RAI57.39%.
As of the end of 2017, the Bank’s total assets amounted to RMB15,959,288 million, up 11.29% from the previous year. As the core assets of
the Bank, net loans and advances amounted to RMB10,642,675 million, up 7.57% from the previous year and representing 66.69% of the total
assets. The Bank’s total liabilities amounted to RMB14,718,813 million, up 11.69% from the previous year. As the principal source of its funding,

the balance of its debt securities at the year end was RMB8,446,592 million, up 6.94% from the previous year and representing 57.39% of the
total liabilities.

Financial Position

BESTt
L2 A
Total Assets 15,959,288 14,340,500 1,618,788 11.29%

A& REFRRTRRE LI

Cash, Balances with Central Banks 1,393,901 962,322 431,579 44.85%
and Other Financial Institutions

ﬁ?ﬁji?%ﬁ%\:ﬂances 10,642,675 9,894,173 748,502 7.57%
E\fgﬁ?’zm Securities 2,903,629 2,384,078 519,551 21.79%
%tﬁﬂers 1,019,083 1,099,927 (80,844) (7.35%)
%Ifﬁj:bimies 14,718,813 13,177,780 1,541,033 11.69%
Ee%tiiﬁge%fffed, Gross 8,446,592 7,898,521 548,071 6.94%
A ggbﬂfaﬁated Debt Securities Issued 64,925 66,957 (2,032) (3.03%)
go%ﬁvﬁi%c%f%ﬁﬁﬁf\ents and Financial Institutions 366,992 361,864 5,128 1.42%
Dﬁu%ﬁﬁgﬁgéiaﬁg ffg\ Customers 5,334,679 4,390,883 943,796 21.49%
(%[L‘Hlers 570,550 526,512 44,038 8.36%
'?%?;rlsﬁfﬁei:omers! Equity 1,240,475 1,162,720 77,755 6.69%
iﬁ?émtd 421,248 421,248 - _
ééaj;igﬁazusﬁilgrﬁ Surplus Reserve 304,308 283,122 21,186 7.48%
S 213,934 186,732 27,202 14.57%
U*nﬁglz%jgd?jg%r{glt and Other Equity 279,957 250,444 29,513 11.78%
OB AR 21,028 21,174 (146) (0.69%)

Minority Interests
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2017%F, ATARERRE, AT REBLEEY, ATFRRNE0.70%, LLEH THO0I8NE D R, 20175, WHKAE
BERRES,941.57127T, ERK B EI.57%, RIFTRIRAI N Bz 6E

In 2017, CDB maintained stable asset quality due to the effectively control of risk, reporting an NPL ration of 0.70%, 0.18 percentage point
lower than at the beginning of 2017. In the past year, the Bank also made provisions of RMB394,157 million for loan losses, with an allowance
for loan losses ratio of 3.57%. This put the Bank at a stronger position to strengthen risk control and mitigation capability.

RERERFRLE

Quality of Loan Assets

TERRLRRE
Total Loans and Advances Tosees e e

TREFRE
Non-Performing Loan Balance 76,798 90,602 (13,804)

TREFRE
Non-Performing Loan Ratio el Dl (eLleH)

R EEE
25N
Allowance for Loan Impairment sl 423,974 (29.817)
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20174 AT EFHRP R SERF INERMHLARES RRRSHLNEHME

BE, KEFRMSRNE BNITEEUBEANR L EZRERSRNAR B |
BERR SRR ZRAREE FERRERG M SRMNKG KL, F552EHLE

it =K ARESTE . AMTEFHMURSKZELF HSE . FEINK
NELRQPUAMESADHNIFHNE, ARTERATR . B RRBEEL T,

In 2017, CDB adopted a prudent yet proactive approach and acted in line with the government’s

new development philosophy, while staying focused on supporting the supply-side structural
reform by leveraging its advantages as a development finance institution. It was fully involved in
fighting the “three battles”: forestalling and defusing major risks especially major financial risks,
pursuing targeted poverty alleviation, and preventing and controlling pollution. In all these efforts,
CDB kept in mind the imperative to forestall systemic financial risks. It made solid efforts to
promote the initiatives to trim overcapacity, cut oversupply, deleverage, reduce cooperate costs,
and shore up weak areas. Committed to serving the real economy, CDB increased its support
to key areas and weak sectors, and made new contributions to the transformation of the growth
model and the improvement of development quality and efficiency.

BN ZFERESTIHEIR
MAXIMAL SUPPORT TO THE STATE’S CONSTRUCTION
INITIATIVES IN KEY SECTORS

X RE—X"ELEUEENRT. ATES M EERKE, RIREIFIREAEE
X RNEHSERE. SRR ATHEIBFARUTBERER, NP
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As a lead bank in support of the key areas in the infrastructure, basic and pillar industries, the Bank
actively aligned its efforts with the state’s strategies, adopted innovative financing options to promote
the modern transportation systems, including high-speed railways, expressways, and urban rail
transit, and drew on its medium- and long-term financing advantages to support the state’s key
construction projects in water resources and electric power, among others, as part of the Bank’s
consistent efforts to consolidate the foundation for China’s long-term economic development.

Q £k RAILWAYS

ATUER " N\PNE SEHBEETMNRERAER, FEMANHREERTE
XRNE, EFERMKBEITIW IR 472270, FRFERTHERT,2001Z7T. ER
XFEEMEERED . RINEARZ SMER CIER). ZHERT (BMNR)F5
EHKEETE MR B ERRERNETE . BE2017TFERKITHREETIL ERRT

7,64512 7T, GGERLIE E R SR L L '] 472 N
y {27t

Focusing on the eight-by-eight backbone high-speed railway network, the Bank continued to

increase its support to major railway construction projects. In 2017, the Bank lent RMB147.2 billion to 2 E RIS EITI S

the railway sector and underwrote RMB120.0 billion railway bond as the lead underwriter. The Bank New railway loans: RMB147.2 billion
provided funding support to key high-speed railway projects, including the Fuzhou-Xiamen Line,

Yinchuan-Xi'an Line, Ganzhou-Shenzhen Line (Jiangxi section), and Guiyang-Nanning Line (Guizhou

section), and also major rehabilitation projects for railway transportation equipment. At the end of

2017, the balance of the Bank’s loans to the railway industry was RMB764.5 billion, and the Bank

remained the biggest railway lender among domestic financial institutions.
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& FEERERMKETE
The Newly Constructed Xi’an-Chengdu Railway
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This project is a major component of the Beijing-Kunming Line, a high-speed railway thoroughfare as part of China's
medium- and long-term plan for an eight-by-eight railway network. Once completed, this will be the first high-speed railway
to run through the Qinling Mountains and will provide a huge boost to the local economic and social development in
Western China. The Bank made a loan commitment of RMB22.5 billion to this project, and the balance of the loan was
RMB1.445 billion at the end of 2017.

& PESKEANDRBIEMILEKIETE
Major Rehabilitation of Railway Transportation
Equipment of China Railway
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This project aims to upgrade the equipment of China Railway and
improve the transportation safety and efficiency, and includes the
repair in factories, and upgrade and modification of multiple-unit
trains, engines, freight trains and railway maintenance equipment.
The Bank took the lead in making the first loan commitment of

RMB20.0 billion for this project, and was the first bank to disburse
loans to the project with a drawdown of RMB13.5 billion.
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The Bank provides strong support to key highway construction initiatives, including the national expressway network, reconstruction of major
national and provincial roads, and construction of rural roads, and to drive the transformation and development of road infrastructure. In 2017,
loans to the highway industry were RMB298.5 billion, up by 58.96% from the previous year. At the end of 2017, the balance of loans to the
highway industry was RMB1.68 trillion, as the Bank continued to lead other banks and financial institutions, and the CDB funding has enabled
75 thousand kilometers of expressways to be operational, accounting for approximately 58% of the total expressway mileage in China.
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O ERERNSEABRBETE
Yuexi-Wuhan Expressway (Anhui Section)
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This project is a major component in the expressway network designed to boost the rise of Central China. The Bank made a loan
commitment of RMB3.0 billion, and the balance of the loan was RMB833 million at the end of 2017.
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The Bank took initiative in increasing its support for the urban rail transit constructions with RMB103.1 billion loans to 49 urban rail transit
projects in 23 cities, and employed a wide variety of financial services and loans, including syndicated loans and bond underwriting, to pool
resources from other financial institutions and the private sector. At the end of 2017, the balance of the Bank’s urban rail transit loans were
RMB371.3 hillion.

% ILRMERBREL TIZHAE

The Yanshan-Fangshan Line of Beijing Rail Transit
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This demonstration project represents the first fully automatic line independently designed and developed by China. The Bank made a
loan commitment of RMB1.0 billion to this project, and the balance of the loan was RMBO.1 billion at the end of 2017.

e 7](2"1] WATER RESOURCES
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As a lead bank in funding water resources projects, the Bank provided RMB96.7 billion loans in the past year to support 63 major projects,
including the Yangtze-to-Huaihe Water Diversion, Chaor-to-Xiliao Water Diversion, Xinjiang Water Supply Phase Il, and Ecological and
Environmental Protection for River Regions in Xinjiang, and also funded other projects, including safe drinking water in rural areas, the risk
prevention and reinforcement of unsafe reservoirs and waterway remediation and restoration projects. At the end of 2017, the balance of the
Bank’s water resources loans was RMB309.1 billion.
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The Bank, an active supporter of China’s energy structural adjustments, provided strong
support to the supply-side structural reform in the electric power industry, and intensified
its efforts to promote clean energy projects, including electric power and nuclear power,
and also “Go Global” initiatives in the energy sector. In 2017, the Bank provided RMB161.4
billion loans to the electric power industry, including RMB78.8 billion medium- and long-term
loans to clean energy projects, representing 40% of all clean energy investments in China
during the year. At the end of 2017, the balance of the Bank's loans to the electric power
industry was RMB857.4 billion.

o HRERATHAEZEILS, 4SHATERE
No. 3 and 4 Generator Units of Jiangsu Tianwan Nuclear Power Plant, China
National Nuclear Corporation
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When it becomes operational, the nuclear power plant will provide 14.0 billion kWh of
clean electricity per year, and will effectively improve the energy structure of Eastern

China. As the largest loan provider, the Bank has provide a cumulative total of RMB2.901
billion and EUR799 million to this project.

1 ,61 41275

EERMANITIRER

New electric power loans: RMB161.4 billion




fkBE~ / STRATEGIC PRIORITIES / 35

Bh 14T G Bt 53 RO R A

CONTRIBUTING TO WIN THE UPHILL BATTLE AGAINST POVERTY
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In 2017, adhering to the basic strategy of targeted poverty alleviation, committed to delivering poverty alleviation solutions that combine sound rules and
systems, funding, and knowledge transfer and technical assistance, and through provincial programs for relocating poor populations, county programs for
infrastructure development, and village programs for nurturing industrial development, and give financial support for poor students to pursue their studies,
the Bank increased its efforts in carrying out the Three Campaigns, namely poverty elimination in extremely poverty-stricken areas, coordinated poverty
alleviation in Eastern and Western China and targeted poverty alleviation, as part of the Bank's unflagging commitment to contributing to the fight against
poverty. Doubling its efforts to help build sound rules and systems, the Bank worked closely with the Central Office of Rural Affairs, National Development
and Reform Commission and the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development to ensure proper planning and design from
the top. Focusing its resources on areas most in need, the Bank heightened the precision of its efforts and provided RMB444.5 billion loans to help fight
poverty more effectively. Through heightened emphasis on knowledge transfer and technical assistance, the Bank completed six alleviation funding plans,
including the Funding Plan for Ecological Restoration and Fight against Poverty in Liliang and Taihang Mountains in Shanxi Province, and provided training
for 1,281 participations of local officers in underprivileged areas, including those from all the 14 extremely poor regions in China.

EFERBBERA R

New poverty alleviation loans: RMB444.5 billion

ﬁ SR 7T RESETTLEMENT PROGRAMS FOR POVERTY ALLEVIATION

B ZMRABRIAS BRG], MBRARRDA, ERRERASTIR, HIINEZRFAERER, FHTENE
EEMASEEFNE BREXASANER. EERAMH KRBT TKOE60ZT, R RHE64(Z7T. hEEI407
ZRAAAZRZHKARIERENXZE. RBRAEKRAAS KR, £FLTHAZFMKAMT TN ERBES, Hit
47938127t BIFFIMEGTHHTRE SISHEREREAREAREERAH,

The Bank has designed a fund allocation mechanism for poverty alleviation through resettlement programs to more efficiently coordinate
loan disbursements and ensure funding needs are met. The Bank intensifies its efforts to implement differentiated credit policies, and further
enhance project management and fund management rules and procedures to ensure loan funds are used with compliance. In 2017, the Bank
provided RMB56.0 billion resettlement loans to enable successful resettlement of 3.4 million underprivileged population, and the balance
of loans was RMB86.4 billion at the end of 2017. In its efforts to expand funding sources for poverty alleviation, the Bank issued 8 series
of special resettlement bonds for a total of RMB47.938 billion, and made good use of the counter service channels to offer the bonds to a
broader range of investors and funnel private funds to the cause of fight against poverty.

¢ TEAKESHHRRAIBTHE

Resettlement of Lushi County, Henan
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This is a major project to help improve the
livelihood of the local people and assist their
fight against poverty. At the end of 2017, the
balance of the Bank’s loans to this project
was RMB0.28 billion, and the funding support
enabled 6,729 underprivileged households in
Lushi County to resettle to their new homes.
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By developing and implementing differentiated credit policies and exploring new options for tackling the

difficulties in financing rural infrastructure, the Bank made active contributions to upgrade the infrastructure S EEMEEMEAF TS
in rural areas, including rural roads, safe drinking water, safe schools and environmental remediation. New poor village upgrade loans:
In 2017, the Bank provided RMB175.2 billion poor village upgrade loans, including RMB112.7 billion to RMB175.2 billion

support infrastructure upgrade of poor villages, and these loans brought relief and changes to 541 poor

counties, 40 thousand registered poor villages, and 18.95 million underprivileged population.

% STEEM R IZ R (—H) I E

Rural Infrastructure Upgrade (Phase I) at Fuzhou, Jiangxi
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This project will effectively improve the urban and rural environment, and help build an
environmentally friendly home for people to enjoy life and pursue their careers. The Bank
made a loan commitment of RMB4.17 billion to this project, and the balance of the loan was
RMB1.404 billion at the end of 2017.
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The Bank continued to optimize relevant policies, methods and criteria, and consolidated the resources from the leading local enterprises,
the “Four Platforms + Agencies” model (a model combining the management platform, the financing platform, the guarantee platform, the
public information platform and the credit enhancement agencies), and the on-lending model. As part of its commitment to driving industrial
development, the Bank developed its partnering enterprises, including state-owned enterprises, provincial lead enterprises and other
entities, tailored the Four Platforms + Agencies model to maximize the benefits of the loans, promoted on-lending loan pilot programs,
and supported pilot programs aimed to attract migrant workers to return home to start their own businesses. In 2017, the Bank provided
RMB65.2 billion loans to support poverty alleviation through industrial development, and reached out to 145 poor counties and 260
thousand registered underprivileged population.

o% BRFGR R RIIRIER S KR E

Tourist Service Area of Yinghu Dam in Ankang, Shaanxi
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This project aims to support the public facilities construction at the Yinghu tourist region
in the Qinling-Daba Mountains, and help the underprivileged local population to increase

their tourism income. The Bank made a loan commitment of RMB50.00 million, and the
balance of the loan was RMB30.00 million at the end of 2017.
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Farmers picking camellia fruit in a
poverty alleviation project financed
by CDB in Ganzhou, Jiangxi

ﬁ 5 $x% POVERTY ALLEVIATION THROUGH EDUCATION
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The Bank continued to expand the coverage of its student loans, and make student loans available to higher education institutions, research
institutions, administrative academies and accounting colleges as well as full-time undergraduates, postgraduates and pre-undergraduate
students, and promoted pilot student loan programs for vocational school students. In 2017, the Bank provided RMB25.2 billion student loans to
students from 2,830 higher education institutions in 26 provinces (including autonomous regions and municipalities). At the end of 2017, the Bank
had cumulatively provided student loans of RMB136.0 billion to 22.20 million applications from students of economically underprivileged families.
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Students from Zhenglan Banner, Xilin Gol League, Inner Mongolia signing electronic contracts for CDB student loans
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Rural Renewal of Yan’an New District (Phase Il), Shaanxi
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As an important part of the infrastructure construction in the new district of Yan'an, the project improves living conditions of local

residents and contributes to the urban development. The Bank made a loan commitment of RMB1.4 billion to the project, with an
outstanding balance of RMB961 million at the end of 2017.
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In 2017, the Bank continued to serve as the backbone in funding urban renewal and provided solid funding assurance to help deliver the
state’s 2015-2017 Three-Year Urban Renewal Plan with RMB880.0 billion new urban renewal loans. At the end of 2017, the Bank had provided
a cumulative total of RMB3,407.5 billion urban renewal loans to the benefit of more than 20 million households.

ENHANCEMENT OF POLICIES AND STANDARDS. The Bank joined forces with the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Construction to study
and formulate policies and standards. The Bank and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Construction also issued joint papers to promote
urban renewal financing in a compliant manner and to the extent practical, and ensure the safe and compliant use of funds.

FOCUS ON TOP PRIORITIES. The Bank worked closely with local governments to maintain strict control over renewal costs and land areas,
and focus the resources on the most urgent renewal projects, including the most challenging projects in Jixi, Heilongjiang and Xigatse, Tibet,
as 66% of the loans over the year had been made in support of projects in Central, Western and Northeast regions. The Bank also developed
and implemented differentiated strategies for different cities, and maintained strict control over the proportion of monetized allocations in
regions with an under-supply of housing.

HEIGHTENED RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL. The Bank enhanced the rules and procedures for managing its urban renewal loans,
developed more detailed risk prevention measures, and organized credit reviews of urban renewal projects to ensure proper management and
compliance of these projects. By increasing oversight and management of urban renewal funds, the Bank improved the efficiency of the funds.
Thanks to increased risk analysis and preemptive efforts as well as effective oversight of principal and interest recovery, the Bank ensured a
zero NPL record for 11 successive quarters at the end of 2017.

SUPPORT FOR PILOT LEASING PROGRAMS. The Bank engaged in solid cooperation with cities conducting pilot leasing programs to
design tailored financing solutions and financial products. The Bank also provided comprehensive financial services, including ABS and quasi-
REITs pilot programs, to drive financing innovations for leasing of housing properties.
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Zhangjiakou Urban Renewal 2016
Phase |, Hebei
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By rebuilding 27 thousand housing units
in Zhangjiakou, this urban renewal project
aims to improve the quality of life of local
residents, enhance the city landscape, and
contribute to the successful hosting of the
2022 Olympic Winter Games. The Bank made
a loan commitment of RMB9.425 billion to
this project, and the balance of the loan was
RMB?7.452 billion at the end of 2017,
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Urban Renewal (2013-2017) Phase | -
Yangzhou Ecological and Sci-tech
City, Jiangsu
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As a major component in the social
housing initiative in the Yangzhou region,
this project will help improve the quality
of life for local residents, improve the land
use efficiency, and restore the surrounding
environment. The Bank made a loan
commitment of RMB2.125 billion to this
project, and the balance of the loan was
RMB1.830 billion at the end of 2017.

/
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STRONG BACKING OF THE STATE’S MAJOR STRATEGIES
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In 2017, the Bank closely aligned its efforts with the state’s major medium- and long-term development strategies, leveraged the key role
of investments in structural adjustments and helped optimize China’s economic structure with strong support to the strategic emerging

industries, new urbanization and balanced regional development, and green financing, and made new contributions in driving the continued
economic growth of China.

g» iR B ETL = SUPPORTING THE STRATEGIC EMERGING INDUSTRIES
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In keeping with the innovation-driven development strategy, the Bank is a major contributor to the formulation of development plans for
key industries, including the strategic emerging industries. The Bank promotes the transformation and upgrade of the manufacturing

industry, and provides strong support to key areas, including integrated circuits, new energy automobiles and new materials. In 2017, the
Bank provided RMB344.3 billion in loans to the strategic emerging industries, up 45.2% from the previous year.
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BOECD G6 LTPS/AMOLED Production Line

AFRRZIFRETRRTEE - K2R MOLEDAE =%,
SUBEESHE N B ROHMN = LU RE KT AHIZME
FRIEWER2301Z 7T, B E201 7 R XK FM60.661Z 7T,

The Bank's funding support enabled Chengdu BOE Optoelectronics
("BOECD") to build the first fully flexible OLED production line in China,
an industrialization breakthrough for China in the high-end flexible display

sector. The Bank made a loan commitment of RMB23.0 billion to this project,
and the balance of the loan was RMB6.066 billion at the end of 2017.
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SMIC 12-inch IC Production Line in Shenzhen
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As part of its commitment to support the domestic leader in IC manufacturing
to heighten its international competitiveness and further improve China’s self-
sufficiency in IC manufacturing, the Bank continues to fund the capacity upgrade
of Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (SMIC). The Bank
made a loan commitment of RMB5.4 billion to this project, and the balance of
the loan was RMB1.214 billion at the end of 2017.
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In 2017, the Bank provided RMB313.3 billion new urbanization loans to support utility tunnels, sponge cities, distinct and unique towns,
expansion and upgrade of development zones, upgrade of urban infrastructure, among other sectors. Key projects included utility tunnels
in Guangzhou, Inner Mongolia and Henan, and the fishery town of Zhoushan and the robot town of Yuyao, as part of the efforts to promote
distinct industries. By integrating sponge city construction, river region environmental remediation and urban ecologic restoration, the Bank
helped deliver the pilot sponge city construction projects in Wuhan, Dalian, Sanya and Pingxiang, among others.
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The PPP New Urbanization Construction (Phase 1) in the New District of Changchun, Jilin
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This represents a key component in the infrastructure construction of Changchun New District, a national-level new district, and has a

critical role in driving the revival of the old industrial bases in Northeast China and fueling the local economic development. The Bank
made a loan commitment of RMB27.0 billion to the project, and the balance of the loan was RMB4.007 billion at the end of 2017.

o TTILMRMTLRAER (FIEAER) TR
Utility Tunnel Construction (South Canal Section) in
Shenyang, Liaoning
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This is the first public-private partnerships (PPP) infrastructure

construction project in Shenyang. The Bank made a loan

commitment of RMB1.485 billion to this project, and the
balance of the loan was RMB0.4 billion at the end of 2017.
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Beijing New Airport
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This is a major strategic construction project designed to meet the increasing air transportation needs in the Beijing area
and drive the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region. The Bank has provided RMB2.382 billion funding
to the project.
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In line with the Three Strategic Initiatives (the BRI, coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, and development of the Yangtze
Economic Belt) and the plans for the Four Regions (leading the way by the Eastern Region, development of the Western Region, revival of the
Northeastern Region, and boom of the Central Region), the Bank provided strong support to coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region, prepared the financing and investment master plans for the Xiongan New Area, fueled the development of the Yangtze Economic
Belt, boosted the construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and deepened comprehensive financial cooperation
with Xinjiang and Tibet. In 2017, the Bank provided RMB542.1 billion in loans to the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, and the loan balance
increased by RMB498.1 billion and RMB438.1 billion for central, western and northeastern China and the Yangtze Economic Belt, respectively.

% AT TiR AL EELERX
Meishan Bonded Area of Ningbo Zhoushan Port, Zhejiang
AUBELEMRERBRTENEHTRBEOZFENKI=ZANBXEFHSRR. RTTHZEK
6#—10#&ERFEML TIEM BRI 3. 7712 7T,
Infrastructure construction at the Zhoushan Port will effectively propel the economic and social development in the Ningbo Port

Economic Zone and the Yangtze Delta Region. The Bank provided RMB377 million in funding support to the construction of 6#-
10# container terminals in the port area.

_ PORT OF NINGBO
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1 K& REZEEF STRONG PROMOTION OF GREEN FINANCING
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The Bank has set three major targets in driving energy

saving in industrial sectors and green development,

namely ecological and environmental protection, green urban

and rural construction, and green industrial transformation, and

supported various projects, mainly including the first group of
comprehensive water environment restoration and protection projects

in the Yangtze Economic Belt (Hubei section), comprehensive rural
environmental restoration in Qinghai, and the central heating project for
Datang’s Thermal Power Station in Baoding. At the end of 2017, the balance
of the Bank's green loans was RMB1,642.3 billion, and every year, these loans
contributed to energy saving of 53.27 million tons of coal equivalent, reduction
in carbon dioxide emission of 132.52 million tons, reduction in sulphur c
emission of 1.66 million tons, reduction in nitrogen oxides emission ¢

tons, reduction in ammonia nitrogen emission of 50 thousand t

225.66 million tons, and reduction in chemical oxygen demand b

In 2017, the Bank focused on fueling the developmen
renewable energies, including wind power, solar po
various clean energy projects, including the win y
Investment Corporation (SPIC) in Jiangxi >

photovoltaic p o
b
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SUPPORTING THE BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE (BRI)
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In 2017, the Bank’s international operations continued to grow robustly. As part of its efforts to support the first Belt and Road Forum for
International Cooperation (BRF), the Bank facilitated the inclusion of 25 projects in five sub-categories in the BRF's list of achievements. The Bank
took solid actions to deliver its commitments of RMB250 billion-equivalent special loans, and had completed reviewing an equivalent of RMB99.1
billion of these loans. The Bank adopted innovative financing and investment solutions for the BRI, with increased funding support to key regions,
key areas and key industries. With USD17.6 billion BRI loans in the past year, the Bank provided funding to support infrastructure connectivity,
production capacity and equipment manufacturing cooperation, financial cooperation and overseas industrial parks. As part of its ongoing efforts
to advancing bilateral and multilateral financial cooperation and expand the base of friends in financial cooperation, the Bank sponsored the
establishment of the China-CEEC (Central and Eastern European Countries) Interbank Association, and continued to deepen and expand financial
cooperation with member banks of SCO (Shanghai Cooperation Organization) Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, and
BRICS Interbank Cooperation Mechanism. As an active sponsor of the “Go Global” efforts of internationally competitive Chinese enterprises, the
Bank provided USD13.4 billion foreign currency loans to large group clients. Through private placements, the Bank issued USD350 million special
BRI bonds in Hong Kong, and created a new financing option for the BRI through the Mainland-Hong Kong market connect mechanism. The
Bank was the lead underwriter of Maybank's RMB1 billion Bond Connect panda bond, the first Bond Connect panda bond in ASEAN countries
and the Chinese bond market issued specifically to support the BRI efforts at home and abroad. With respect to promoting the internationalization
of Renminbi, the Bank also increased its cross-border Renminbi credit cooperation. At the end of 2017, the Bank continued to maintain leading
position in supporting China’s overseas financing and investment efforts, with a balance of foreign currency loans equivalent to USD261.7 billion
and a balance of cross-border Renminbi loans of RMB83.4 billion.

In 2017, the Bank diligently contributed wisdom from China to the BRI by delivering itself as a major driving force by combining funding, planning and its
role as a think tank. The Bank promoted the researches for and formulation of major international cooperation plans, and delivered 9 bilateral cooperation
plans, including those involving Tajikistan, Laos and Kuwait, 3 economic corridor cooperation plans, including the China-Mongolia-Russia Economic
Corridor, and various special plans, including China-Vietnam onshore infrastructure cooperation. In its role as a think tank, the Bank joined force with
United Nations Development Programme and Peking University to issue the Economic Development along the Belt and Road 2017, partnered with the
China Center for International Economic Exchanges and the Silk Road Planning and Research Center to issue the Report on the Trade and Investment
Index of the Belt and Road, teamed up with the World Bank to issue a report on Africa’s development titled Leapfrogging Through Innovation, and in four
languages, issued the Report on the Sustainable Development of BRICS Countries (2017). The Bank also launched planning and research projects for
capacity cooperation with selected African countries, China-Brazil PPP cooperation, China-Peru PPP cooperation, among others.
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In 2017, the Bank devoted huge efforts to promote exchanges and training programs. It set up its CDB Institute of Development Finance to
promote the Chinese experience, Chinese culture and the development finance concepts, and to promote exchange and connectivity among
the people. As part of its commitment to promote bilateral exchanges and training in partnership with Shanghai Cooperation Organization
Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, and BRICS Interbank Cooperation Mechanism, the Bank organized 26 BRI bilateral
exchange and training programs for 651 participations in 51 BRI countries, and provided the BRI scholarships to support the long-term studies
of 52 overseas students in China and one-off rewards to 44 outstanding overseas students in China.

& HE10ZER T E TS H

Sino-Hungary 1 Billion Euro Loan Facility
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In May 2017, through an EUR79 million on-lending loan of Hungarian Development Bank, the CDB provided
funding support to Wanhua-BorsodChem for the construction of a chlorine production line, and delivered
the first concrete result in the Sino-Hungary 1 billion Euro loan facility cooperation, a major milestone in
implementing the BRI and the China-CEEC cooperation (the 1641 Cooperation). At the end of 2017, the loan
balance was EUR20 million.
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500 KV Electric Power Transmission Lines Project in
Egypt

ZIEZBRREAER KO ELBENE , X
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This is so far the largest electric power transmission lines
project in Egypt, and will bring a huge boost to the power
supply capacity of Egypt’s power grid. The Bank made a loan
commitment of USD231 million, and the outstanding balance of
the loan was USD116 million at the end of 2017.

¢ FEIRSAFIERSLER

China-Indonesia Morowali Industrial Park
AHTEAERZ M MBEREPKPRME T, I
EHLHBEFHIER BUTESHMERALEE
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11.68{23 7T, TIFRARIM9.6912% L.

The Bank has provided long-term funding to a number of
projects in the Morowali Industrial Park, and has become a
major force in driving the local economic development and
promoting China-Indonesia bilateral cooperation. At the end of

2017, the Bank’s cumulative loan commitments were USD1.168
billion, and the balance of loans was USD969 million.
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PLANNING AND RESEARCH
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The Bank adheres to the “plan ahead” principle in its efforts to support the national constructions in key areas and development of weak sectors.
In 2017, the Bank launched 46 planning projects for key industries and strategic clients, entered into the Agreement for Strategic Cooperation
in Support of Strategic Emerging Industries with the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), completed the Major Action Plans
for the Strategic Emerging Industries in association with the Chinese Academy of Engineering, and assisted NDRC in completing more than ten
planning and research projects for key industries, notably the Planning and Research for Urban Environmental Infrastructure Constructions Across
China during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period. The Bank also organized 61 regional planning initiatives to drive regional financing planning and more
effectively support the local economic development, completed the Financing Planning for Environmental Protection and Green Development of the

Yangtze Economic Belt in Hubei Province, and assisted NDRC in completing the 13th Five-Year Period Planning for the Revival of Northeast China
and the Development Plan for the Eastern Economic Zone of Northeast China.

The Bank always places a high priority on researches and sharing its knowledge and thought leadership in supporting the national
development strategies. In 2017, CDB was selected as one of the national top think tank institutions, the only financial institution among the
think tanks, and the Bank was named Chinese Core Think Tank of the Year by the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Working closely with
relevant government departments and agencies in researches on major decisions, the Bank delivered a large number of research papers
on various topics, including the BRI strategic infrastructure investment and financing mechanisms and policy-oriented housing financing
rules, which were included in the Report of China Top Think Tanks. Given the significant role of post-doctoral research workstations in talent
recruitment and development, the Bank developed its provisional management measures for post-doctoral research workstations, as part of its
ongoing efforts to improve the rules and procedures for think tank talent development.
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In 2017, drawing on its sovereign credit status, the Bank continued to enhance its fund raising and management systems, made diligent efforts
to promote the CDB bond market, adopted innovative funding channels and businesses and products, and further strengthened its centralized
assets and liabilities management and fund operations, to provide adequate funding assurance for its operations and development. In 2017,
the Bank issued RMB1.65 trillion Renminbi financial bonds and USD9.0 billion overseas bonds, as its cumulative bond issuance exceeded
RMB15 trillion. The ratings accorded to the Bank by international rating agencies, including Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s, have always been
the same as China’s sovereign rating.

Continuous expanding of funding channels. The Bank made earnest efforts to expand the reach of its CDB bonds to interbank markets,
exchanges, the counters of commercial banks and the overseas markets through the Bond Connect mechanism, and diversified its investor
base to include financial institutions, enterprise and individuals, to more effectively raise medium- and long-term funds from domestic
and overseas markets. In 2017, the Bank issued more than RMB40 billion bonds through the counters, online banks and mobile banks of
commercial banks, through more than ten thousand banking outlets across China, and through many different bond types, including green
bonds and poverty alleviation bonds. The Bank was the first to offer its Bond Connect bonds in the interbank bond market, and opened new
channels for Renminbi funding in domestic and overseas markets.

Active promotion of the CDB bond market. The Bank is committed to applying innovative efforts in supporting the market infrastructure
construction for bond issuance, trading and settlement in the Chinese bond markets, and making active contributions to helping financial
institutions optimize their asset portfolios. The annual volume of trading on the CDB bonds was RMB22 trillion, accounting for 23% of the
market, and the yield curve of CDB bonds has become a major benchmark for the bond markets and banks’ internal fund transfer pricing.
The Bank innovated the transactions for bond swap, the very first such transaction in China, and adopted innovative tools to actively manage
the existing debt portfolio and improve the value of debt securities investments. The Bank also improved its when-issued trading, diversified
the hedging instruments for its CDB bonds, and further optimized its price discovery mechanisms in the bond markets. With the successful
introduction of the ten-year LOF index fund in association with other institutions and the offering of swap products benchmarked against CDB
bond interest rates, the Bank further consolidated its leadership position in the domestic bond markets.
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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In 2017, the intermediary business grew steadily. Total issuance of ABS products amounted to RMB37.0 billion, as the Bank continued to lead
the market in this area with a cumulative issuance of over RMB300 billion. With the successful issuance of the first special poverty-alleviation
ABS product, the Bank offered a practical solution to tackle the funding difficulties for poverty alleviation efforts, and attracted private capital
to support the poverty alleviation cause. The Bank also explored the possibilities to use large performance guarantees to support PPP
infrastructure projects, and completed the first transaction under the new L/C rules in China.

In 2017, the Bank acted as lead underwriter for 226 bonds for a total of RMB368.7 billion, and made huge contributions to helping the real
economy lower its financing costs. As part of its efforts to guide market funds to support constructions in weak sectors, the Bank underwrote
for a number of special products, including the medium-term green notes of CGN Wind Energy, and special poverty alleviation notes for
Guizhou Expressway Group and Hubei Provincial Communications Investment Group. The Bank made continuous efforts to promote the robust
development of its bond underwriting operations, including monitoring and adapting to bond market changes, raising acceptance criteria for
underwriting projects, ongoing improvement of its internal management mechanisms, streamlining its underwriting process, intensifying sales
and marketing efforts, and strengthening project management during the life of underwriting projects.
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In 2017, the Bank continued to enhance its settlement service system with dedicated efforts in multiple areas to ensure solid business
development, including the setting up of the Head Office proprietary business platform, setting up of independent operating units in branches,
formulating the new generation core system plan, the go-live of the sub-ledger accounting module for China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone,
and further standardization of counter services. The Bank increased its settlement product innovation and promotion, stepped up its efforts in
expanding international settlement, trade finance, cash management, funds depository services for settlement of commodity transactions, and
centralized management of foreign exchange funds, and explored new options for portfolio products, as it further heightened its comprehensive
financial services capability with an annual settlement income of RMB2.4 billion, up 87% from the previous year. Continuous optimization of

settlement methods and system functionalities as well as innovations in treasury operations enabled the Bank to complete RMB252.68 trillion
treasury transactions and bond settlements.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2017, the Bank continued to deepen its strategic cooperation with banking institutions and further expand the scope of cooperation. Based the
Bank’s internal credit ratings, it assigned lines of credit to 99 banking institutions in China, including 24 national banks and 75 urban commercial
banks and rural commercial banks, and successively over the years, its solid contributions have won the Best Performance in Syndication Loans
Awards, Best Development in Syndication Loans Awards and Award for Contribution to Syndication Loans from the Syndications and Transactions
Committee of China Banking Association. The Bank also assigned credit ratings and lines of credit to 10 insurance companies, 10 securities

companies and 4 asset management companies, and engaged in extensive cooperation with them in various areas, including the use of insurance
funds, asset management and financial leasing.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2017, as part of its continued efforts to improve people development, the Bank further deepened the reform of its people development
system and mechanisms, steadily implemented the reform for specialized positions, expanded the career development paths for its people,
strengthened the cultivation of young managerial talents, improved daily management and oversight, and intensified its efforts in building
a strong and high-quality managerial team. The Bank further enhanced its performance management mechanisms and compensation
management rules and procedures to more effectively inspire and motivate the people. Through expanded talent recruitment channels, the
Bank attracted more than 600 professionals in various fields.
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In 2017, in light of its business development and risk prevention and mitigation needs, the Bank made active efforts to improve its
organizational structure, including internal structure of its branches, to more efficiently support the state’s strategies. At the end of 2017,
the Bank’s domestic network included 37 tier-one branches and 3 tier-two branches, while its overseas network included 1 branch and 6
representative offices, and the Bank also had 5 majority-owned subsidiaries.
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STAFF TRAINING
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In 2017, in support of the overall reform and development needs, the Bank organized comprehensive training programs in various forms,
on different levels, and for all members as a major means to develop its workforce. For managerial members, the Bank designed a host of
training programs, including the subject matter reading club for the “chiefs” of all functional units for 4 successive years, the collective and
rotational training on the 19th National Congress of the CPC and Sixth Plenary Session of the 18th CPC Central Committee for managerial
members above the division chief level (included), leaders learning workshops, subject matter workshops, training program for new managerial
members, among others. Internationally and as part of its efforts to build a strong pipeline of experts, the Bank deepened its cooperation with
MIT, University of Michigan, Frankfurt University and University of Manchester, and selected young staff for secondment at Barclays Bank.
Focusing on key priorities, including the Three-Step Reform Strategy, poverty alleviation and urban renewal, the Bank organized 83 rounds of
training for over 20 thousand participations to heighten the people’s overall business competence.
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IT MANAGEMENT
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In 2017, the Bank steadily implemented its IT development plans for the 13th Five-Year Period to drive the leapfrog development of its IT
operations. In addition to heightened support to top priorities, including meeting business development needs in the China (Shanghai) Pilot
Free Trade Zone and the business tax to VAT reform, the Bank successfully rolled out a number of key systems, including the Bond System
Phase Ill, Group Client Management Systems and Corporate Wealth Management Comprehensive Management System, and enabled the
connection between its commercial paper system with the PBOC’s commercial paper exchange. On the planning front, the Bank completed
the design and plan for its new generation core system, and also the special plans for CDB smart banking and electronic banking. The
building of a unified software environment (USE 2.0) enabled the Bank to create a mobile app platform and nurture an ecosystem for its micro
apps, as the Bank continued to drive the transformation and upgrade of its IT framework. The Bank deepened its data management and
applications, strengthened its closed loop data management, and built its mashup bid data platform and big data innovation systems to drive
value discovery and risk prevention and mitigation. The Bank also completed the infrastructure construction for its Daoxianghu Data Center
Park, built the relocation IT management system and integration IT maintenance system, rolled out the cloud-based development and testing
platform and enabled disaster recovery backups for all key systems.
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As part of its commitment to the principle of “Operate as One Bank, Deliver Customer Experience as One Bank and Deliver Services as

One Bank”, the Bank continued to push its subsidiaries to intensify their efforts in market-oriented and specialization reforms, enhance their
corporate governance, improve their growth potentials and profitability, and heighten their contribution to the Bank.

! EFEMAREELA
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) was established in August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB60.6 billion. In line of the commitment
to support national strategies and improve investment profitability, CDB Capital continued to step up efforts in building a national leading
platform and first-class asset management company in 2017, and made RMB60.3 billion new investments. As part of its support to the
state’s rural revival strategies, CDB Capital helped the successful implementation of the first pilot urban farming programs across China.
Its strategic investment in CRRC Corporation Limited helped the manufacturing giant to achieve its transformation and upgrades. In its
support of the state’s innovation-driven development strategy, CDB Capital invested in National Integrated Circuit Industry Fund, and the
combination of investments and loans produced solid results. As a concrete contribution to the Belt and Road initiatives, CDB Capital
set up the Sino-French SME Fund I, a fund aimed to raise EUR0.23 billion. By the end of 2017, CDB Capital’s total assets amounted to
RMB136.0 billion, and the assets under management RMB270.0 billion.

7 EFIEERBBRA A
CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities), set up in August 2010 and restructured into a joint-stock company on 25 August 2017, has
a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion, and is a class-A company pursuing business development in seven major areas, namely debt
financing, equity financing, proprietary investments, asset management, margin trading, brokerage, and international operations. In 2017,
CDB Securities underwrote 136 bonds for a total of RMB121.430 billion. The size of its asset management portfolio was RMB180.397
billion, up 18.66% from the previous year. For the sixth time, CDB Securities was featured in the winner list published by Financial News and
the Institute of Finance and Banking of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, and the winner of the Best Trading Company in the Bond
Market of the Year and the Most Socially Responsible Securities Company of the Year awards. By the end of 2017, CDB Securities’ total
assets had amounted to RMB43.396 billion.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Leasing) was established in May 2008 with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion, and was listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016. In 2017, CDB Leasing continued to optimize its business mix and geographical
presence, and made vigorous efforts to improve its specialization in aircraft, infrastructure, ship leasing and other business areas. Key
achievements included the successful opening of its aircraft subsidiary, CDB Aviation Lease Finance (CDB Aviation), in Ireland, innovative
offering of ship operating leasing solutions, and joint sponsoring of China’s first green leasing community. By the end of 2017, its total
assets had amounted to RMB187.099 billion.

FEXREEHRLA

China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund), established in June 2007, is the first Chinese equity investment fund dedicated to investments
in Africa. In 2017, as part of its mission to support the Chinese enterprises in their development in Africa and also contribute to Africa’s
sustainable economic, social and environmental developments, the CAD Fund made diligent efforts to translate the deliverables of
the Johannesburg Summit of Forum on China-Africa Cooperation into concrete actions, and aligned its resources with the Ten Major
Cooperation Programs to drive major projects in industrialization and capacity cooperation, agricultural and medical cooperation,
infrastructure, energy and resources, among other areas. Highlights in the past year included the establishment of the South Africa
Headquarters for the overseas infrastructure platform, creation of a joint fund with the Gates Foundation, and the successful opening up
of the Macao Headquarters of the China-Portuguese-Speaking Countries Cooperation and Development Fund (CPD Fund). At the end of
2017, the CAD Fund’s cumulative decision investments increased to USD4.556 billion, as it further consolidated its position as the leading
platform for China’s investments in Africa.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2017, the Bank diligently implemented all the decisions and arrangements of the Central Government for preventing and mitigating financial risks,
earnestly promote the adoption of and compliance with the Regulation on China Development Bank, further fortified its safety network for integrated
risk prevention and mitigation, and improved and formulated various risk management rules and procedures, including the CDB Comprehensive
Risk Management Measures. It also adopted innovative risk management and control mechanisms, optimized the group-level management system,
distributed handbooks to promote risk culture and awareness, solidly promoted risk management accountability, and employed a combination of

means and methods to help the branches and subsidiaries enhance their risk management capabilities. By the end of 2017, the Bank’s non-performing
loans had reached RMB76.798 billion and the NPL ratio was only 0.70%, a record sustained under 1% for 51 consecutive quarters.

15 FH XU

CREDIT RISK
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In view of the medium- and long-term nature of the majority of its businesses, the Bank has adopted an internal rating system and credit review
measures most appropriate for the medium- and long-term features. In 2017, the Bank further improved its credit management rules and procedures
to better align with its business development and adapt to internal and external changes as well as the risk profile of its asset portfolio, and also
increased its attention to security and environment protection in credit reviews. It continued to improve its internal rating system and strengthen asset
classification and classification-based quality management. For more effective management of its asset portfolio, the Bank developed a management
framework for dynamic adjustments and analysis, improved the method for pre-lending estimation of economic values, and enhanced the stress
testing management system. For credit risk monitoring, the Bank enhanced dynamic monitoring, issued the rules and procedures for quick responses
to major risk events, and strengthened the early warning management system focusing on both early warning signals and high-risk clients. In light
of the concentration risks of group clients, the Bank made changes to its rules and systems to take advantage of big data technology and further
improve its capability to prevent and mitigate risk contagion. In addition, the Bank maintained a high level of sensitivity to risk changes, increased risk
analyses and assessments of key clients and projects, major cooperative countries, headlines, and key industries, implemented a proactive approach
in risk screening in key areas so as to heighten the Bank's foresight and the capability to anticipate issues in its credit risk management.

In 2017, the Bank further improved the details of its credit risk measurement. In accordance with the CBRC'’s capital management rules and requirements
and in light of CDB's business profile, the Bank established a credit rating system encompassing rating methods, policies, processes and IT supporting
systems, built a binary rating framework to combine obligor rating and facility rating, and expanded the rating scope to cover all corporate lending
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activities. At the same time, the Bank included country rating, sovereign rating, local government rating, industry rating and regional rating as part of its
overall rating exercises. After completing the rating model for group clients, the Bank expanded its rating dimensions to include group clients.

In 2017, a year for the Bank to improve its credit management, the Bank focused on the prevention, control, and resolution of NPLs, deepened
its credit culture building, and improved on the details of its basic credit management. By adopting best practices and tailored solutions, the
Bank combined both funding support and knowledge transfer in bailing out distressed enterprises, took measures to effectively manage its
debts in the course of helping over-capacity enterprises, and made deleveraging efforts that enabled both enterprises and the Bank to reduce
their risks. Thanks to efforts both in risk prevention and mitigation and NPL resolution, and increased write-off of NPLs in accordance with the
state’s policies, the Bank completed NPL write-off and transfer of RMB18.8 billion.

7 XU B

MARKET RISK
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In 2017, the Bank further strengthened its market risk management to effectively address its financial market risk exposures, heightened its
group-level market risk management to meet the regulatory requirements, and formulated the CDB Market Risk Management Measures. For
treasury operations, the Bank continued to improve the rules and procedures in relation to market risk management, enhance the means
and methods for market risk identification, measurement, monitoring and control, and further strengthen its risk management and control

capabilities in this area. By staying abreast with financial market changes at home and abroad and through regular stress testing exercises, the
Bank also maintained a high level of readiness to address and mitigate its risk exposures.

R AEXURS

OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2017, the Bank’s operational risk management capability improved significantly thanks to its continued efforts in streamlining operational
risk management mechanisms, and greater focus and investment in this area, including optimizing personnel structuring and strengthening
oversight and accountability in line with regulatory requirements and internal and external changes, further increasing monitoring and
assessment of operational risks, and conducting special inspections of key businesses and areas, including credit and settlement. Legal risk
remained a top priority as the Bank made comprehensive improvement to its management and control capability, including the building of a
contract management system and using a computerized dynamic legal risk management platform to achieve standardized and detail-driven
contract management. The Bank created the first five-level country by country legal risk rating system, and embedded the rating results in its
international loan pricing. As part of its efforts to more effectively leverage legal means and methods to collect and recover loans, the Bank
prepared watch out lists for and classified these collection and recovery projects to better achieve the desired results.

it B T XUBE

LIQUIDITY RISK
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The Bank endeavours to maintain optimal maturity matching between and a balanced mix of its assets and liabilities, and makes dynamic
adjustments in response to its business development needs and market changes. In 2017, in line with its prudent liquidity management
approach and in light of the funding sources and applications specific to a development finance institution, the Bank continued to improve

its cycle-neutral funding and liquidity management policies. In order to maintain a strong bankwide liquidity position, the Bank expanded its
liquidity management system to cover all its business processes from the upstream, through the midstream, and to the downstream, and
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adopted a number of effective measures, including dynamic monitoring of the bankwide cashflow gaps and asset-liability matching position,
regular liquidity stress testing, liquidity risk buffers, and adequate liquidity reserves.
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COMPLIANCE RISK
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In 2017, the Bank made earnest efforts to promote compliance culture, further improve the compliance risk management system, and strengthen
compliance risk identification and management. The Bank worked closely with the CBRC in offsite oversight, onsite inspections, regulatory interviews and
researches, among other work, and had achieved notable results from remedial efforts to address issues identified in the regulatory activities. A series of
compliance efforts had been made during the year, including special screening of credit risks, follow-up of the remediation revisiting and self-assessment
efforts for the purpose of strengthening both internal control and external oversight as well as deterring non-compliant and illegal activities, and special
governance programs designed to eradicate market ills, curb improper innovations, improper transactions, improper incentives and improper fees (the
Four Improper Activities), crack down violations of financial laws, regulatory rules and internal regulations (the Three Violations), and thwart regulatory
arbitrage, “idle” arbitrage, and associated arbitrage (the Three Arbitrages). As part of its efforts to promote risk management accountability, the Bank
undertook to build its “1+13+1" risk management accountability system tailored for its own business profile and management needs, increased
accountability training, and dedicated strong efforts to cultivate a compliance culture of NO to non-compliant behaviours. The Bank also increased
compliance management in its foreign exchange operations, and its diligent implementation of foreign exchange regulatory requirements earned the
Bank the Class A rating for the fifth consecutive year in the compliance assessment of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
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The Bank’s capital management includes capital adequacy ratio management, economic capital management and book capital management.
The Bank manages its capital resources to support national strategies, meet regulatory requirements, and preserve and increase the value of
state-owned capital, so as to effectively support, guide and safeguard its business development.

In 2017, the Bank maintained steady growth in its profitability, while its total capital further increased and capital structure remained stable, with
effective replenishment of capital from internal sources. In light of its positioning and characteristics as a development finance institution, the Bank
continued to improve its capital management rules and practices, including optimisation of its capital discipline based on capital adequacy ratio,
and adopted various measures, including more cost-effective and precise capital management, heightened capital budgeting, and more effective
dynamic management of capital sources, to further enhance its capital utilization and return, make full use of capital as a tool in facilitating
budgeting, pricing and performance assessment, and provide solid assurance for the sustainable and robust development of the Bank.

As calculated under the CBRC's Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant rules and requirements, as of 31 December, 2017, the
CDB's total capital was RMB1,474,621 million, total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital were RMB1,225,514 million and RMB1,224,932 million
respectively, and the capital adequacy ratio, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio were 11.57%, 9.61% and 9.60%
respectively; in terms of the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,422,763 million, both total Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total Tier 1 capital were
RMB1,180,625 million, capital adequacy ratio was 11.43%, and both Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio were 9.46%.
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IT RISK
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In 2017, the Bank clarified the functional divisions of the three defense lines in IT risk management, and set up the IT Management Committee,
as it further improved its IT risk management system. Efforts in improving the rules and procedures came to fruit in the shape of the CDB IT Risk
Management Measures, Provisional Measures of CDB for Determination of Risk Management Responsibilities for IT Functional Lines, and eight
management handbooks in relation to IT security and technological risks, among others. For the purpose of strengthening IT security management,
the Bank intensified efforts in developing risk management and control tools, and built the IT Management Cockpit to enable visualization of IT risks.
Increased efforts were also put in the development and upgrade of key business systems to support bankwide business development and innovation.
In order to effectively ensure business continuity, the Bank made comprehensive revisions to its emergence response plans, and conducted business
continuity and disaster recovery drills on various levels to strengthen the Bank’s emergency management and disaster recovery capability. [T risk
inspections were carried out among branches to improve their IT operations and management. The Bank also sponsored the Annual Conference of
[T Risk Management in Banking Industry: Win-Win through Opening-up and Cooperation — Fintech Ushers in the New Age of Smart Banking.
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REPUTATIONAL RISK
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In 2017, the Bank continued to improve the rules and mechanisms for its reputational risk management and further strengthened its reputational
risk management capability. As part of its daily operations, the Bank increased efforts in monitoring and staying updated about public opinions,
increased interactions and communications, and increased the speed in responding to public concerns. In order to more effectively determine
the accountability for reputational risk management, the Bank further clarified the respective reputational risk management responsibilities of each
department and function. The steady improvement of its reputational risk management enables the Bank to maintain an excellent corporate image.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2017, the Bank continued to improve its internal control mechanisms, rules and procedures, and intensified efforts to comprehensively enhance
its internal control management. Annual internal control assessments and internal control audit were performed in strict compliance with the internal
control assessment rules and procedures, and the Bank was satisfied with the overall effectiveness of its internal controls, and had not identified
any significant weaknesses in its internal control system. The Bank also intensified internal control inspections and corrections, including special
governance self-assessments in strict compliance with regulatory requirements, special examinations of key business areas, comprehensive and
thorough review of rules and policies to identify potential issues, and strict follow-up and remediation of any issues identified. In addressing money
laundering risks, the Bank strictly implemented various regulatory anti-money laundering rules, and continued to strengthen internal control rules
and practices to vigorously minimize the money laundering and terrorist financing risks in international operations, including blacklist screenings,
transaction control, and timely risk examination and elimination exercises. With respect to related-party transactions, the Bank effectively embedded
their management and control in the business processes to further heighten the effectiveness of its related-party transaction management.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AT EFEMERNMEN, B BEREN ABRE" RRIRE. 2. K& RE. ARORONENR, R
REFTEVHSTE NBRERR I XPAMIEEWHE.

20174 AT ENABFAER/TNE . BERT . XENPOT LM ERINENER, RIRR S RUELNEH MR
EMAZFHEFRERAYEHMESHADTER, AESRE. EENER ENAT EUHEMNEARIEL TR, AR 73
TTO16FUHRERIBREAPERER BT TRAELES, RRENATHREZF e RETHELRM
BB NERR. t—PEBEVNEREESRZYN KaEREANEF. eRREBNFERARNIE, RIRSMEK
SEERRA0177TIATHELAREFTECVES KEERERE CIWSERAETHEAREGHNAR
SR BRSW. £EREBUN7TEFFLEFRW HERFUREXRAENINARRES . RS HERT
YHMERRLREE, KRABTHESRE. XA THELRNERME EFHAESREXFTIHELRT
ERI5IFEA,

ATBEB(ERFRBT0I7ETHFELRRE), KEATELSTENTHELRAUANESNLEK.

In delivering CDB as a development finance institution, the Bank is dedicated to strengthening China’s competitiveness, improving
people’s livelihood, and upholds its core values of responsibility, innovation, green growth, prudence and win-win development. The
Bank fulfills its corporate social responsibilities and contributes to building China into a prosperous, strong, democratic, enlightened,
harmonious and beautiful country.

In 2017, delivering CDB as a major development finance institution dedicated to supporting key industries and underdeveloped sectors
during critical periods, the Bank provided strong support to help deepen the supply-side structural reform, went all out to help facilitate
the state’s undertakings in key areas and weak sectors, and made solid contributions to higher-quality, more efficient, fairer and more
sustainable development. The Bank organized the Press Conference and the Tenth-Year Anniversary of the CDB Sustainability Report
2016 to present and highlight CDB'’s consistent efforts and outstanding achievements in promoting the sustainable economic, social
and environment development. The Bank continued to increase its dialogues and engagement with international bodies, including
the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC), the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) and the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI), remained an active participant and contributor in international activities, including UNGC Network 2017 China Business Summit
On Achieving Sustainable Development Goals, a roundtable of UN’s Chinese establishments on the Roles and Contributions of
Businesses in Achieving the UN Sustainable Development Goals, and the GRI Global Conference 2017, and stayed updated on the
latest trends and developments of sustainable development efforts. Domestically, the Bank also increased communications with the
China Banking Association and other Chinese banks and financial institutions to share experience and good practices in fulfilling their
social responsibilities and driving sustainable development, and also to work with them to deliver the financial sector as a driving force in
sustainable development.

The Bank will release China Development Bank Sustainability Report 2017, in which it will provide more information regarding its vision
and practices in fulfilling social responsibilities and promoting sustainable development.
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People’s Bank of China

Award for Banking Technology Development

China Banking Association

Most Socially Responsible Financial Institution

Best Social Responsibility Owner

Best Institution for Special Contribution to Social Responsibility
Best Performance in Syndication Loans

Best Development in Syndication Loans

Award for Contribution to Syndication Loans

Best Bank for Product Innovation in Trade Finance

Best News Work in the Chinese Banking Industry

Leading Institution in Legal Risk Management

United Nations Global Compact Network China

Leading Enterprise in Achieving Sustainable Development Goals

Chinese Institute of Social Science Review of the Chinese Academy

of Social Sciences

Chinese Core Think Tank of the Year

China Government Securities Depository Trust & Clearing Co., Ltd.

Excellent Policy Bond Issuer

Excellent Proprietary Institution

Award for Innovative Contribution to Counter Business

Excellent Issuer of Constituent Bonds in the ChinaBond Green Bond
Indices

Excellent ABS Sponsor

Outstanding Partner in Collateral Transactions

China Foreign Exchange Trade System

Core Dealer of the Renminbi Interbank Market
Top-performing Dealer in the Interbank Monetary Market

Best Technical Achievement in the Renminbi Interbank Market
Top-performing Market Maker in the Interbank Forex Market
Best Market Maker for Back-Office Support

Shanghai Stock Exchange

Top-performing Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds

Shanghai Clearing House

Excellent Clearing Member

Award for Distinctive Performance in Proprietary Clearing for Interest
Rate Swaps

Award for Distinctive Performance in Proprietary Forex Clearing

China Institute of Internal Audit

China Internal Audit Team of the Year 2014 — 2016

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation

Outstanding Contribution Award

China Youth Development Foundation

Best Partner for Project Hope
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people.cn

People’s Social Responsibility Award (12th consecutive year)

People’s Daily

Most Recognized Chinese Brands, on 2017 China Brand Forum

Global Finance

World’s 50 Safest Banks (7th consecutive year)

xinhuanet.com

Award for Social Responsibility for Poverty Alleviation in China

Financial News and the Institute of Finance and Banking of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences

Ten Years of Golden Dragon — Award for Exceptional Achievements
Bank of the Year for Best Support to the Belt and Road Initiative
Best Issuer of the Bond Market

finance.sina.com.cn

Banker of Excellence of the Year - Hu Huaibang, CDB Chairman

Asiamoney

Best Green Policy Bank

The Asset

Best Financial Institution Bonds (CDB’s first $4 billion dual-currency
overseas bond and the Maybank 2017 Renminbi bond (first issue))

International Financing Review

Best Renminbi Bond (Maybank 2017 Renminbi bond (first issue))

China Comment

Award for Extraordinary Financial Services for the Belt and Road
Initiative

Center for International Communication Studies in CIPG,
China Report

Best Overseas Corporate Image (ASEAN region in 2017)

Asian Legal Business

Banking & Financial Services In-House Team of the Year

Financial Computerizing

Award for Distinctive Innovations in FinTech and Financial Services
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BHRRITES A

2017FF12A31H  (BRAFIWI, £MBMHNAARTHEAT)

REHA &IT
N& RIFHRFRBFTHRI 1 264,868 275,469 264,460 273,782
FIE LRI 2 1,129,033 686,853 1,111,631 626,371
FEAS 3 227,739 162,663 227,739 170,576
uﬁﬁgggiii%g s 4 1,151,030 1,175,768 1,030,863 1,072,033
THESRE 5 37,887 25,486 37,922 25,641
ENBRESRE > 6 506,172 680,394 493,783 669,893
RUF S 7 52,144 41,250 51,160 40,425
R GER AR 8 10,642,675 9,894,173 10,541,856 9,782,474
JHEESRA~ 9 522,396 626,085 503,781 601,313
SRR N 10 28,388 1,136 24,841 621
R R IIE R R 11 1,201,815 581,089 1,198,790 578,240
KHARAUR H 12 1,835 1,762 80,387 80,877
& e 3 = 13 72,762 68,815 19,270 19,752
P53 14 2,387 2,446 1,899 1,934
B 15 1,250 1,254 - -
BT RE 16 85,790 90,289 80,067 89,017
HAth ¥ = 17 31,117 25,568 12,172 10,164
BRI 15,959,288 14,340,500 15,680,621 14,043,113
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BHERITETARE - &

20174128318 (BRBHETHAN, &HBENHIARTEIIT)

REH 17
Py 20164 20164
12H831H 12H31H
& b R H At BATLAD F BRI 19 3,264,100 2,212,391 3,264,110 2,213,019
1) BT 0 H o & BRANLAG A 5K 20 366,992 361,864 254,159 252,257
N 21 85,329 65,493 81,529 65,193
uiﬁ‘;fﬁﬁ%iiii;ﬂ% 22 164,959 128,917 164,744 128,778
PTHE SRR AR 5 33,495 32,150 33,489 32,116
SE U B 1 £ 5 R 5K 23 19,327 12,589 7,790 -
R UL TF K 24 2,070,579 2,178,492 2,102,307 2,184,431
R ATER T3 2,079 1,854 1,578 1,445
AR 25 23,881 55,162 18,061 52,341
NAFE 26 172,887 156,618 171,598 155,671
it s R 27 2,157 3,663 2,270 4,068
ERITRFILES 28 8,446,592 7,898,521 8,372,128 7,824,695
i JE A5 0 16 2,198 2,752 = -
HAth R 29 64,238 67,314 24,661 24,279
k&t 14,718,813 13,177,780 14,498,424 12,938,293
A&
KA K 30 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
TARNIR 31 182,636 182,637 182,195 182,195
Hibma WA 32 (4,919) 3,340 (5,090) (1,599)
BEAR 33 121,672 100,485 121,672 100,485
— R A 34 213,934 186,732 210,397 183,336
ROECFE 35 284,876 247,104 251,775 219,155
BEFEBASIMAENG AT 1,219,447 1,141,546 1,182,197 1,104,820
DEBRRA 36 21,028 21,174 = -
FEEREAET 1,240,475 1,162,720 1,182,197 1,104,820
AT A AN AT 15,959,288 14,340,500 15,680,621 14,043,113

Ja B 55 1R B E A A Y S5 AR AR A A AR 4

EOBMEEIBMAMFRERATINTAES .

BEK . BT HEE=EK. 7K. BZAX WMERFEA - HEE
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BHRIRITHIER

2017FEE (BAFIHN, S|P AARTEAT)

4=

EH x1T

—. Bl 166,311 222,677 142,557 203,083
FIRFN 37 180,250 136,124 171,077 130,003
FIEBA 560,484 501,193 543,931 487,130
FlE S (380,234) (365,069) (372,854) (357,127)
FEHARMBEFERAN 38 9,773 13,151 8,634 12,310
FHEHERBERAN 10,900 14,160 9,367 13,041
FEBERAELIH (1,127) (1,009) (733) (731)
BHEW 39 20,525 5,590 6,377 (5,005)
Hep . SBHEMNEELVHRARS 94 153 5 14
NRMERFHRH 40 3,857 (8,000) 11,220 (2,774)
CRME 41 (57,002) 69,794 (55,964) 68,379
SRS ON 42 7,382 6,018 31 170

H bl ik 1,526 - 1,182 -

Z. Bl (25,788) (111,424) (10,049) (97,841)
e R 43 (3,899) (11,102) (3,560) (10,470)

W g R EIEHR 44 (12,177) (12,125) (9,985) (9,875)

A RERE 45 (5,080) (82,770) 1,709 (77,289)
Hthdr & A 46 (4,632) (5,427) 1,787 (207)

=. BAFE 140,523 111,253 132,508 105,242
L= N2 N PN 191 29,585 92 29,461

B B (90) (€] (83) (81)

M. FE SR 140,624 140,747 132,517 134,622
B FRERLEE A 47 (27,035) (31,080) (25,449) (29,823)

. &FE 113,589 109,667 107,068 104,799
- AEFERASMAEERNEFE 112,387 109,047 107,068 104,799

- DERERBR S 1,202 620 = -

N, Htg W amnF R e 32 (8,557) (7,695) (3,491) (3,613)
HETEATIMAEENHEMGERGENTESM (8,259) (8,007) (3,491) (3,613)
(—) MEARREEDRHRENEMBLEE KA (63) 63 (63) 63
(Z) UERBES XK RANE LS K (8,196) (8,070) (3,428) (3,676)

1 HEESRE S ARNMEER (6,722) (8,461) (3,158) (3,764)
2HNHIRFINEZH (1,437) 315 (270) 88

3.HAth (37) 76 - -
ABRFOHBRENEME SR NBE S8 (298) 312 = -

t. GEKEBE 105,032 101,972 103,577 101,186
AEFEAIFEENGERFA LA 104,128 101,040 103,577 101,186
HEFOEBRRNG SRR 904 932 = -

TR W SRR I A A SRR A IR .



BHEENZEEME / 71

BHAEENAENR

20176 E (BRAFIWN, STRMIYHARTEI )

HEFEARMAEENS
—. 201751 B1BRH 421,248 182,637 3,340 100,485 186,732 247,104 1,141,546 21,174 1,162,720
Z. BT HEH
(—) %Fi3E - - - - - 112,387 112,387 1,202 113,589
(Z) Hihr AW E T E \. 32 = = (8,259) = = = (8,259) (298)  (8,557)
Ei (=) F(Z) it - = (8,259) = - 112,387 104,128 904 105,032
(Z) ITEERANAR = = = = = - - 471 471
(M) 508k FzBEAZS N\ 35 - - - - - @7) (27) 27 -
(7)) FEE
1TEBRBRAR J\. 35 - - - 21,187 - (21,187) - - -
2RI — MRS A& J\. 35 - - - - 27,408  (27,408) = = =
3BRFIHNE A, 35 = = = = - (26,200)  (26,200) (432)  (26,632)
(%) Hfth /xs;fz - ) - - (206) 207 - (1,116)  (1,116)
=. 2017412831 A% 421,248 182,636 _ (4.919) 121,672 213934 284,876 1,219,447 _ 21,028 1,240,475
—. 201651 A1 B &% 421248 182,196 11,347 80,404 147,064 222,065 1,064,324 5,933 1,070,257
Z. BT HER
(—) % FE - - - - - 109,047 109,047 620 109,667
(Z) Hfhz AT E \. 32 - - (8,007) - - - (8,007) 312 (7,695)
B (=) F(Z) it - - (8,007) - - 109,047 101,040 932 101,972
(Z) 50 8R8FzENZS A3 - 441 - - - (256) 185 14,337 14,522
() FEE
1TRBBRAR A. 35 - - - 20,081 - (20,081) - - -

2R A /\. 35 - - -

39,668  (39,668) - - -

3BHNE . 85 - - - - ~ (24,003)  (24,003) (28)  (24,031)

=. 2016512831 HRE 421,248 182,637 3,340 100,485 186,732 247,104 1,141,546 21,174 1,162,720
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WITHEEN LR

20176 E (BRAFINN, SHBRMUHIARTEL )

—. 201741 H1B 45 421248 182,195 (1,599) 100,485 183,336 219,155 1,104,820
Z. AEHRTHER
(=) %F58 - - - - - 107,068 107,068
(Z) Hhir ol N, 32 = = (3,491) = = - (3,491)
L (=) F(Z) At - - (3,491) - - 107,068 103,577
(=) FEaE
1TRBBRAR J\. 35 = = = 21,187 = (21,187) =
2RB—BNE AR J\. 35 = = = = 27,061 (27,061) =
3.REF R J\. 35 = = = = - (26,200) (26,200)
=. 20174 12H31HE&H 421,248 182,195 (5,090) _ 121,672 _ 210,397 _ 251,775 1,182,197
—. 201641 H1E&H 421,248 182,195 2,014 80,404 144,256 197,776 1,027,893
Z. AERETHER
(—) BFHE - - - - - 104,799 104,799
(Z) el N, 32 - - (3,613) - - - (3.613)
L& (=) F0(Z) it - - (3,613) - - 104,799 101,186
(Z) EPEREZBNRS - - - - - (256) (256)
() #5858
1TRRERAR A. 35 - - - 20,081 - (20,081) -
2RI BRE A& A, 35 - - - - 39,080 (39,080) -
3.EFHE J\. 35 - - - - - (24,003) (24,003)
=. 20164 12F31 B &% 421248 182,195 (1,599) _ 100,485 _ 183,336 _ 219,155 1,104,820

J5 B T 55 IR AR BT A AW S5 IR FRAVB LR
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201756 E (BRABHEMIN, SHBEMYHARTEIT)
AEH 47

[Lip=FAN 20174 20164 20174 20164

—. ZEEHFENRERE .
% P IZ 2R ) b 75 RSk T4 1 N AR 943,796 1,030,466 968,967 1,043,104
= H At SRR AR £ 418050 19,836 - 24,126 -
5 H b S R R %R D B 19,731 - 26,950 -
WBFE, FEERBENAS 544,004 483,277 526,433 468,856
KR HMEREFZNETXNNE 117,474 254,194 121,811 237,652
ZEFEHAETNNT 1,644,841 1,767,937 1,668,287 1,749,612
&P SRR B O% E NER (1,610,444) (1,426,041) (1,614,019) (1,459,010)
TR R 4R F7 A0 [E) M BRI 4 1 0 2R (583,618) (191,245) (681,019) (179,764)
i\ b RAAIF AR €% D8 - (3,472) - (2,272)
) H fth & B AL A9 I B R £ %G AR = (25,505) = (32,724)
TRFE. FEHERBLHNE (100,286) (63,193) (93,450) (62,154)
XAGRIRTINEART AR S (6,159) (5,886) (5,116) (4,928)
AR B TR (82,546) (60,251) (79,728) (58,044)
IMHEMEZLEFNFEXNINS (8,084) (666,958) (3,419) (642,992)
ZEEHASTHNT (2,391,137) (2,442,551) (2,476,751) (2,441,888)
ZEFRNTERNINEREBSEM 48 (746,296) (674,614) (808,464) (692,276)

Z. BREHFENRERE
W EHR R B R R & 310,541 245,944 293,966 240,107
SRR BB ORE 44,205 24,990 43,530 22,572
KB EM SRR ENEXNOUS 9,958 1,204 344 645
BEERHNAETNNT 364,704 272,138 337,840 263,324
BAXMNRE (105,288) (512,416) (87,303) (518,013)
WEBFAEREME W EMIRE N EER 48 (5,679) - = -
%Egﬁiﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’ (16,527) (9,889) (979) (1,074)
A HMERTENERORNS (205) (172) = -
BEEHAETHNT (127,699) (522,477) (88,282) (519,087)
BREH=ENRETRE S 237,005 (250,339) 249,558 (255,763)

= EREHTFENRERE -
T Al €Lk = 14,834 - -
He . FASRBDEBRRZHERINRNE - 14,834 = -
RIOTRSIEHFREINNE 2,328,387 1,965,207 2,303,488 1,965,207
EBFAH G SR EREEIN S 81,459 53,093 68,740 71,905
EREHIMERN DT 2,409,846 2,033,134 2,372,228 2,037,112
BEFRSANIE (1,836,660) (1,478,629) (1,802,908) (1,472,418)
NERBEHBEAFF S TS (291,378) (286,148) (289,405) (279,069)
ERFHUEFH /T (2,128,038) (1,764,777) (2,092,313) (1,751,487)
EREHENNETE R 281,808 268,357 279,915 285,625
M. CEEHNHAERASENIHIFIG (9,077) 9,782 (9,077) 9,172
. BERMELENYER DT 48 (236,560) (646,814) (288,068) (653,242)
. FUREeRALENYHRT 1,388,154 2,034,968 1,340,124 1,993,366
N, EXRNERNEENWRET 48 1,151,594 1,388,154 1,052,056 1,340,124

JE BT SRR MDE DAY SRR AR .
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BEPHRBHELOMIEMSTASNKENEM S LE. %
EEBIHUR H & A M IKE &

ERFFRERE LN, EUEHEATEE,

15. BR T #ri

RIFMEARANKSRIRENRSIBBRZTNRERT
BTYHEMEXORMSE M, SREHHH . EREET
WEBRFFIEF .

(1) 5=HAErE

HHFMEEIR X RIENTR EFRER. THR
btk ABEREH EFARE. IENBELHEF. AEH
ERTRERSHS TR BXERENEHFMFIAA
AR, A SRS,

(2) BEREHEF

© wERFIL
AEANBRERNEIZARTHNNEARFTERE. Kl
REFMRIHDWVFS BT RERFI.
AEFARISMT HEBFTHMHSRERTHRLEA
SEEARZRE, AEAMNSBAENHSRERFERIRS
MEEANLLG), R B E YR HERFEREZ DAL
FERKEH. RTRKE HbFRESRERTETIER
ERRRAIXAHESEAFERRS. AEAERTRER
FHSIHHE, BRE LR RAE T ERL M ST IA
A, TN LR

BREARFEREIN, KM BARAA RN D RBRNL S RERR
R ATREAVNMERTRESMIBRIRR TS MERTER
SHESTY. ATERERE-—FEATIIAN—ELLBI@E
EIER RN SREMIT AL HRE.

© wEZmitL

ARTE2011F12A3TH RN ERK. RSMES A5
WM R TXFHREAKEF, BEMEFEZENITEST
B/ BTREZHITL.

FARFAFERE. REERARBH X SRR RRBH B
SRBATRE R, TR RIL €7 8% 548 F f R PR I LAY
ERKREEAI, BIAAAHR. ATHEERRNELERR™
EMNFIBIIRKITANE MR,

(3) MARRFRAEF
WEEFBHENALEERAERAER, EXTEER
HE mEERE THERNUAFNRTZMAOEIEF M.
ATERAIABERFZHFRZAEEZLIERERRAK
Fif 1k, MBEZAIDRAFALHNEANMN R LT ABESF
=X

WFREMEFEN, EFEHEAWINEER, FERIELE
HESHEEFRABHEMZMGHOABMEFET, FILA
R TS ER S BERR U RENERES 2=
FTREMTANL R,

16. Fiitfafs

HEFHEFIHRMXFEARARKEBNIAL NS BiTiZ
XERUESBEFMNERY. BZXSHETREB T EiH
TEN, RAERBEIA LTI Ak,

FHRENGRR, AEAERSAEETNE XORE . FHE
MRMETHEMEFER ZFRETHEXANXSHEIH



BRI B U AT ITHE . R R MHER
BRI RE ISR BT UG89 88 E R EG T
5B RAEHRE XTI RUERRER LI 50 L RAH
ZRNREERNFMAE ITALSERES.

17. FIRWNFIZ H

FRRAMZ HIRBEX SR A~ LR A RO RRARR
RAKBRRZFATTE T AL HRE.

SRBFRERER. BWIAF S BN EAF R D8
ERAMRRASREBHTHIN £ AHIRIERF X,

18. FEBERBEEWN

FHHERMASBNEE ARBEXRSHENFRES RN
ik,

19. FrigH:

P18 5 2 6045 24 A 485 T3 IE A4S0,

(1) HEAFER

FHP R, 5T 4 0 LTI T A A0 24 8 P8 R T
(AP RBRUAIE A TR 3540 | SORIE) 19
BRESITE.

(2) BIEFER
AEARRLEA S 0GR B GO E A S H B 2 19
B, DR K 1R 20 7 7 R0 0 SR A (248 BB BLSE ML T I T
EHBER AT B K E N E SRR 2 8 28 4
MR ER, RAAP QRS RIS ER AR
R T B S 4.

— R TR B 1 2 9 AR X 19 2 EE TS RY. B
TR 25, A5 LR T 4RSS IE 90 T
TR 2 R 60 RN BL RS BN IR, BRAKA 3 9 28 SE RS BLA
SN, SREMMETHIMARD, NESHERREe WA
% A BB R B2 THFBR R MR (RTINS )
BB AR ARG X TR ER
RFHINE X038 AR A = S MR,
AERARINSTAST BEL U RAE LI IR X R
BENMER > SR EFER RS, BIEARARBEY
A2 RO ORT ), T B B 2 R A ST LA SRR
THARLHEE, T 5FA5 . BECURAES WIRFHER
WM R R R ST M 2R E TH LN KRR
THHE, B RR T IS FRIEI TR B 2 R
SR RIS AT . RS A AR E RS RA

TP SRR E X T8 AR 7= MR AT SR 5 i 1R
SERAIE 12 IR I B4 56 7% 7 L B AR 36 1 88 0
ERABELR, B 5ERTARLES KESFE BN
% 5 HBGUHE LM L A SR AR EFFERITALBES
B EE . MR A H 7 B TS BB A 3
BIKTEME SN, H 4 SRBT S BRI I AR S R 2 A s K 2 it
NS IR,
FHRENGRE, AR R LR SR A QKEN AT
B, 10 R AR T B 5k 1S 2 9 R A0 B 79 4 P U
N AR A PR35, MR TR R B R A K E
., R THHE R BURARAEHN  RITHSTT Mt
M,

(3) FFBBLHOIES

U BRI B AR AR, AR E S ML ERRAR
P BRI TE | AKE S TS RA  B L SRS
B R DR B B S 3T 3R

U U ER S I SR P8 B P B BP9 B S R A
A, BB R PR S RA  R kAT H LR 5 F — BT
BT — B AT PR B AR 3 B R R
BEGIL BEARS - AEEBHNBERERASR
S A HA T P 5 % B SR 1 L DU 5 B4 A R
BRAFNAEREFANREAR BEAEN ARARE

MERERE /79

PG H 58 7™ & 38 JE P 15752 00 65 UK 36 /3 9% BRS04

20. k&I

21.

22.

SE5EEHNLVESHABEAZIRA-THERNT TRERE
#, AER—EHTHELEIF.

BIF M AIE MR TT D BUS I R 77 69 12 HIAR A A9 7~
REFAEOMENATHNEETIRENARNE, WXTT
AV EFRENTET EZRRS IMEERSFTINRANR
HtEEAXAA TREMITALHRE.

TR TTESFH PABISHHE X FEHIAZ R THHIAR
FLOnREREMRENIEMARNETE. SHBEAKRT
BFPBSHEEETT THUXBJHINEE = A RANERT
BEZH, EA—TA T FIAHFE IR A# TR E.
F&FRRNEEES TV SREDRBIR, FRR
MANGRRITREEERENETITE.

B S B
BATAEEPEMNEN, EZFRAIKSEATEESIE
B AR A AR SR R AT Y SRR R FIA N AR
ZRA%
AERABEEANEEA IRAEZRLSHATAFAEMN
EEAT ZRVETHIRNATFBTAEKE. AILTE
BEAEAR S NHEERD.
AEABWZEZRERL S RIEZERKERE, KEHAED
TNAZREZRARENIRNR. B 20 AXREER
THEFRERALERR . KAEANTLHIFREZERK,
FRIEHARS KGR BRREEZERAM LN R
MHE. EARREEZRARRASTEELRAR MRS
ik,

23. B KGR

FHEARRHET EFIERMNBEEXS EFEETBT RK
AERAFRTENTHEFTMHORERTRETDIER., HFH
MFEBTREE AT EENSEORFIANIAN XS,
AHRTEASSBEFHHRLFTIZAXF N WS TR
BUEITE. ARANZFXESTERIA REMSRENT
TIREER A R, MRERUT AR FIAFE AREEER
AT R,

24. EFMEFMRAIBRENTTE

AHMERENEIHCENES ARMTURHE. 8FBEAT
EEBVFARDURKTEHNENLEE, —BEHEXELM
BRANBUSBESNEXSRIAXERRET RUL, K%
BT EH I,

MBEFRAINEFEFINZBE, AEAFHREEANE
FEE MEAZFREFIRZAREEHANE TR, ¥ TR
SEMANTAS, HEMXBENEERRRIASREE
ZERERFATERMEFALRERT. AEATHRE
ARG NRA T EEG N EBTASMANGIEER.
SR RIEEFIM EAR9EEITTH  FOREEURA
BEEHRENRITEERMHHNREERR (FIMFTRNRSE
FTREEFESMEX) MR, TSREERBXENNRERE
B AR H.

TrERENG. HAREREARAT BT RITR
WA D AEADBREANG. PERFRERARBET
PERANGERESHEAHFMSMEPAAEENL. &
MR GEWE BT £ 7R,

BEEHMESREN, FTRAIVSATRANSTERASIT
HER—88, ZRATHSUTBERASITH BN T 25 H
SREATLENFE,

FHARTREM. XHRAKAMBDES I 5 RR L5
TR, WEBR PR TET R~ BERKHIBIHEEE
RERIFEARTIRE.
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ERTLEFHNAERLT B LE N T2 HKHARNK
R ESHMERET LENRSLEKHBRBR AN
FHATASNAMIEREGHAFERETENSFE N
BRMZFORBEARNR, ARARAE RN, BEETK
i,

FABEARD R A R EMFEE LT WRE T2 EHN
B FARBIZRAEERREFNENAANME#RTERIT
B AERNREHNN SHRBRN2AANEZN, RERR
FRIEGITENZERT AT AME AR HRIT 8%
FHOBMZENER TARREFRNGPNRARE. B
HREE, SRETASRIRARXNEME SRS Ek
KBS 0 KR A .

25. EESTHIREE

(1) W BERF20176E M7 T ITEMCD L i £ 16
S — BUFAENY, KRB E KRB LR AN RHI2017FE Y
Sk AEAK SRR BERNBFHE, BTHENE
BB MR AR FIA LS, FFEFIARK AN, It
NG, BTHMEEREMBEXRFAIMEN, B
THN S B R A8 SO R AR SR BLA . A R L X R S R A B
X AHERMIRT.
SHEENERNBRNNANELHE, 58 ED
TR AIBUF BT NE WM,
¥F5HERENERNBFNEY, RERAF01I7TEELR
EMSRHEBXROBFHERRRRTHRSEFSI,
BERTHENEHENHRE BIAABERR, HER
IAR K B A B T N EL A L A 5= B R A B SR AR
SkiE FRANE,
T BERF2017TEEMiAR T W KIHEMEL2S — FHRF
ENERIAS REBEATLLEZLE) AEASXAL
AN RH2017F E Y SRk, LRAENKARY AR
ERAMEMERTEERF I,

26. SAKHBEX, A EMREXERERR
FA B AE T
(1) MEEBT2017EX (AU SIHENE2S - SR TAH
N E) (R THENE23S - SRMASEB) (b
YEIHENE24S - BRI ML ST AN EI7
S - RIRIBI#TTET (UTER HEMIA
AENT), REBA018FI1FIHEER. REBITH R
MEIBAREE ERASPLRHAT IR B =
DE ERAFRESITHR ERERKZE BN M
MERE" . EPLTBE ML &R A9 XS EIRE
,
RERASNORENS HRETINEREFEARK
BRE eI AENERRXARMEAREIKRE. 5
SRIAAENEXRENERE T UREREATEM
ERAMETEEERHNITAE G ERENERA
LR BRRKIE R SIER AR, 5 RRE TGN
TEAE BRI B AR TR BIZBEMNN, BN
NEEMATRFSNSIHEHEBAXNES BREXTE
B HRRARARKREFRATNE SER T ZHFH
EB. B, BHAE AR KGR R % R 5T AR E
B, B, RTINS TRAEN, Hemh TREAEN
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AEARUHHEAREAEREEN A~ FEAN
RATABERHTON, BENEXLESER FGHERA
kEMEMTANGRASRERTHETONENTE
ERAH DR, DUHEE A S TRENX M SkE

S

BremEELm, AEAMATER T REMNXA
K& SE018F1AIHAKHETA BN M D £92.5%,
REIEMPMRRAMEREAITENAMERMER.
B RFORBEHY S ERERIAEBRRBEREH
LHE. R BT AT ARB ST BUR . BRI HIBT AR B R
BF2018F E4 ST EFRA.

(2) REFBF018FIR1BRITHESMIEAN, AN
BHE. 2EMITENRITHERRERERRERHE
EPMASNGRE EHABEREREBRYSRE. £F
ARt B R ER LR SR,

EHSUHTTE. ARATANNBESRXREX AT SR
IEENENETEEREHRNEM.

(3) MBEPT2017FE (W R AENE145 — WADHFT
T, AEHAB2018F1 A1 HEEM. EITTHIITH
BANAEMRIE & BAEMNFE— A —MRANFIAEER, YL

CEHIREER MR A KR REETE T E DT
INBSHI BT AT, BIR B T AT AR A — L A ERK A,
AEAMHA ERBITHRAAENAERAM MK~ 4E
Eb A

&, B S BUR PR R EZ A A& it E
R RARNXBRIEMAHERE
AERATEEBIGEN AR AL BETRY BTFEEEHN
ENTHEY, AEABREN T EAR T BHNBRRTB HKEH
TR ARG, XL B ERTEEE
KMFLRR, FELEEMAXAEHER B, SHRH
HRARSKERANGEITEELER,
AERARFARAE B ARRESEEENEM HTEYE
%A ETHEERYWEE LN, YR EEE LT
NN, BEWEFE LT WARON, LY WEEEEY
HAFO R SRR 8 T TN
FREAERA, AERATHYSRETE TS FHE . it
MBREGAESSHAFNABRNKENEERKI2ABHN
EABENEERROXLBFHMT.
1. RERINBIEIE
AEF G E TN RERA A O REE R E T, AERA N
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REBRE BEESERSIHEREAS . REBR OGNSR
ARG B R B ER AR R B A XRS5
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MR RRRRK, MEREXMRREENRHRAS
REGEEWAEDR, BEMHEALI, BMEAHRK
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HOEEER EBRANM SRR, TE G A, KRR
WEER . ERA B S REREABNE THRROER R
HE B AR B A7 B R B B LR R A R %
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B BOAL 5 | B 7 o ol P B T DT 7 B X 425 1
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SRR B E AR BT LB WAL IR A R TR
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UAEAHEN AT EORINLKFERETRE N Y
kRIS R NEEWAFENGEHRELEEN, ARES
B B R K T4 0 @ RRN B 60 45 B 2 P 0 7 3%
AR, MR I BRSNS R RRR A ANER. ¥
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AEABEREERFIZEMUTEITBEINESICEN
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RPPREFEIEFREAERRREANABEHTT AN &
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AERAEEZTERE, SFITHZIRAN 2 ANERT
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NEREESWINZBERIERENEREX (FW: K5
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HARME, REGERARIZGRALRFIE BH”
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ME~EF W,
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HE R HETRETT.
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+. ERFRARASEHEE
MABHEAOEETFADEEERIIFMT .

EF£RERREAT LAESP N HERURHE AR 60,624 100%E EHH
EFREESBRAT E AR HEEIRR AR 50,000 100%E 5%
FELARESHRAT LRESP N EeRAREE AER™M32,548 84.99% a3 A
ERemMAERBARAT HE KB M ARM12,642 64.40%EERHE
EFIEFRGARRE A E K B % AR M9,500 B0%EERH
TR EFFRAE HEE®E "AER 41,584 100%E#EHH

FT2017F12R208 . AT A MISRERNRERITEREENRERITHE MR AN ARTI10.87Z AL T RERTRMNER
NEREBEMERBAARAE, XHEMRE, LRNARTAEEIRTHTADIEKEE R, KTE T2018F R E BT KT,
Br ERFISN, AFEAEAN T ARNFRUEORZERANLARRERK, F2017FEM2016FE, AEAFFEEAEAR
FHEBREANGTENEKRRS.

N, MEHRREETRME

1. RERFRHRRITH

AEH AT
EFN%E 2 36 1 1
FHRRBTEEEREES 353 1,221 = -
HthF M REBITIRIN 264,513 274,212 264,459 273,781
A1t 264,868 275,469 264,460 273,782

2. TERIEL IR

AEH T
FRIENEMERT 1,036,582 556,417 1,031,046 507,271
FRENIERTSEN 5,014 5,094 4,717 4,828
FRIEINEMERTT 87,435 125,331 75,868 114,272
FRESNMERITS RN 2 11 - _
&1t 1,129,033 686,853 1,111,631 626,371

F2o017 128318, AEFAFME L ER T R4 MR A ART50.37/27T (20164128310 . ARM48.13127T), T B W ENAEE
BEXZHNRIES.

3. IR &E&E
AEH AT
RERNEMERT 166,256 119,197 166,256 118,098
HRERNERTESRYN 8,000 38,610 8,000 47,622
FHRE SN E bR T 53,483 4,856 53,483 4,856

&t 227,739 162,663 227,739 170,576
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4. UAMETERRTHITNLPRENERE

AEH T
| owERANE 06F12ASIA | 20TERAIE 2016F12ASE
T 5 SRR
BURF RO BUR LA 6755 19,017 9,157 18,912 9,065
SRV HRSE 1,677 620 324 -
AEMRSE 11,777 50,651 8,907 42,845
E e 89,182 63,107 89,182 63,107
BRERESHE 2,814 3,534 = -
&it 124,467 127,069 117,325 115,017
BENUAAAMETEEEL TN
LER RS RA O]
B RO BUR LA 655 15,062 9,377 15,062 9,377
SR G5 1,757 2,331 3,137 2,331
AEMRSE 51,488 8,771 51,488 8,771
K= XIS 4,427 - 4,427 -
B FE 19,640 48,355 19,640 48,355
EINBESRA > 19,418 19,579 19,418 19,579
FIE AL K &) b &R 26,043 40,365 26,043 40,365
REEETR 7,417 3,291 5,544 -
AT RITRER M = & 10,323 6,238 = -
META 870,988 910,392 768,779 828,238
&it 1,026,563 1,048,699 913,538 957,016
Bt 1,151,030 1,175,768 1,030,863 1,072,033

(1) AEXFEMEFMERIIRANRFT B AR BB PARANE VL BIEREEBXMEE L EERD X,

5. (TESRMET KAk
(1) FiESMIA

PTESRIANER/EXSTTUAR S AHERFRAFBIANE Z L AR A ANERGEREM, EFF—ERFIZIANKKIA

EREJLFARNE, bR —ERE

ERAKEARERNERNRITHRE. TESRTANAANERES HEAFRMAEX

T HMEFMSNOLRERBNREANM BN, KRN EEAEHN (F/7) A (A H2m, XELZPTEERRHREETRA

HIR N .
FHEFEMRRE, ARAFENTESRTIEANEGR/BAX AR ELARANET RO T .
A EH 2017412H31A
CELTETR
B ER (BREIXEHHETR) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)
SMCImEAFNSNTERAY 205,913 2,347 (41)
Nt 30,768 (27,239)
MERETFET R
FRE 1,282,188 6,942 (6,079)
F R EARR 10,152 177 (177)
N 7,119 (6,256)
)

&t 37,887 (33,495
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A 2016412H31H

CELTETAR

RHE# (BFETXEHFEER) 1,274,120 16,522 (23,836)

SMCIZERFSNTHAAR 201,812 148 (147)
It 16,670 (23,983)
FELTETR

FIZEE 960,531 8,523 (7,874)

F ZHAAX 11,735 293 (293)
It 8,816 (8,167)
&1t 25,486 (32,150)
&7 2017412H31H
CELTETA

BHER (BFETXEHHETR) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)

SMCIZERF ST HAAR 205,913 2,347 (41)
INF 30,768 (27,239)
FEHETR

FIZEF # 1,278,355 6,977 (6,073)

F) 2 HAAX 10,152 177 (177)
T 7,154 (6,250)
&it 37,922 (33,489)
AT 20164&12H31H

CERETETA
BHER (BFETXEMHELTR) 1,273,844 16,522 (23,819)
SMTAZ HAFI SN T EIX 201,812 148 (147)
It 16,670 (23,966)
FERLTETR
FIZE B # 962,718 8,678 (7,857)
DY 11,735 293 (293)
INF 8,971 (8,150)
&it 25,641 (32,116)
(2) EfsIt
FHRFAARERE, LR AT EPEREREEAEHRTENMBSI =N T
AEH 2017412H31H

ARANMEEHTAR
FIR 5 # 17,948 655 (81)
NEREEHTAR

FIR 5 # 3,833 21 (17)
&t 676 (98)
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REH 2016£12H31H

ARMEEHTR

FIE ik 24,664 700 (139)
NE&EREEHTR

FIE B ik 4,803 10 (18)
&1t 710 (157)
o 2017412H31H

ARAMEEHRTE
FIRF 17,948 655 (81)
&7 20164 12H31H

AAMEEHRIR

) E 24,664 700 (139)

(i) AAMEEL
AEAFMAFEREREEMHEEHSBRNAANETNHTERRE, HEHNE WAEALRTHRATEILEHEFE, JIx
FRFAGREKR BKEFER F.

AERABTERTEANAANMEZTUNEESRNE REHXNEEREREMNAANEEHNBPFRINNEHR LB = EH
MBEHREK,

(i) WEREEH
AEAFAHNEERERNFAEREHSBENUSAETHATERRE WEHN BN AKAFREE VST EEMBITRAING
fEK.

F2017FE12A318, AEAEZIT AR GARENUSAEER TAELAANETH~ENRITREREKR, MEPBE2018EE
2024 [8)F L NF K.

6. ENRE&EBH"
AEH &7

ZIBRYFIR .

R 497,965 674,071 493,783 669,893

Hith 8,266 6,354 = -
&it 506,231 680,425 493,783 669,893
W BRI R E (59) (31) = -
P 506,172 680,394 493,783 669,893

AEAFRNBEXHHREWBRNERDE+—. 7ERYTRE.
7. BWFIR

R EEH AT
| oUF12A31H 2016%12A31H | 2017F12A31H  2016F12A31H
FRUE L F A 3,895 3,639 3,783 3,600
HEFESF R 389 473 389 508
ENREF B 340 656 319 641
R ERMBERF R 25,920 22,907 25,471 22,661
RN AFE (1) 21,523 13,449 20,917 12,735
Hith 280 293 281 280

52,347 41,417 51,160 40,425
B BUURH R EES (203) (167) = -
#ER 52,144 41,250 51,160 40,425

(1) ERENHERANEEENUAANETEAERHITALHRANSHAS THESSRA BEZIHMRANKI
RIER AR AR .
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8. ZMETRANEK
(1) RSB RAHERLNT

ANEEH AT
[ cowEiASIA | 016F12AGIA | 0EIZASIE  2016F12A31A

R GEFRA R

EYRlAE SIIEA T 10,933,412 10,225,793 10,924,144 10,199,837

MAEER R EH A 103,420 92,354 = -

11,036,832 10,318,147 10,924,144 10,199,837

R BRI R E A& (40,087) (57,645) (38,475) (55,950)

HAEWEREES (354,070) (366,329) (343,813) (361,413)

(394,157) (423,974) (382,288) (417,363)

R 10,642,675 9,894,173 10,541,856 9,782,474

AEFARERBYNREAENBREMNE+—. 7TERYPIRE,
(2) KRB TREAEE

AER 20174
o sEs maWE &b
FHRR 57,645 366,329 423,974
THE 21,844 119,275 141,119
#%m (14,823) (121,574) (136,397)
ZHEREN (22,779) (3,565) (26,344)
RTAME LT S BT (563) - (563)
SHITEZER (1,237) (6,395) (7,632)
FRKR 40,087 354,070 394,157

AEH 20164
o e meWE Al
FEXRT 45,506 296,083 341,589
TR 21,018 120,937 141,955
e (3,192) (56,562) (59,754)
=UN - 16 16
A ] (6,207) - (6,207)
BTN E EF SE M E (761) - (761)
SMHITEZER 1,281 5,855 7,136
FRERH 57,645 366,329 423,974

AT 20174

o s maRE &b

FHRT 55,950 361,413 417,363
THE 20,919 113,004 133,923
#%m (14,407) (121,255) (135,662)
ZHEREN (22,197) (2,986) (25,183)
RTAME LT S BT (563) - (563)
S ITEZER (1,227) (6,363) (7,590)
FRER 38,475 343,813 382,288
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T 20164
e
EXHRE 43,590 294,220 337,810
Tt 18,978 117,236 136,214
= (3,105) (55,872) (58,977)
RS (4,019) - (4,019)
BTN E EF ST (761) - (761)
SNRITEZR 1,267 5,829 7,096
FRRH 55,950 361,413 417,363

(3) EHASERANE KT R T

MRFRASHA @I, MIZRRE AL T U PR T X EENERIMER, MRWADBATEH, N5

RERMRIIW L D@,

&M

iR

2017412H31H

(B EN 2,665 1,343 156 374 4,538
RIE TR 2,307 9,582 2,696 2,365 16,950
HHBIR ¥ FE R
— ALK 2,058 5,353 6,370 2,957 16,738
— B TERR 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
ait 10,835 17,556 14,021 8,257 50,669
2016412H31H
(B EN 1,002 67 911 9 2,209
RIETEK 1,048 2,430 14,987 477 18,942
HHBIR Y BE R
— IR 5,469 7,672 11,975 4,377 29,493
— R 3,055 1,998 16,136 104 21,293
&it 10,794 12,167 44,009 4,967 71,937

20174%12H31H

I EN 2,665 1,343 38 8 4,054
RIETTRK 2,307 9,582 2,696 2,365 16,950
HHBIR ¥ FE K
— IR 2,043 3,763 4,775 2,732 13,313
— B TERR 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
&it 10,820 15,966 12,308 7,666 46,760
2016412H31H
(B EN 1,202 12 446 9 1,689
RIETER 1,000 2,371 14,892 476 18,739
HHBIR Y FE R
— IR R 2,041 6,700 11,239 4,202 24,182
— FIR R 3,052 1,998 16,127 102 21,279
&1t 7,315 11,081 42,704 4,789 65,889
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9. At EEREK™

A T
. | .ERASIE 2016%12A318 | 2017412A3NA  2016512A31H

HBEIR

BUR RO BURF AL 655 135,736 138,075 134,397 137,499

SRVBHRSE 37,345 12,611 37,885 12,498

NEESE 37,890 39,698 33,155 32,024

R= RS 216 278 = -

ERZca::] 301,053 419,259 298,311 419,259
M 512,240 609,921 503,748 601,280
s TE 9,439 15,964 33 33
EeRA 717 200 = -
Ait 522,396 626,085 503,781 601,313

F2017F12A31 8, AEARATIUHEE LT~ EHRNATBED B AART182.15{ZT R ART0.67{ZT (20165128
31H: ARM 1821212 TR AR M0.64127T) .

10. HEEEH/AE

AEH AT
BUR R BUR LA i 98 - = -
SR A TRE 25,093 786 24,641 271
NEHRE 3,197 350 200 350
A1t 28,388 1,136 24,841 621
1. BRI 248 &7
AEH AT
B R ABURI RS 1,096,088 570,138 1,096,088 569,921
SR TRE 5,571 4,045 5,571 4,045
NERE 97,587 259 97,370 18
BRI 713 1,010 2,712 4,274
ERITR R HA 5,284 5,990 = -
1,205,243 581,442 1,201,741 578,258
B BT RE A E (488) (353) (11) (18)
HETHRELES (2,940) - (2,940) -
(3,428) (353) (2,951) (18)
N 1,201,815 581,089 1,198,790 578,240
12. KHRAIR %
AEH T
3FATHEE (1) - - 99,340 99,702
WEEMEER W AHE ) 1,835 1,762 = 128
&1t 1,835 1,762 99,340 99,830
R EEE - - (18,953) (18,953)
271 1,835 1,762 80,387 80,877

(1) HFLRKHE

WA THER 99,340 99,702
B BEAEE (18,953) (18,953)
#E 80,387 80,749
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() EETLARNERELS BAKEL.
(i) AT T ASRANEHNERMAT

FHHRE 80,749 72,263
RN 367 8,742
AERD (729) (256)
FERFH 80,387 80,749

(2) REMAE R

PN 3 T

WEREMAEEL VT 1,835 1,762 = 128

() TEHKEMAELLVEREEIFET.

RBESHRAFLERAT =P THREERB~FL ARf3,000 20% |8 1EHE
ERFSRZRAREFRITELS o E K B BRABEREN ARM1,250 A0%[E R
EFERUKREBRAT EPN BFEBREE” AR213 25% A EHH
EERAEEFERTELST E K B BAEEREN ARM120 AS%IE
(i) WHEEMEELURENEHEROT:
AREEH AT
L eowE . zoteR 2017 2016
FEXHRE 1,762 1,680 128 115
R EE AN 209 168 5 13
AEFD (136) (86) (133) -
FERFH 1,835 1,762 = 128
13. EIE& ™~

Bl B
‘
=

2017418 1R 19,930 2,785 1,130 56,697 3,924 84,466
AN 689 109 452 15,451 787 17,488
REEN 755 - = - (755) -
KEF D (189) (275) (14) (11,808) ©) (12,289)
20174E12831H 21,185 2,619 1,568 60,340 3,953 89,665
RitHr IR

2017&1 818 (3,607) (1,667) (313) (9,745) = (15,332)
AR (804) (295) (69) (2,551) = (3,719)
AREEF D 84 109 12 2,185 = 2,390
20174128318 (4,327) (1,853) (370) (10,111) = (16,661)
BiEEE

2017#1 818 - - = (319) = (319)
AEEHE N = - = (61) = (61)
KEHD - - - 138 - 138
20174E12831H = - = (242) = (242)
T EME

201741 B 1R 16,323 1,118 817 46,633 3,924 68,815

2017€12831H 16,858 766 1,198 49,987 3,953 72,762
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AR

DRIEE ’ATIRE Ait
BiE
20164E1 B 1H 19,146 2,665 1,136 48,794 4,423 76,164
AR 252 296 9 9,068 616 10,241
AKEFHN 1,115 _ _ B (1.115) -
KER D (583) (176) (15) (1,165) = (1,939)
20164E12931H 19,930 2,785 1,130 56,697 3,924 84,466
gl =|
20164E1 516 (2,911) (1,362) (251) (8,325) = (12,849)
AREITR (789) (380) (75) (2,275) = (3,519)
ARER D 93 75 13 855 = 1,036
20164128310 (3,607) (1,667) (313) (9,745) = (15,332)
EREE
2016418108 - - - - - -
AN - - - (319) - (319)
20164128310 - - = (319) = (319)
WHEME
20164E1 B 1H 16,235 1,303 885 40,469 4,423 63,315
20164E12831H 16,323 1,118 817 46,633 3,924 68,815
T

Cmmmnn | poes were | a4

FE
201741 11 19,019 1,934 253 3,482 24,688
AREIEIN 35 92 1 429 557
KEHEN 753 - = (753) =
RER D (88) (28) (10) ) (128)
20174E128 318 19,719 1,998 244 3,156 25117
Fit#IA
201741818 (3,357) (1,347) (232) - (4,936)
REITR (764) (214) @) - (985)
RER D 39 26 9 - 74
20174128310 (4,082) (1,535) (230) - (5,847)
WEMNE
201741818 15,662 587 21 3,482 19,752
20174E12831H 15,637 463 14 3,156 19,270
R
20164E1 B 1H 18,205 1,786 258 4,078 24,327
ANEIE 240 234 2 519 995
REHEN 1,115 - - (1,115) =
RERF D (541) (86) @) - (634)
20164E12831H 19,019 1,934 253 3,482 24,688
2iHTIA
20164E1 516 (2,693) (1,127) (212) - (4,032)
RETR (745) (251) (26) - (1,022)
REH D 81 31 6 - 118
20164128 31H (3,357) (1,347) (232) - (4,936)
WEMME
201641810 15,512 659 46 4,078 20,295

20168E12831H 15,662 587 21 3,482 19,752




14. TR A=

MEREME / 91

A EEH

BE

201741818 1,998 1,236 3,234
KRN 13 167 180
RERD = (58) (58)
20174128318 2,011 1,345 3,356
Kt

2017#1818 (266) (522) (788)
AREITR (63) (131) (194)
AREF D = 13 13
20174E12831H (329) (640) (969)
TEME

201741 B1H 1,732 714 2,446
20174E12831H 1,682 705 2,387
FIRIHFIR (F) 29-43 1-10

&

201641 B1H 2,236 1,063 3,299
A EEHE N 49 217 266
REFD (287) (44) (331)
20165128311 1,998 1,236 3,234
Rt

201641 B1H (271) (403) (674)
REITIR (63) (119) (172)
RERD 58 - 58
201641283118 (266) (522) (788)
HEME

201651818 1,965 660 2,625
20164128318 1,732 714 2,446
FIRMHFRR () 30-44 1-10




92 / WMHBiREMIE

AT
A e
BiE
201741 1R 1,488 1,081 2,569
AEEHIN 1 168 169
RER D = (60) (60)
20174E123831H 1,489 1,189 2,678
R
2017181 (193) (442) (635)
AEITR (37) (120) (157)
RER D = 13 13
20174128310 (230) (549) (779)
KEMNE
201741818 1,295 639 1,934
20174128310 1,259 640 1,899
FIRPSHERR (£F) 29-43 1-10
FiE
20164E1 B 1H 1,716 936 2,652
AEEHEIN 49 189 238
RERF D (277) (44) (321)
20164E12831H 1,488 1,081 2,569
FitHeH
20164E1 B 1H (208) (348) (556)
REITR (43) (99) (138)
KERF D 58 1 59
20164128 31H (193) (442) (635)
WEMNME
201651 81H 1,508 588 2,096
201641283101 1,295 639 1,934
FISRPHEIR () 30-44 1-10
15. &

F20174R20164 &, ARARFHTFADRRALANTOI B RRT T RENRE, KEAHEEERETR.
16. BIEAEHHTRAEGR

AEH AT
BT RA 85,790 90,289 80,067 89,017
1% T Fr 3L R (2,198) (2,752) = -
N 83,592 87,537 80,067 89,017
(1) BEMEHRNEHERIROT:
AEH b
AR 87,537 61,034 89,017 65,586
AR (BE/N. 47) (6,113) 23,833 (10,0083) 22,178
TTANEMEGEEWE (HE/\. 32) 2,168 2,670 1,053 1,253

FEREH 83,592 87,537 80,067 89,017
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(2) ERATAEEMSERETRAGRMNNEREERIRNOT

R EEH 2017412A31H 20164£12831H
BERER A"
BEHREAEE 299,936 74,984 329,334 82,334
THEESMETRE 23,502 5,876 18,212 4,553
NGRS R AR & 3,428 857 353 88
Hth# =M EE & 816 204 824 206
uiggggi;%gfﬁz% - 47,389 11,847 36,634 9,159
JHEESHATRAANEES 3,237 809 2,788 697
it R 1,243 311 3,143 786
Hith 1,418 355 - -
380,969 95,243 391,288 97,823
BTSSR
ui;gggi&%éfﬁg% - (45,918) (11,480) (31,306) (7,827)
JHEESMATAANEE (683) (171) (8,906) (2,227)
Hith - - (928) (232)
(46,601) (11,651) (41,140) (10,286)
AR 334,368 83,592 350,148 87,537
T 2017412H31H 2016412 H31H
BEFRERA
OB EEE 289,581 72,394 324,809 81,202
JHEESRA S RE 5,354 1,339 64 16
KEIRABUIR R & 18,953 4,738 18,953 4,738
R WCR IR TR E 2,951 738 18 5
ug%gggz%%zfﬁgg - 35,393 8,848 32,785 8,196
JHHESRAS A ANERS 6,551 1,638 2,882 721
it f i 1,356 339 3,143 786
360,139 90,034 382,654 95,664
BIEFTSH S
uiggg;iﬁ?g_zzg - (39,869) (9,967) (26,041) (6,511)
JHEESMER~AANEEE - - (544) (136)
(39,869) (9,967) (26,585) (6,647)

R 320,270 80,067 356,069 89,017
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17. Hi g™
AEH AT

| ERASIA | 01F1ZASIE | 207ERASIA  2016512A1H
SURREISAHE I 7,828 8,151 195 171
AR &R 6,384 6,499 = -
SR FEEEFS 4,586 1,149 3,945 -
R 1,755 1,213 = -
SBNEBITHBR (ML) 1,087 - 1,087 -
BERAFIEFUBRESNE = 575 868 296 -
T s AR 409 409 409 409
& R 5 R UG 957 5 957 5
KEASRE S A 277 237 152 154
Hith 7,618 7,344 5178 9,445
&it 31,476 25,875 12,219 10,184
e HAh R =R EAEE (359) (307) (47) (20)
HAME ™, % 31,117 25,568 12,172 10,164

18. RFEREESE
£ 20174
KRR 423,974 141,119 (136,397) (9,667) (17,240) (7,632) 394,157
TSR 18,212 4 = = = (1) 18,215
IV ERTE e 353 153 (17) 2,987 = (48) 3,428
ISl &S 167 17 - - - 19 203
EINBESRE > 31 27 - 1 - - 59
B E & ™ 319 61 = (120) = (18) 242
HthE > 307 136 (23) (55) (6) = 359
&it 443,363 141,517 (136,437) (6,854) (17,246) (7,680) 416,663
£ 20164
RIRGERA IR 341,589 141,955 (59,754) (745) (6,207) 7,136 423,974
TSR 18,014 192 - 6 - - 18,212
ISl E/RITE25374 343 15 4) (5) - 4 353
RUF R 167 - - - - - 167
ENBESRE = 28 3 - - - - 31
& E - 319 - - - - 319
Hthm = 290 101 (57) (16) (11) - 307
&it 360,431 142,585 (59,815) (760) (6,218) 7,140 443,363
AT 20174
RIRGERA IR 417,363 133,923 (135,662) (8,836) (16,910) (7,590) 382,288
KRR AR 18,953 = = = = = 18,953
THEESRA~ 64 4 = = = () 67
IS e TE = A 18 - (7) 2,987 - (47) 2,951
Hb R 20 33 = = (6) = 47

it 436,418 133,960 (135,669) (5,849) (16,916) (7,638) 404,306
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F17 20164

RIS 337,810 136,214 (58,977) (761) (4,019) 7,096 417,363
KHARE AR 18,953 - - _ _ _ 18.953
T ESmE 17 42 - 5 - - 64
IS ETE2 4 23 - ™) ) _ 1 18
HitbR = 20 11 - _ (11) _ 20
&it 356,823 136,267 (58,978) (761) (4,030) 7,097 436,418

19. Ek K H it & BT BRI

AEH Fiy
BREMET 3,186,470 2,145,275 3,186,470 2,145,894
RRIERTSEIG 34,993 39,902 35,003 39,911
WINEMRTT 42,633 27,211 42,633 27,211
RIMNERT SR 4 3 4 3
&t 3,264,100 2,212,391 3,264,110 2,213,019
20. [EEAFFEMERYAEER
&M &17
RAEMRTRIERTSRVEER 324,650 326,553 219,549 233,083
RINEMRTRIERTSRIEER 27,924 18,097 20,192 3,286
BEINELARERIT AR
- ZHER 5,447 7,884 5,447 6,558
SNEIBUF X 8,971 9,330 8,971 9,330
A1t 366,992 361,864 254,159 252 257

21. FNEE

AEH &1T
ERAEMBITHRA 21,800 29,672 18,000 29,372
WINEMBRITIHRA 63,529 35,821 63,529 35,821
&it 85,329 65,493 81,529 65,193

22. PURAMETEREREZHIT NS PRENER AR
AEFUARNETE B AT AL RSN SRMAFTBEYRTORRIDY >8R ARAEN = 2 TR EHE ], 2017
R20165E, FREMARNARNEH KL EATARABSEARRTUSHNEAL.

23. 3z m e Rh BT K

Pis 3 T

ZBHRMII

R 15,577 9,049 7,790 -
Hith 3,750 3,540 = -
At 19,327 12,589 7,790 -

REF AT S2H B MR 5 R ENE+—. 7IEERYPINE.
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24. RUGTFER

B
b
=
7
1

A TEERTERR 1,774,162 1,822,658 1,794,986 1,820,474
b T HATE R 121,761 188,937 132,665 197,494
W RIES FR 5,261 8,533 5,261 8,099
R EE 169,395 158,364 169,395 158,364
&it 2,070,579 2,178,492 2,102,307 2,184,431

25. XL

AEH AT
A ER 15,869 47,355 10,283 44,835
BED 6,926 6,647 6,747 6,510
Hfth 1,086 1,160 1,031 996
&it 23,881 55,162 18,061 52,341

26. NMAHFIR

Bk R HoAth £ RN AL T BGRILF) B 4,915 4,620 4,915 4,620
EE/RI 2,936 2,318 2,132 1,751
R TF 3R F) B 3,182 3,602 3,198 3,545
RITRSIESHF S 160,727 144,168 160,256 143,867
Hith 1,127 1,910 1,097 1,888
&it 172,887 156,618 171,598 155,671

27. Hiitffk

ZAEH T
SRR I f iR 1,243 2,738 1,356 3,143
SR FHERREIME S IRIE 914 925 914 925
&it 2,157 3,663 2,270 4,068

28. BRITHREZIESH

ZAEH AT
N4 ahfEs (1) 8,316,281 7,745,181 8,270,361 7,717,753
KA RE RS @) 64,925 66,957 59,926 61,958
NAT ZRBARR (3) 41,841 41,989 41,841 41,989
RAR>=XFESH (4) 23,545 41,399 = -
BERTENEFS - 2,995 = 2,995
A1t 8,446,592 7,898,521 8,372,128 7,824,695

F2017FM2016F12A31 8, AEARKTRTHRFIEF LA RIERAS . FISSEE KA BAER,
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(1) RfRRfss

2017412H31H
o aesR smEE FEAE% RE
BRETARTSRES 2001-2017 2018-2065 1.93-5.90 6,728,379
BRETARTEMER 2015-2017 2019-2037 2.65-4.58 1,395,183
BINETARTSRES 2012-2014 2018-2032 3.60-4.50 7,992
BRATINT SRR E 2013-2015 2018 2.39-2.69 18,702
BINEITINT &R RS 2015-2017 2018-2037 0.13-4.00 120,105
AATR AT S B RSF R 8,270,361
FAREMRITHETRE 2012-2017 2019-2027 2.00-4.25 25,588
FRERARTHART S 2014-2017 2018-2022 3.00-6.05 23,254
B ERRTSEHENAERXTHRS (2,922)
SR A & R AR S R A 8,316,281
20164£12H31H
S wasR HMER EEEE% AW
BRRITART & HEY 2001-2016 2017-2065 1.83-5.90 6,438,726
BINEITAR T &R 2012-2014 2017-2032 3.30-4.50 10,748
BRRITINT SRS 2013-2015 2018 2.00-2.25 19,903
BIMNRITINT RS 2014-2016 2017-2026 0.13-3.00 61,200
BAXTARTEGH 2015-2016 2019-2036 2.65-3.80 1,187,176
TR ERRS R 7,717,753
FRABEFEIKITHETER 2012-2016 2017-2024 2.00-4.25 18,269
FATBERNRITHARTHES 2014-2016 2018-2020 3.00-6.05 9,268
A RENEEHENAREARITHRSE (109)
AEF R T & R RE R 7,745,181

() F2017H R2016F12A31H, AT ERARTHARTLAGSET ARAGFEFHERRTE LARIHE FXKLEH
PABEMNEIZHNFE, FHEEESTAITAART200.001ZT, WEATGHFHEACAEBHAIHARAGEFENE
MR RF LA EERTHEHLERAER.

(2) R RFtES

AEAREIT 2017412H31H

ATENETARTRERS 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,926
FRIABHNETARTAREHE 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
EOIREHRHBFAET 64,925

2016412H31H

ATENETARTRERS 2009-2012 2022-2062 4.70-6.05 61,958
FRIABHNETARTARE RS 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
RITREHRHBFAET 66,957

AITRTHREREFEYREAFATRABRENER. EUERE BHEATRTERENF, B RENZEHN RS AEEE
BKE.
(3) Rt —R&EAME

ER R AT 20174E12H31H

ATREAXTART ZRRARAR 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,841
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2016%E12H31H

RITBERARTARD ZRE LR 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,989
RETDHF2014ER2016FERTT —REARS . YAHAEEFERS. £EIEESMAERBRRITXM P OERBER K415
AT ATERNERETEAATEELFERNERESFTIEIZGES . MATATEEEN, EEMELERFAE,
FRARARSEEAEAATRORCHE YRERXRTXHTATHREMEEAN, ATHEEERRSNASHTETR
1L, ETE AN RREANEBIERFXAM.

(4) & =ZHIES

EERAFUEFARZT. AEATHESRHSERNGER. HETIWHENFEBNERITNANEIEE T (HHE/N\.
49(2)).

FT2017F12R31 8, LAMAESHERMNBERBENEREATHNASIHIESEESITHART235.45Z7T. KPR A1A E6
T EBMERN2%ES7% (20165F 128310 . AEGITTAART413.99ZT, FIRAINMBETE, EEFEH2%E5.5%),

29. Hihfafk

AEH 4T
| ERASIA 0GFIZANIE | 20ERASIA  2016512A1E
NAHEFEBLEGEMIFEERR 24,897 25,347 = -
ERBPFE ARG ES 16,789 13,552 16,789 13,552
HERILES 5,291 5,777 - -
Hfisthas 2,115 2,017 = -
IV PN 921 1,065 = -
REXFIEHFR 1,053 1,844 = -
TR 4,419 4,717 2,666 3,004
FRAEFIEF NI LS N i 575 868 296 -
HAth 8,178 12,127 4,910 7,723
&it 64,238 67,314 24,661 24,279

30. WA
20174 %2016412H31H
A
e AR £ Y BUEp 153,908 37
RRCERABRIELT 146,092 35
BRI AFEEARFTELS 114,537 27
cEMEREESEES 6,711 1
Ait 421,248 100

Fo017ER2016FE 126318, ATREAREHR SR S LA R R ETK.
31. HALTR

A 20174
TR (1) 182,637 = (1) 182,636
20164

RA RO 2) 182,196 441 - 182,637

(1) 2017EE, AERFLBEFRERT, SHAALATRFE P ART0.01Z5T.

(2) 2016 E, AT AT ELLHEERNERAT LFTRFAIETIELERNER AT SHMIZ AT EARBAY BRIHIL. S
AEABRKRAFIEINART4.41{2T.
2017 R2016EE, ATRALRKREET K,
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32. HitzalE
FRR PSSRSO RERER.

B
i
=
7
1

MEREEES KER AN EMEERE (63) 63 (63) 63
EFITERERHIT R ARSE RN (63) 63 (63) 63
WERES X HRENEMEERS (8,494) (7,758) (3,428) (3,676)
THEESHMEBS R ANEED (9,070) (10,889) (4,220) (4,945)
B BT AR MRS Y AR A 122 (242) 9 (72)
Frig Rt & 2,168 2,670 1,053 1,253
SNBIRFITEZER (1,710) 525 (270) 88
Hith (4) 178 = -
ait (8,557) (7,695) (3,491) (3,613)
KEH

AERBERPEBTHASMAENE R AE:

201641 B1E&#H (137) 11,765 (10) (271) 11,347
2016 F R RN LM 63 (8,461) 315 76 (8,007)
20164E12831H/

001761510 440 (74) 3,304 305 (195) 3,340
2017 R ERN ST (63) (6,722) (1,437) (37) (8,259)
2017412331 B &H (137) (3,418) (1,132) (232) (4,919)

(1) TEBRALREEHNNERE,

N

R nfERP R b E Y.

201641 B1H&H (137) 1,995 156 2,014
2016 A LA S 63 (3,764) 88 (3,613)
20164128310/

201741 B1H £ 5 (74) (1,769) 244 (1,599)
2017 R TN S (63) (3,158) (270) (3,491)
2017412831 B &4 (137) (4,927) (26) (5,090)

33. BRAR
RIFEERMAREZENE, KTAZREVSIDENTAEFUBRBI0%IENZERR AR, SRTEERRARRITF AR
KR AHKIS0%RS, T INA BRI, EEESHE ATERMEERRARITATRIATHSRAEFLERTRRAR, #Kig
SKREAE. TETNEEBRRARIEOTARITIRAARN%, B ATEEFMERRERBRAR.

34. —MRBEHER

ER T
K17 (1) 210,397 183,336 210,397 183,336
e 2) 3,537 3,396 - -
&it 213,934 186,732 210,397 183,336

(1) ATERMBEC ROV EESITREENEN M £[2012]205) WAE, ERBAFBRELASNEM L BT —RRKAEE
FADURAMRAT B AR IRBIA 5 RS 3 = B X AOE A T BRIk L R £ — AR RS A 2 R AT U 3 = R R A 1.6%.,

(@) ZEXREENE. ARATARNERDBRIEFRR—ESTIED— RN EE,



100 / MEREME

35. KRSELFE

AEH T
CwiE . wes [ aowE | wes
FEXRT 247,104 222,065 219,155 197,776
M. AFEPRBFEASMEENEFE 112,387 109,047 107,068 104,799
WHEFAE 207 - = -
B IRBUREBRRAR() (10,707) (10,480) (10,707) (10,480)
REERREATRE)) (10,480) (9,601) (10,480) (9,601)
JRER— AR RS & (2) (i) (27,408) (39,668) (27,061) (39,080)
BEF 4 B2 (2) (iif) (26,200) (24,003) (26,200) (24,003)
50 8B EZENZS3) (27) (256) = (256)
FREH 284,876 247,104 251,775 219,155

(1) 20174 EFIiE 5 BL

ATH207TFE ST ARE, REUCEERBRARARTI07 072 T H It N0 7TE E, 2017 F RN A REFEESH

(2) 20164 EFE B
EEST201748A8AMAERIT016FEEFMANE A RINT
() REMERBALAFRARM104.80127T,

(i) ’BM—BNB AR ART270.61Z7T,

(i) NI EBF AR TH262.001Z7T,

F2017E12831H , BRET2016EESEFHIRIAZER R AIRE104.80{ZTE I N2016FEEM ERFIN, LRFEHEIT A
017TEEMSIREF, LRUNSRFIELTURE.

() RE(ERNIESTHEFDIPEFREXEEHSREESIENEINEXINE. BEERFFHENERLATRTREF LT
RS RN, REFRRTROBEN10%, FELHTAIRIEFREALEMSREESEESRE. AEABEFREFAITR
EERAS LYRE PRERDEFE,

(4) T2017F R2016F12A31H ., ARAR D EFERFTEETAIRIIFARTZANBRLARKIUITARTI16.9ZT R
ARM16.84127T,

36. DHIAR AR
RER S BB FI T -

EAEmERFTELT 9,492 9,127
EREemERRGERAT 8,369 7,939
EFIEHROGERAS 3,167 2,992
Hith

= 1,116
&1t 21,028 21,174
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37. FE&EIN

AEH AT
L eomR | zoteR | 2017& 2016
=N
RN GEFR AR 457,467 424,099 442,637 411,550
AR E () 50,987 29,968 50,573 29,333
FHERSRENBRESRE 21,640 26,917 21,123 26,542
T RBAT R FRE LRI 30,325 20,099 29,598 19,705
Hith 65 110 = -
560,484 501,193 543,931 487,130
FEZH
ERITREIUES (275,602) (293,738) (274,671) (290,785)
5 b R Lt S BRATLAG 7 BRI (78,329) (49,402) (78,503) (49,917)
R R (13,067) (12,058) (13,135) (12,011)
15 BT O EL fh € BRANLAG (5K (10,151) (8,142) (5,304) (3,867)
Hith (3,085) (1,729) (1,241) (547)
(380,234) (365,069) (372,854) (357,127)
GRS ON 180,250 136,124 171,077 130,003
RN EIE.
EIRAVEE SRR = FIEKA 563 774 563 761
(1) FERNHREFNSBRANBTEITHEESHE~. 8 PR AMN BT F T BN
38. FEHERMEFBN
AEEH AT
L eowE | zoteR | 2017 2016
FEHRMLSBN
ZRVEERRS 3,804 4,688 2,882 4,156
R L HE R 3,025 3,902 3,025 3,902
{5 AR % 2,414 3,634 2,414 3,634
B ) 0% 18 2 197 276 98 152
RIEZFIEFH L FEA 79 102 - -
Hith 1,381 1,558 948 1,197
10,900 14,160 9,367 13,041
FHEARMERE
FHHEIE (907) (810) (509) (532)
k] (220) (199) (224) (199)
(1,127) (1,009) (733) (731)
FHRARMERBEN 9,773 13,151 8,634 12,310
39. ¥FWm
AEH AT
L eowR | zoteR | 20E 2016
TrEemIA 327 (7,799) 329 (7,712)
MARMETEEEZRITALSHRANERA > 18,932 11,189 4,873 2,602
T E SRR 670 1,336 ©) 74
KEARANR H 37 606 1,183 31
YRI5 559 258 = -

&it 20,525 5,590 6,377 (5,005)
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40. A RMEZ A

ZAEH AT
TSR TA 11,009 (2,703) 10,886 (2,809)
UARMETEBEEMITALSHRANESRTE (7,152) (5,297) 334 35
&1t 3,857 (8,000) 11,220 (2,774)

4. [CRimE
CHRBTENNITRB RS ABRE A ORE. AERABIHFINCATE SR TEMMAXINT LS YR, XLIND
FETEREMERTRBRATIRAED BFAE  BHAUS R ARNETIRSE .

42, HAblEIN
AEH AT
RN 6,054 5,473 4 -
Hith 1,328 545 27 170
&3t 7,382 6,018 31 170
43. F&E R Mim
AEH AT
EH = 7,331 = 7,167
WP ERR 1,993 1,790 1,838 1,725
BE KM 1,486 1,260 1,371 1,228
ity 420 721 351 350
&1t 3,899 11,102 3,560 10,470

44. IS RETEE

AEH AT
RI#H 6,382 6,022 5,250 4,939
Vv&#EA 4,505 4,761 3,568 3,755
HT 18 709 55 2% 1,290 1,342 1,167 1,181
&1t 12,177 12,125 9,985 9,875

45. FFERERK

ZAEH b
BRI 4,722 82,201 (1,739) 77,237
T E A~ 4 192 4 42
R BCERIR A8 7 136 il (7) (1)
Hith 218 366 33 1
&it 5,080 82,770 (1,709) 77,289

46. EHAthlk S5

AEH b
KZEMHEEER=HIA 2,760 2,012 = -
REGAME S T - 128 = 128
Tt fa i (1,749) 39 (1,787) 79
Hith 3,621 3,248 = -

& 4,632 5,427 (1,787) 207
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47. FriSHi%E A

B
i
=
7
1

LSRR 20,922 54,913 15,446 52,001
BEFERRA (HE/\. 16) 6,113 (23,833) 10,003 (22,178)
Hit 27,035 31,080 25,449 29,823

AEARKTHEREASSTFBNETRNT:

AREH AT
L eowE | zoteR 20 2016
BLETFE 140,624 140,747 132,517 134,622
A ERE25%ITE N EH %A 35,156 35,187 33,129 33,656
FATXAREBEFT 4 M (140) (45) - -
R N TR (9,735) (5,127) (8,576) (4,283)
RFIATTIRINE B 14 2 F I ABLR 10 616 536 - -
e HEN R 2R A R H AL 9 4 FL 20 1,138 529 896 450
FrisfiE A 27,035 31,080 25,449 29,823

48. REREBERIMEHR
(1) BEFEETHEEEFHAERE

el
i
=
7
i

by I 113,589 109,667 107,068 104,799
hn. E = RER K 5,080 82,770 (1,709) 77,289
HriIR N 5 3,971 3,791 1,151 1,194
BB EEETIIAE (563) (761) (563) (761)
WEEER™ . EHRAF-MEAMKEE = 0HRE = (@7) 1 (146)
ARMMETH R (3,857) 8,000 (11,220) 2,774
FLEBN LT BB A 229,994 243,219 229,402 236,626
BEWES (1,266) (2,199) (1,175) (105)
BIEFREREA 6,113 (23,833) 10,003 (22,178)
ZEM NI B B %ISR (2,089,606) (2,156,500) (2,164,608) (2,184,695)
LEMRN A /9% IEINE 990,249 1,061,259 1,023,186 1,092,927
REFNENR SRR (746,296) (674,614) (808,464) (692,276)

(2) RERAEEMWHETHER

AEH AT
NERASENMMHERER 1,151,594 1,388,154 1,052,056 1,340,124
B RERASENDOENRM (1,388,154) (2,034,968) (1,340,124) (1,993,366)
N& KA ENIRR D> (236,560) (646,814) (288,068) (653,242)

() ITFTFRERERTHIAERAEENYERE:

EH AT
| .mERASIA | 016F12A3NE | TERASIA  2016512A31E
EFNE 2 36 1 1
o] T AR F R R AR TR 264,513 274,212 264,459 273,781

BRI BI=AH.
EINBESRA~ 497,946 660,637 493,783 660,613
FRE LRI 188,169 336,843 92,849 288,609
HERS 200,964 116,158 200,964 116,852
BUF i - 268 - 268

At 1,151,594 1,388,154 1,052,056 1,340,124
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(4) REBEFARREMME M BRI R
RERFAXRFERIFMOT:

&%
KELBRFHWASMAEENMY (HHEL) -
W HERTHENASHASENDY (5,679)
LESEMRE R (5,679)

49.

50.

EERYERPRNE
(1) AERALZITREBNRARIEY =&
AEARGTREBRADEN=%, FEFLFEVHNRATEE ARSAD AR ANETEEETINTALHRENS
L e R R,
(2) *ERALIT. REREENMNGIEE R EMEHLEME
AERART REREBNPANEGFCENHMEN L IABHEASHABTARAFIESULEHE=TERATERINFER
HNER. AEALXEREENAFEETVRES. ATASANMREMUEFRBEENN, BES58XENZFITERER, 7
BRERNZEAMNEMYEEANNEWETEER, A AREEAX W EEREFEFERS.
F2017F12A31H, ER(MAMR)FUNEHEENEMHLEERNE~REAART2,116.09ZT (20165F12A310: AR
2,224.45(25¢),
() AERALIT. AEREENKANEG I EENEHLER
AERAEREEIHERRBENNERLEE, GFFERAEBEYM =5 BFXHIESE. AFEEITUNERESS, ARRERER™
BIERS . KAERRENRPUANEGHEEMNED L F RN SR E A T FFNITRI.
F2017HF12A31H, AEBRREBRIMAEHNEW L EERNE N AR M2,263.92127t (20165F12H31H: AR 2,563.8012
Jo), RERRE T XLEEN L EEABRE NI ENE N ART3I3.26127T (2016F12H31H . ARM57.34127T) , REXFHHIE
AR T AEFAIT X LEM U FENTRAMEKMO,
F2017FEE, AEFAFT LAREMU TR RENFGTECETFERRAN. RREARXF 2B, £ITART11.25127T (20164 .
ART12.561Z7T) .
(4) ZER/EHNAMNNE LB EBLEMR
AEAFED P HME=ZANBRITAEENEWELIENG, BIAAMUA2ANETEEETNITALPRRANESRE =, TH#
HESRBASMNBRMERE, ST IZERPAGHCENEMUETENRENE, TLAoHAITRESNTHHRR., TR~ AHRE
B AEHAHFFEMNEETHEMEEEONGELRITOT:

A EH

_ 20164E12H31H
UARMETTE EEEHIT AL HRRENSRA™ 34,489 7,499
ISRl €/ RITE3 374 3,361 5,990
L ESMA~ 900 229
Ait 38,750 13,718
TRLR R

HAEXZT . AEABGEREAFHESKFHRENGT BREFKRENGEREREAFELTRSXIFIES. RIBHHEM. 6(3)Fk*
F. SHHETIROE, ARBSEBRERHNABREERZEERF T EH, HMANEEL ERIAMIXERES.
F20175E12A318 , E#IL BRI IANER R =R ERKEFEEN AR M506.64{27T(20165E12H318 . 577.02{27t) . HH.

- WKEREIARTI27.83ZTH, KERAINNNRE THXEHRENEITENEABY LR RENALERAEIEE.
- KEREAIARMI62MZTH, RERASSHN T iZEILAERES.

- KEREEAIARMT142.601ZTH, ZRERINAFEZTELIERIASME.
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(1) NTFWMALUEBNNERA T AEFAZRBRERSE S NS SRUA ™ OREERIANRSIS AT ™ R RINELSS N LR,
BREHNA T RBEFNNEOKE M ERR T AR REORAFXSE,

2017412H31H 20174

ComE e owE
AEH

kB ERER NG 575 575 575 575 575 = 37

2016%£12H31H 20164

AEH
KB ERHR NG 868 868 868 868 868 - 28

Q) WFAREABFHASIFIESERIE STEMBE >~ T2 L ERINN142.60Z T AR TR —#2  ZMFHERAN DX,
DAFAURAANEHEEATNITALPRENSRA ™ THEESBA T REBRIKRE.

2017412H31H 20175

AEH
5% B MEFR R NG 714 713 714 = 78

2016%12H31H 20164

AER
455 B MEF R NG 1,372 1,384 1,372 - 170

. HERE

AEFBSH S ST L SOTAR RN, £ 315 8RB 5 A% H A B EAE & AT R TIIR,
AHEZHE—BELERBEE LT, ABBILENSBTHHRER, HEFEHBOLIRR SRR,
AEATBEMUT LSS BHTIR.

RITA

EHABETBOFAVRTLE . ROFBUEEAS LS. ATRFUSEETERARL. BHRS. RERS . WD 55 8RS
NeEERS CHRNEERS . AERSRIRBEE, RTHELENATROYSTEALRR. ALV SORERTTHXS.
SLHTHXS . EETHXS . REINCER R EXHEAT AREE.

B ol %%

A5 BOFERIRA LS,

HELE

A BOEARREDEEANBRAAELEREERRLS,

E %

AN BOFISNERLS AEISRIESRELS.
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A EEH
WS RERALE  ERLE  ESLE SRR &t
20174
FI 2N 554,021 1,354 5,889 651 (1,431) 560,484
FIlE (374,040) (1,650) (4,985) (1,040) 1,481 (380,234)
F RN HE 179,981 (296) 904 (389) 50 180,250
HHA . ISP GFEWRNRE 178,834 486 1,319 (389) = 180,250
5 BB B F B YN 5 AT 1,147 (782) (415) = 50 =
FEBFRMEFBRAN 8,614 427 (62) 815 1) 9,773
B, 39 B FLE&HRITEBRN 8,678 427 (26) 794 = 9,773
7 EB B F LR M2 BN 36 - (36) 21 (1) =
Htblg A (38,825) 8,190 6,603 1,307 (987) (23,712)
Bl X (16,531) (4,266) (4,643) (624) 276 (25,788)
ERIEN &R X1 133 23 6 2 (63) 101
FERE 133,372 4,078 2,808 1,111 (745) 140,624
2017412H31H
BT 15,689,483 170,078 187,099 43,559 (130,931) 15,959,288
Bk 14,505,925 72,194 163,590 28,173 (51,069) 14,718,813
Hith.
iR E 1,173 50 2,699 49 - 3,971
BAME 1,113 240 16,941 96 - 18,390
R RAE R K 4,193 215 913 28 (269) 5,080
EHRIE 3,761,863 = = = (19,155) 3,742,708
RITIS R E S gl IESFA S BHRIFE ait
20164
Fl BN 494,859 1,264 5,456 554 (940) 501,193
FlEXH (359,216) (1,330) (4,400) (1,176) 1,053 (365,069)
Fl RN %R 135,643 (66) 1,056 (622) 113 136,124
B XX GFERNRET 134,798 438 1,065 (177) - 136,124
7 BR8] FIB N HET 845 (504) (9) (445) 113 -
FEHERBEFBEAN 12,250 242 (56) 820 (105) 13,151
B X G FLZHERFEFWHN 12,117 242 (57) 849 - 13,151
555 5] F L F R AT 2 YN 133 - 1 (29) (105) -
HABA 59,589 6,375 5,770 1,556 112 73,402
Bl X (102,159) (3,605) (4,910) (776) 26 (111,424)
ENEIN SR 2 01 29,404 11 208 10 (139) 29,494
FE B E 134,727 2,957 2,068 988 7 140,747
2016412H31H
B 14,102,020 158,392 166,512 43,113 (129,537) 14,340,500
Bk 12,995,223 59,476 144,210 28,382 (49,511) 13,177,780
Hith.
IR TIPS 1,211 53 2,477 50 - 3,791
TARM W 1,384 223 8,510 36 - 10,153
RERERK 80,851 26 1,826 153 (86) 82,770

BERRE 3,492,710 - - - (35,732) 3,456,978
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T. XKBEAFXERKZS
1. MEBER
F20174E R20164E12 831 0, M B #R45 4 4 1736.54% M BEAX .

B E S R AMEI]. ARASHEMHTHAZ LS ZREEHLERHT TR BRELTTH MR R MBI
RITHERE, TAS AR ZEXHNFERBERAT .

EREREH 95,971 85,618
RIF B 1,365 1,253
FIE X 8] (%) 2.29-4.68 2.16-4.47

Fl BN 2,854 2,538
BARWE 146 44
2. iC&RT

F2017E K 2016E12831H , L&A S 3FHE K1734.68% IR,
CEATIRTEREBERTITLAINEEFAS M hFEILR SFMERNARTS,282.09Z5t. LE£ATLESREMN,
WEESRYMATRLE, ANEEMH VY HELEE. LA TREPEBRFRTES RTINS,
FRENERD AEASTCEATINRZRETMANT.

THEESRE 3,335 5,821
A RMETERRTHITA Y BRANSHE 148 120
FIE X 8] (%) 3.32-4.38 3.16-4.20

T2017F %2016 128310 AKEAHF LR LEH/ENN KT BRTFAD AN ARTOSZTRARTO0.701Z5T.

Fl BN 114 203
AEASLE AT RERHEAREHNASETHNAELER S, RIEEE L ERHATT,

. B R TEEERREAA
F2o017E 128318, ERAHATIFHERIT27.19%HBEN (20165FE12H831H . 27.19%),

BEMEEAFEERTEAST (UTHER EREMATE RERIINCEERLREIMN— AFRIFELAT, KECEAERING
B OB G &4 BRER. BRESAEE. REBTE (FOEAKHIENTE  KEXTIMESTHATHAREEE).

. 5FRANRS

ATRFEARRMEFEE5FAINRII TOT.

w

D

7

T HUE R - 31
biteehi - 9,012
AR METHE B HEFIT A\ L EIRE SR~ 1,675 -
ETHESRA 56 165
JHHESRA~ 1,286 -
HEFR 43 50
RILGER AR 36,863 27,137
Hth ™ 123 3
ffR

& b & ot S BATL A 7 BRI 11 699
PTHE SRR 7 -
R AR 31,728 15,836
ERITRFILESH 900 109
RAHFA 39 14

F2017E12A31H, 5FASHEANBERRKIEL A LR RIBREATAART161.54{27T (20165FE 128318 ARM357.32127t).
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AOFERNEFEEESTRASNRETRIROT -

FEBA 1,304 853
Fl B (195) (56)
FEHRRALEAN 52 135
FEBERAEXE (28) @)
RA U 952 —

ATEFRARZENXH YRR —RE L FRMES L ESEFIHTT,

5. SRXEMEEATNRS
AGSHENEEATZANTHN—BIHNEDENERM, REERELERHET, T2017ER016E, AEARSHENE
BENDREBAXBIRS, ERDTE ALK TR,

6. XBEEAR
EEEEARBIEADGENEIR EERNRHAERENOAR, FROI7TEREM20165E, REFRRFMIN, AER 5 X @
BARMRSEHHAEA.

7. Bl ESE

BRE®MHMRS, FOI7TEER20165F, ARARKTSRTRINFLUHMREEEAXKAXS.

T—. HEEWRAE

1. RBIFA
F2017412A318, ARARAGHEAE THRRLAER. FTEERANZEERFRNRERRERT RN FEARKTH
MERRILERRF=EERTM,

RAMERIE

n

B
b
=
7
1

EEARNIT

— BRI E 50,201 50,815 = -
- EER~HRE 99,130 39,989 2,459 1,243
&it 149,331 90,804 2,459 1,243

3. SRS

AEH AT
| wmERASIA | 06F1ZASIE | 207ERASIA  2016512A1E
GERRR A 3,649,438 3,339,971 3,659,059 3,357,078
FFHARERIBR 60,039 82,460 69,573 101,085
RITRFLCE 18,441 20,762 18,441 20,501
FHERIE 14,790 13,785 14,790 13,785
&it 3,742,708 3,456,978 3,761,863 3,492,449

Fo017EHE12A31H, RHRABEFREPEHE—EUTHESTAART62.57{27t (201651283180 . 16.29127t) , HERHIRIER
FERHE—FMUL,

4. BEHERIE
FHREAGRE, ARAREGTWIINEITTHATHENEERESABRNT .

A EEH T
| ERASIA | 0GFIZANIA | 20ERASIA | 2016512A0E
—EUH 528 499 334 365
—E_F 286 305 187 202
—E=HF 246 179 119 127
=FNE 481 292 395 245

&1t 1,541 1,275 1,035 939
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5. A ERIE
FRERERD SINEITH R THBEMNRARL S AR MT.
*EH

BAAEAESH 7,790 1,600

F2017412A31AR20165E12531 0, AEF B ATERIEL I —E A,
6. IEHAIHAKIE
F20174ER20164E12 8310 , AEF T K BT MIE SR RIE.
7. BRY
(1) fEHB R R
RERERD, RBESEEMGRRYHR~KENENT.

[

_ 20164128310
5 16,130 9,971
Hith 3,750 3,540
ait 19,880 13,511

F2017F12R310 , AEREFZH R MERE =K (MHE/\. 23)KEMENART193.27125T (20165128310 : ART125.8912
7T) . P BRI RS I AR RS MBI

b SN, A% SR R 53 R A B A7 WORK R R B AL LR RO 2R T RO IE R . T2017F12A318 , AR H ERIKFUHRY MK E A
DHHART64.85Z TR ART23.261Z7T (2016F 123310 ARTI1.64ZTRARMS59.58127T).

(2) WKEIRYHERY

AERAAEFLNRE (FE/N. 6) &S TIESENREIRY, T2017E£ KX2016F 128310, AERALERNAET UL ESHH
RESMEIRAIE SRR,

T, KEEE

1. SRR E IR RS
AEANEETIERSMERNLE AEAELEIRT NI LS REASHTIR . 2. BENRE, AZLEE
B S R DHRIE, TR S AR EBEIREERE ., AL AEAN BRI RARFREMEROFE, FRIUERDHNEE
ENW &5 SR BERFIZ 0.
AEATBZNURTARARMNBEEHEMIHNFRGHEERS HERASEAT WE—" PKAMBERRURKEHE. £F
W AEARRTARHNESMFRRLSHBEATNR, ARAREES A MREEFTREARBTRNRETDFHATHNE
ATBERTAEARMPORS. R EBERESRAMIE T,
ARKEEERNEARE, AEAETT —LEANEANTELRTIARS BFETEH. BTN RERMAXTRANE.
AEANNKEEERREE T EAMNRRFMES FR, FBEITENENMNESRGE RSN MRHFAIARTER. AR
PR ENE AEAETHHFANEEEZBRRNRG, KNRERRTS . ~ROTL, FINREIBRURHTENREE,
FEARGNEZSRNEEBERE. FARKE . RatRERT 2 RE.

2. FRARK
FEAMARNEANKEZERFIXZITFOEALARATRTENEERIANE. FANREAKALSHARNRER
R, B ERRMNEAREREEZEEE. GANREIZETEARRAMEBRINER LS, MESHRRERAMTEER
W, TSI EGMEIFTAEREMERAECTERRNE.
AEAZRRBRBESKTHOARTREFBXLEES] S0XAEAVESFEET T ERTRER, BRETATTE BR. AR &
B HRRE. TEXREAFS. ZBERATHEATRER NERTNE A EABXNE A ERTETITEE P EABERIR K
ERFEIERTR. BN, AT RIEFROERBS LT, THE T BRTR. TR T BUFITR. b XKFRMTLITREH
FRAE.
2017 E AEAFANKEENBIREARAKEBTANE,
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(1) FRRKEHNITE

() R

AEARTRESHENCRRNE D LIESDEERRRE, ZIESENERRDIBENTEANE~RESFR . EF . X AR,
TEMBME, HPDEARE . TENMRKAZABOAEATREK.

ER EBRARBETER, REEBEANRERRASTRRNETERL,

REREGRANBNERNEERTRAL EFE-LEURENEESERNFHHER,

RE - ABRAOERENLIPARED, TEREAEFELVRALERHARERRAL, ERTER GURSER—ERXK.
T BRALERHELERAALLS, BERTER, BB EEERRAREK,

KL EXBMATATRMNEESI— VL BNEREFZE, REMATERE, 5 REWREIRDEB.
AERANNRABRMITEE~RE, DPEXTEXALRFRRESLXEX . FERATEERREEMHAMBEGNEREN. PEEEER
EESEMER ZREAVMSRE. FMFEAR. TUBXEFNURAERA R S EEKEENH >~ REKFEHZME. KEANE
RAFREXRNSERE EPHAGREASRE AEREERTNEReREETEE FEPERERE.

(i) BERUERARLTESRIA

RERARFERIBITR, FSEREL RITEHZFLMEMSMITEREEFNURANEANRRE. RATRXERSIARAN
RERFEARERNEN, REXTENRNMUHERSTR. ARABTESR TANEARKRAANE A RN FITHS%
—REEEP,

(i) BHROKE . FFHRE . T HERIERMRTARCLERE

S5RHNEETE - AEABERALAN LG ENRNBITRERKEERFTORE . FHRE . FEEREMRTRECEN
ERARE.

(2) 15 R RBE PR &= I FN L2 REBUR

AEAXNAATIRMNAERREHTRFEEMETEES, FHRENZHNFNED, NRTUMBEXE,
ARACEUHNHRAEEFR MENMEZAZFATNEAZ A HTEAREEE MUY XMAREFALXLE . RME
S ERRH. ARE RS LR REEKFERD . FFE8 LRI ERTKOASHA.
HEMENEFANREREGHE—TBIERANTILENE - M HASANASUEXHRER A 1R R
TEH. BN, N TFRAEANSRER BT EREE.

AERAFERNRT RO RREANEFFESTEEHANRERRRE BEINAFNBERABEABNE NN ER TGRS
Mg RBetTEIE. BN, REUREHYNUEBGERTEAKATEFHARKEATTX.

Htp BRI RERRKEERERI RN T:

() MEHRY

AEARET —RIERNEEZBRNBRMNEE, ZHEEXAN, SRREENEEEZRERARMIRY. AEANEAE
FERRATEIMREANRERRESE T RIERS, FEH R RRPYITMEER.

MR TR AR REL R, Fmk AR St~ DHEAN NEIES. WS FRUENMIEE. BREERMBRZ MY
Htb SR ASHIMAIRY BT AAXSHMIRE. BEELT. KUSH T AAARHMEAIFNASIHMISHEMUS
MIES, % BERMEMEREERFIER.

(i) {FEEHRAKIE

EREXXENTIZENRRAREAEBRENBTNES. UESREZTHERIERE T ATHENRIE IAKABEETSL
FRTENE=ZTHARIXSHRAZN, ARARKESRRERNEANE. £—EBRT . £RASBBURIES UKD RHEIZ
TR S PR B EANR . RIS STRET A NERREIRRESTHN—EB N LR,
ERBEXRKBIEEREEREMNER. ROXKLLE REMNEMHESF. AEAERNEEEERE 2T ALBRERNER
RIESM, KT, BTERSZHRERRENETIATEAZERBFENERFR. ARAXKFERZINZEEEARNESHEMR
TEMRAEANEREXRKELET. BT KEERAENERNRBES TERERKE ARANERRED IR HTE
7,

(3) MIERAEZEEITREUR

FRAFNFERTIMOBEEEZURETZ. 20)(O)PARENE~RED L IEMBEN. IMIRBEERERETHE
M. 6FHENHERESFAE(LUSITENE22S) PHREZTYILE.
AEFANBRACESZRENTERSHEANSHASHITHE, SR NEHRFTR. FHTUENAE, HEeHEHEHE
REAEF, B ENREESERBEIZIITHE RERKMPBEN. ITENRBE P RAEARAORAREY U R RN
AT E RS,

A/TEERE: (VRREPFLERARARRMNATES. ME(NEREHERNNC R EEEHRBORFNR K BT EHAITHRE
M2 Z8 ARG RARHETIE,



MEsRERE /111

(4) REFRREANHEMEREREENRXERRERE
THREMERD, R ERRRHAOMNESNAT.

AREH AT
| wwERASIA | 0FIZANA | 20EIRASIA | 2016F12ANE

FHNIHE
B RBITHRI 264,866 275,433 264,459 273,781
FIE LRI 1,129,033 686,853 1,111,631 626,371
HEHES 227,739 162,663 227,739 170,576
UAnMETTEERTHITALHARGHSHA> 1,046,007 1,090,080 1,030,863 1,072,033
FTESHME> 37,887 25,486 37,922 25,641
I NIRE SR> 506,172 680,394 493,783 669,893
R GER AR 10,642,675 9,894,173 10,541,856 9,782,474
T ESRA 512,240 609,921 503,748 601,280
HEERHRE 28,388 1,136 24,841 621
R YR I 2 4% B 1,201,815 581,089 1,198,790 578,240
Hit &A™ 66,450 53,935 54,988 41,200
15,663,272 14,061,163 15,490,620 13,842,110

FIMNAE
BRI 3,649,438 3,339,971 3,659,059 3,357,078
FFHEARE 60,039 82,460 69,573 101,085
RITREILE 18,441 20,762 18,441 20,501
FF =z BIE 14,790 13,785 14,790 13,785
3,742,708 3,456,978 3,761,863 3,492,449
Bit 19,405,980 17,518,141 19,252,483 17,334,559

ERAHIFITT T20176K20165F12A31 8, ARARKTERANBER THEANKLRE . BREEEFPTFRRAY S HAM
ERBEERNERNERE. TR MHEERIE, LA EANEREETH S NRERKEEEY .

(5) RHBHANLIE
RERRNLR RS MATHRRIBRARAHIRMT.

2017412H31H
FERER 378,725 383,282 1,763,138 2,525,145
RIE TR 188,477 207,545 1,104,322 1,500,344
IR G IR 64,664 117,451 1,087,689 1,269,804
RGN 39,719 95,419 5,606,401 5,741,539
&t 671,585 803,697 9,561,550 11,036,832
2016412H31H
FERARMK 282,858 325,788 1,791,645 2,400,291
RIEGR 212,635 247,321 1,145,426 1,605,382
IR 82,422 178,993 1,142,840 1,404,255
R ER 112,666 126,654 4,668,899 4,908,219

&it 690,581 878,756 8,748,810 10,318,147
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2017412H31H
ERARK 375,426 381,955 1,773,812 2,531,193
RIERFK 186,633 207,130 1,101,135 1,494,898
IR G R 42,874 62,642 1,062,404 1,167,920
TR G 37,995 95,090 5,597,048 5,730,133
&1t 642,928 746,817 9,534,399 10,924,144
20164E12H31H
= AEXK 282,415 323,223 1,789,393 2,395,031
RIETE K 209,815 245,880 1,145,158 1,600,853
ERLIAE I 55,654 120,151 1,133,892 1,309,697
TR G R 112,260 126,595 4,655,401 4,894,256
&it 660,144 815,849 8,723,844 10,199,837
R RRMBEFIZB PR BEELT RO .
AEH AT
BE K 8 HAth R R E (i) 10,951,827 10,222,719 10,844,284 10,109,746
B E (i) 8,207 4,826 8,207 3,549
ERE (iif) 76,798 90,602 71,653 86,542
&it 11,036,832 10,318,147 10,924,144 10,199,837
B BT R EES (40,087) (57,645) (38,475) (55,950)
HETFEREREE (354,070) (366,329) (343,813) (361,413)
(394,157) (423,974) (382,288) (417,363)
bk 10,642,675 9,894,173 10,541,856 9,782,474

() BEREHERRERN R ERIER
BEREPORBENEREAMERNEARET BRI SEREARNTHR ™ RED LKHTIME.

A EHE T
EE 10,258,048 9,115,606 10,154,818 9,004,552
xE 693,779 1,107,113 689,466 1,105,194
A1t 10,951,827 10,222,719 10,844,284 10,109,746

(i) SELERARRAE A R BB R AR

F2017E K 20165128310, AEFABH R BERR T SEMNFERRARMI816{ZTMI5.722 . RIBEREXBRME,
EEHMERRAREST A TR ZRRRNK BT ZNEERER, ERRALZRE. HMaBRRERRKART
63.91{2tM32.5412T . ZEFIBXRIBREHMNEEZFEREE, SREXNEE.

ERERAMBRIZAIAERTI=MT

A& AT
BHEA90K MK 6,453 3,995 6,453 2,822
BWHIOOK M 1,754 831 1,754 727
A1t 8,207 4,826 8,207 3,549

MR B =M O 3,873 2,319 3,873 1,211
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(i) ERMEMREFRMER
ERENRBERMERBERITMOT

A EEH x1T
B E A R B AR 76,798 90,602 71,653 86,542
W BRI R E (40,087) (57,645) (38,475) (55,950)
) 36,711 32,957 33,178 30,592
IRIRYE S A 25,039 20,890 23,622 19,381

(iv) EHEERAERK

FARRERAEBRARMSRIELMNBELAZBRERAEFERTNBELT AEANATEBRAETREERERNOE
HERERISNEEZHMERARTEASLETIRIRME A, XERETEAREEZFEb TN, T2017£128318, A% H
MAFTEARFESTMAARMT123.10127T (20165E12831H . AR™I1.47127T).

20176 ARBARKITHERD ERHET T RS EA, WL T ERERE S 2ANEIARTMSTIZTNEREAANMEIAR
1,007 94Z T BB, ELRREEAR ST AEARKTHINNBESEEAREFEKX.

(6) AR R
AR A S BEE R T .

|
i
M

B S8 B th R R E (i) 2,017,851 1,452,170
EREE (ii) 2,458 2,321
&it 2,020,309 1,454,491
B BT E AR (638) (503)
AR 2,019,671 1,453,988
AT
L omERANE | 0leEIZASIE
B R 38 At R B (i) 1,989,463 1,423,936
ERE (i) 11 18
a1t 1,989,474 1,423,954
W BRI R E A= (11) (18)
R 1,989,463 1,423,936
() Bt REEN R R
A EEH
BUS B ABUR SRS 34,079 135,736 98 1,096,088 1,266,001
SRS 3,434 37,345 25,093 5,571 71,443
NERSE 63,265 37,874 3,197 94,458 198,794
=L 4,427 216 - 713 5,356
B 7 &8 108,822 301,053 = = 409,875
KNBE SR 19,418 - - - 19,418
FRUE b R 5 b fE R 26,043 - - - 26,043
AT R ITHER I = & 10,323 - - - 10,323
HEEEITY 7,417 - - = 7,417
FHIT R EH A - - - 3,181 3,181

&it 277,228 512,224 28,388 1,200,011 2,017,851
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BURF ZOEBUR LG 655 18,534 138,075 - 570,138 726,747
SERIBHES 2,951 12,611 786 4,045 20,393
ABFFH 59,422 39,682 350 62 99,516
B = RIS - 278 - 1,010 1,288
ERZ:3::] 111,462 419,259 - - 530,721
FENBRESRE = 19,579 - - - 19,579
(53 ERIYAERIA-E N 40,365 - - - 40,365
FTRITHEM & 6,238 - - - 6,238
g 3,291 - - - 3,291
EHEH I R H A - - - 4,032 4,032
&it 261,842 609,905 1,136 579,287 1,452,170

BURF B EBUR LA 35 33,974 134,397 - 1,096,088 1,264,459
SRV BR 3,461 37,885 24,641 5,571 71,558
NERE 60,395 33,155 200 94,419 188,169
R ZFFIES 4,427 - - 2,712 7,139
Blze 108,822 298,311 - = 407,133
ENBESRE > 19,418 - - - 19,418
FRUE A R E L fERR 26,043 - - - 26,043
1T R AT = & - - - = =
g 5,544 = = = 5,544
&it 262,084 503,748 24,841 1,198,790 1,989,463

BUS BB FHES 18,442 137,499 - 569,921 725,862
SR G 2,331 12,498 271 4,045 19,145
A B i 51,616 32,024 350 - 83,990
B =R AR - - - 4,274 4,274
E 78 111,462 419,259 - - 530,721
EINBESRA > 19,579 - - - 19,579
FRE LK & B 40,365 - - - 40,365
B BRI - - - - -
TR TN > & - - - - -
&it 243,795 601,280 621 578,240 1,423,936

(i) BRERMHERERE

AN AT
[ cowEiASIA | 01cF12AGIA | 207EIZASIE  2016F12ASIE
AFFFH 189 197 11 18
FHRIT R E A 2,103 1,958 = -

2,292 2,155 11 18
R BRI R E A& (488) (353) (11) (18)
R 1,804 1,802 = -

AEF NI E N R A BT EREES, T2017F128310, AEFASHETHE EENMRANKEEEIART
016127t (2016FE12831H . ARMO0.161Z7t), RITITIRMBEEE XTI A ART1.501Z7T (20165128318 . ARM1.50127T).
F2017#12B31B £2016F12B31BARTEE BIEM T H &GN HIREA.
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THRITFT ARARATHEAER A WE MEZ T %58 I T NERIFRIEHERTRDEER.
b S|

BUF R A BRI G35 14,982 = = = 1,250,817 202 1,266,001
SR FFH 10,276 1,605 650 1,035 - 57,877 71,443
ATRFE 31,810 13,327 21 3,627 - 150,025 198,810
=S 2,398 - - 131 - 2,827 5,356
ERZ::C 409,875 = = = = = 409,875
KNBESRE ™ = - - - - 19,418 19,418
B E AL & 5 L fE5R = - - - - 26,043 26,043
HEEEITR = - - - = 7,417 7,417
fhi7 &7 AR = & = - - - - 10,323 10,323
BRI R EH A = = - - - 4,985 4,985
&it 469,341 14,932 671 4,793 1,250,817 279,117 2,019,671

BUR R AB GRS 14,503 - - - 702,867 9,377 726,747
SRR 14,715 4,484 1,092 - - 102 20,393
ATfHEE 24,415 8,947 8,966 703 - 59,792 102,823
RIS 971 - - - - 317 1,288
Bk FEe 470,271 12,095 - - - 48,355 530,721
ENBESRE ™ - - - - - 19,579 19,579
B E AL & 5k f&5R - - - - - 40,365 40,365
TR AT IR = & - - - - - 6,238 6,238
BT R EA - - - - - 5,834 5,834
a1t 524,875 25,526 10,058 703 702,867 189,959 1,453,988
AT

BUS R AB TG ES 14,530 - - = 1,249,727 202 1,264,459
SR G 12,481 1,228 - 696 - 57,153 71,558
NERSE 30,855 13,194 = 3,568 = 140,552 188,169
=S 3,907 405 = = = 2,827 7,139
N Z::C 407,133 = - - = = 407,133
T NIRE SRR = - - - - - 19,418 19,418
FIE L R 5 b &R = = - - - 26,043 26,043
REEEITR = = - - - 5,544 5,544
&it 468,906 14,827 - 4,264 1,249,727 251,739 1,989,463

BUS BOEBUSHL M 675 14,503 - - - 701,982 9,377 725,862
SRR S 14,715 3,817 400 - - 213 19,145
AFRE 17,263 350 6,271 314 - 59,792 83,990
B L FES 1,971 500 - - - 1,803 4,274
GNZ:EE 470,271 12,095 - - - 48,355 530,721
ENBESRE ™ - - - - - 19,579 19,579
B E AL & 5L & 5K - - - - - 40,365 40,365
&it 518,723 16,762 6,671 314 701,982 179,484 1,423,936

(1) RIFRBFEABMNBEFHETACRTEBRFNZEBRANE, MWER. PEARRT CEASMBIRMERT.
(2) RIFEEMBENMERABFERE A SDREER. BRIEMREAS . BRI, B RTRAEY > RMNEEITUE.
Q) ETRTANED TRV FEERANE.



116 / MSREME

(7) ERMAFREFHTLS S

R GER LR
£ 20174£12H31H 2016412H31H
.

7 X B0E 2,728,850 25 2,130,237 21
i ERIE 1,792,708 16 1,694,640 16
B RS ROKA £ AR 1,048,395 9 964,109 9
REEIT S 929,434 8 894,690 9
KA. BREBRIPAL IR MBI 860,768 8 949,813 9
Aim. AT 745,828 7 727,199 7
s 551,846 5 570,188 6
Wi AR 412,919 4 353,912 3
RE A 300,629 3 433,376 4
a0 246,855 2 201,943 2
HAthiz 208,577 2 186,960 2
HE 129,289 1 108,356 1
BEMEMERERRS L 95,688 1 100,630 1
Hith 985,046 9 1,002,094 10
&it 11,036,832 100 10,318,147 100
B BREEAEE (394,157) (423,974)

RN GER MRS 10,642,675 9,894,173

T 2017412 H31H 20164£12831H

S T e

7 X B0E 2,700,047 25 2,125,626 21
RS 1,784,213 16 1,683,104 17
B RS ROK A E R 1,001,172 9 962,289 9
FREIT S 925,884 8 892,518 9
KA. BRI IR E IR 856,688 8 882,883 8
i, AT 740,756 7 721,574 7
g 564,682 5 573,610 6
Wi AR 407,232 4 348,657 3
KF A 299,809 3 432,003 4
SEhb 237,578 2 201,943 2
HAthizt 211,138 2 175,796 2
HE 129,165 1 108,333 1
BEMEMERERRS L 95,397 1 100,469 1
Hith 970,383 9 991,032 10
&it 10,924,144 100 10,199,837 100
B RREEAES (382,288) (417,363)

RUMFRALI ST 10,541,856 0782 474
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‘
i
=

20174£12H31H

B RBFTHRIM 264,866 - - 264,866
FFRUE b FR I - 1,129,033 = 1,129,033
HHEE - 227,739 = 227,739
MARMETEERENITALBRFNSHE~ 286,759 157,717 601,531 1,046,007
BT SRR~ 6,408 29,263 2,216 37,887
TR ESRA - 497,965 8,207 506,172
T E SRR 135,736 338,398 38,106 512,240
HHEEZIPRE 98 25,093 3,197 28,388
BRI R 1,096,088 5,571 100,156 1,201,815
Ht &RH ™ 20,794 7,524 38,132 66,450
1,810,749 2,418,303 791,545 5,020,597

2016%12H31H

BRI 275,433 - - 275,433
FIE AL R - 686,853 - 686,853
HEHES - 162,663 - 162,663
MARMETEEEEHITALSHRANERA > 415,930 63,727 610,423 1,090,080
PTHE SRR~ 237 22,107 3,142 25,486
INERESRE ™ - 669,917 10,477 680,394
T ESRA 138,075 431,870 39,976 609,921
ﬁﬁgéu,ﬂﬁﬁﬁ - 786 350 1,136
IR R 570,138 4,045 6,906 581,089
Ht &% ™ 8,849 15,374 29,712 53,935
1,408,662 2,057,342 700,986 4,166,990

AT

2017£412H31H

B RBITRI 264,459 - - 264,459
FIE LRI - 1,111,631 - 1,111,631
HEES - 227,739 - 227,739
MARMETEEERHITALSHRENEHE > 286,654 157,744 586,465 1,030,863
PTESMA~ 6,408 29,298 2,216 37,922
ENBE SRR = - 493,783 - 493,783
Tt E SR 134,397 336,196 33,155 503,748
SRR = 24,641 200 24,841
ISl E e 1,096,088 5,571 97,131 1,198,790
HAth & BhEE = 20,794 6,915 27,279 54,988

1,808,800 2,393,518 746,446 4,948,764
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BUAT R A B R HLAE ERIML AR R EA Ait

2016412H31H
PR BTN 273,781 - - 273,781
U A SR - 626,371 - 626,371
FEAS - 170,576 - 170,576
UarsMETEEETHITASHRRENSRA> 415,838 63,107 593,088 1,072,033
LT ERE >~ 237 22,262 3,142 25,641
EINEESRE™ - 669,893 - 669,893
T ESmE 137,499 431,757 32,024 601,280
HEEEHRA - 271 350 621
VAl €/ RUTE3 374 569,921 4,045 4,274 578,240
Hith &R ™ 8,849 7,119 25,232 41,200
1,406,125 1,995,401 658,110 4,059,636

3. WiAXEE

THRBREETHNE (AR TR REMENRSNHE) WRAZHTHERTRIMNFIN S RERAORG. KEATE
M HRAR B OERTKS SXBKANFE TERE,

AEATHRREEN A FEETHRREENEHE— A TEZOEEN, MREEENKKER. X8 OEHRARAEE
— A EEMTHRKR KT TRSREMEE, ¥ BRIESARATHRG ERENNARKZEABLROTHAL.
AEARBEFLREFEEASBNOARBIREETHAR . AR EETKIALEAF NHAEEERS KERETHR
B BT ESRTAWATARR KBRS BREFNTHNRATHEE,

© XBWASRITHSMIS

AEABEGNTHRR X ERET X HKS SRTHS T,

X HARIE NS R EMRRTRE TN AR SNSRI ARNRSLT. BTKARIEHEX S B HME
B RASFERUAZ S AR AAERLSES,
XEKARBTRAOTHRRERARERRNASBHES ANRIEEL MR T ERMES, b RREERARSERK
1 HERARRERTRNASEITHRRIRE, AEREATAF AEEEREADS]. L aFRTKATEREH
HERREE, EHRAS AEEEERSRIROKACERBIFIRRGSERE.

© THRKIHEEARNEEN®

THRRBITRAEE. TEEME. AR ROSH . GBI T RS,

© XHHKA

HEBWHS ARARAX BRI, RERIES . LR GBS ETFRREEHEXRBRR.

A ER AR AN R & A BB o B T 28 B A R S (TR SRBIB R AR, St S BT R 5 AEATN
BEARER SIS EANRESNHRIE BRTHMETRS RN T AN ZSHEEW, =BETHRERIES.
AEAEETHNRHETARERENNARKZENSHERTALRE, B NEINRET XHELRELENN
BIRET. NG SRR ARX B A LT HRRMO RG] it KiERRs,

© HREKA

HEGKS ATIEBENWIRRR. HERROGEBMA N, SELETERBRE. &b AR EEREITEERS. AP
FEFRERRERFRAALRERRIHRER, ASBERSEROZETENHERRILERGETERRG it &
A AEERERSRE.

% F R FUT R R B BUR AR R A3 FIR KK R3Q)TRRK (BEREKATZ KD,

(1) FIERR

FIKAFERG RIEFEKT BREBZEER & AN LD SBRTH S EHERENSFHERERE RS,
AEAETEARERAETLEENSHENEFRBNARBGEBTHENLM,. FEARBTHARFEAFRIESTH
B AUSHIBRES LENS THERHFRKE. —RHS. A—FH. ARERNEEASNLEREOHERRZ.
20174, HEARRTREESMIHAR T RENERELFE,
FAKAFRRGERTENRENEFNERBEFNHEREANEEOHN, SLERROSN. AMDH . RANES
B 2R BMAERUAS B X BEA S REEHII R HETARGROKAHRRRER, XBKAOHRAR X EB
B EMFIRRAR GBI, 5 B HORRK O, THHESREGES.

EHBRERENERARSE, AREEMITRAREENRO . ABEIER, FEERDRRER EIEE) T5H SRS
T PR BT OGURH



EENHRODHT

MERERE / 119

ZARFXEENENEHE PREEFN L ARASTLEA > RS AFET X RO 26 NKEMET =N T,

AEH

2017412H31H

SR

N& R P RBITHI 264,823 = = - - 45 264,868
FIE AL R IR 1,096,067 6,105 3,813 105 - 22,943 1,129,033
HE#Ee 227,739 - - - - - 227,739
Llﬁfgggiiiizﬁ 113,025 78,122 72,629 14,222 1,870 871,162 1,151,030
LTHESRE > = = = - - 37,887 37,887
TNBE S BA - 499,126 4,942 2,104 = = = 506,172
R 5244599 2,981,302 151,997 211,184 2,053,573 20 10,642,675
T E SRR 230,860 144,767 89,564 44,408 2,944 9,853 522,396
BHEEIIKRA 16,159 8,715 2,360 1,154 - - 28,388
ISRl €T3 374 96,207 19,963 521,818 563,827 - = 1,201,815
Hit & H ™ 6,384 - - - - 60,066 66,450
SME~AT 7,794,989 3,243,916 844,285 834,900 2,058,387 1,001,976 15,778,453
SRR

B B E Ath & B AL A 77 AR T 111,102 - 3,150,142 - = 2,856 3,264,100
1) BT O HL fth € BRANLAG B3R 152,159 198,391 5,581 8,564 2,297 - 366,992
wWAES 42,538 42,791 - - - - 85,329
ui‘j;ﬁgggigi%? & 134,792 28,452 1,688 = = 27 164,959
FTHE SR TGS = - - - - 33,495 33,495
SE B & R =K 15,577 3,750 - - - - 19,327
R TFRK 1,887,691 101,427 65,122 8,021 5,801 2517 2,070,579
ERTHREIES 1,472,958 1,081,955 2,904,767 2,269,492 717,420 - 8,446,592
Htt & rh 5 21 64 551 1,158 = 189,401 191,195
SR fARATT 3,816,838 1,456,830 6,127,851 2,287,235 725,518 228,296 14,642,568
MEEHENGRASIT 3,978,151 1,787,086  (5,283,566)  (1,452,335) 1,332,869 773,680 1,135,885
2016&12H31H

SR AT 6,867,167 3,466,088 475,878 622,559 1,698,414 1,032,945 14,163,051
SR ARAETT 3,582,773 1,800,495 4,778,406 2,033,382 666,518 236,303 13,097,877
FESHFENHROEI 3,284,394 1,665,593  (4,302,528)  (1,410,823) 1,031,896 796,642 1,065,174




120 / MEBREME

20174£12H31H

SR

W4 R AFH R AR FTER IR 264,415 = = = = 45 264,460
FRE W R 1,088,688 = = = = 22,943 1,111,631
FHEAS 227,739 - - - - - 227,739
uﬁﬁgg;};igiig}t 109,055 75,818 61,660 14,008 1,543 768,779 1,030,863
PTESRMA™ = - - - - 37,922 37,922
PYNE- 493,783 = = = = = 493,783
R GER AR 5,201,212 2,929,751 148,374 208,946 2,053,573 - 10,541,856
T ESmA~ 230,004 141,467 85,968 43,365 2,944 33 503,781
BEEIHRA 16,159 8,682 - - = = 24,841
IV €/ RIE5 474 96,213 19,381 519,084 564,112 - - 1,198,790
Hithem#E ™ = = - - - 54,988 54,988
AT 7,727,268 3,175,099 815,086 830,431 2,058,060 884,710 15,490,654
SRS

B B H fth £ B ML A 77 HUER IR 111,112 - 3,150,142 = = 2,856 3,264,110
1) BT A EL & BRANAS (AR 100,711 147,661 - 4,796 991 - 254,159
HFARSE 38,738 42,791 - - - - 81,529
uﬁﬁggiig% 134,792 28,452 1,500 = = = 164,744
ke o4 Bl = = - - - 33,489 33,489
SEHEM SR A=K 7,790 = = = = = 7,790
R 77 5K 1,909,552 111,294 65,122 8,021 5,801 2,517 2,102,307
ERTHRFILES 1,473,048 1,064,042 2,862,286 2,255,333 717,419 - 8,372,128
HAth & Bh R = = = - - 175,241 175,241
SRAKET 3,775,743 1,394,240 6,079,050 2,268,150 724,211 214,103 14,455,497
FEEFENERD AT 3,951,525 1,780,859  (5,263,964)  (1,437,719) 1,333,849 670,607 1,035,157
20164 12H31H

SRA~AIT 6,699,016 3,452,181 455,269 611,225 1,696,150 928,303 13,842,144
EmAHRET 3,476,100 1,719,247 4,800,458 2,017,950 649,739 199,470 12,862,964
FMEEFENRD AT 3,222,916 1,732,934  (4,345,189)  (1,406,725) 1,046,411 728,833 979,180

R EBAN R E LR Gk e A GUR M D47

TRITTABRRARBERNFTEFALTRI00NESNELT, ETRENRAAEANER T~ SHRARNEND, WK
k12D B RF RS RA R MRS T £ RE AR 0. ZA R HAROFIRGDAARBEERS, RRRERELF
RPEmEMFRLERFR LB,

AEH 20174 20164

KEERAE | HEREN  RBGAKE  RESK.  ResakE
LEF10040E = 41,510 (6,240) 34,984 (8,331)
TRE100 M £ & (41,510) 6,616 (34,984) 8,829
AT 20174 20164

KEEBAEL | MEREA  RBGAKE  RESK.  ResakE
EF10040E & 41,254 (6,196) 34,699 (8,085)
THE100 £ & (41,254) 6,572 (34,699) 8,583

N B FRANNFEIZIE - EFNEEHARFE AT KRR —FARTHEEENHNSRA RERAGAT LR SRR
M. AN REARFENERA T RAGENEBRETE, REEFATH. BEREHGHFRIEENANERLEEER.
MEMGEREAZMREETFE—ENEXLTINNPRABENTHREESRA S #TEGRLAANMELTNHZNE.
AEFNAZBREHREELAEANASEARMNENEEENBR, At ERPEWIRSKIRBELFEESR. A, LRFIRE
HPMAFTRREAGIE, ETFES MR EBEEEAEARNFENERRT, FER2ERAMABEERANEITER. B
FFFRFE R E IR 4RI 2 MU o 88 R A KBS B IR IE SN .



(2) ICRXE

REFFIBINTICR R~ ERTRAR ZREEZmEMSRAMASRE,
REFANKRTDWERARTLS, WHMEET. Koo, BxMEMNASI TS, BEMIEDTEREN, RAEHAMCERNEE
BEPEXT, AEFASFALRGTET AN X THAFETXMR, 2017FE, AR X ETTCEAE0.40287T/13% 7T (20164

ER{E0.4434T/1%ETT).,

MEIRERE /121

AEAFTEBIINCHA OCRGEM D TER K (FaR)ZFHELR VAN RITEENZ W, FRULBLEMARE N

BHMEMRS AR FETRRTILERN G ER,

AEAEHTHLRREHASSE, UWERBEASMAGRTEARTKEMEI AT,

A&

2017412H31H

SRR

& R AFHHRRITHRIM 264,790 75 3 264,868
A b FR IR 1,016,879 78,800 33,354 1,129,033
HEHES 68,980 154,395 4,364 227,739
MARMETTEERTHITALSPRBNSRE > 1,124,921 24,886 1,223 1,151,030
PTHESRE 34,664 2,023 1,200 37,887
ENBRESRE = 506,172 - - 506,172
RIGER TR 9,025,935 1,444,120 172,620 10,642,675
THEESmA S~ 486,142 29,655 6,599 522,396
FERIEER 3,262 25,126 = 28,388
N BRIN K48 5 1,107,126 94,650 39 1,201,815
Hith SRR~ 57,821 8,026 603 66,450
SRME~AET 13,696,692 1,861,756 220,005 15,778,453
SRR

[ b & Hfth S RRATLAG 7 BRI 3,035,866 211,495 16,739 3,264,100
1) AT O H h & B AL A9 B 3K 95,419 255,804 15,769 366,992
WARE 21,800 56,676 6,853 85,329
A RMETEE RTINS HIRE SRR 164,959 = - 164,959
TSR R R 31,036 2,131 328 33,495
S B0 € R E = 5K 19,327 = = 19,327
R W 73K 1,806,261 188,768 75,550 2,070,579
ERTHREIES 8,288,732 105,539 52,321 8,446,592
HAth&Fh R 180,677 9,868 650 191,195
SRR 13,644,077 830,281 168,210 14,642,568
WA L% 52,615 1,031,475 51,795 1,135,885
CERLTETR (FR/BXEM) 350,772 (307,510) (35,717) 7,545
EH&IE 3,383,314 296,758 62,636 3,742,708
2016%12H31H

SR AT 12,142,045 1,820,866 200,140 14,163,051
eRAGRATT 12,108,023 842,301 147,553 13,097,877
FRAWIE LT3 34,022 978,565 52,587 1,065,174
CELTETR (GR/EXER) 312,440 (284,276) (44,143) (15,979)
(B 37 3,093,231 300,920 62,827 3,456,978




122/ MSREME

T

2017412H31H

ERLE

N& RFHRFRBITHRIM 264,415 42 3 264,460
FRE LRI 1,019,518 59,071 33,042 1,111,631

FEAS 68,980 154,395 4,364 227,739
UAAMETEERTEHITALHARBHESRE = 1,030,863 = = 1,030,863
LT ERE >~ 34,664 2,058 1,200 37,922
ENIBE SR = 493,783 = = 493,783
RILEFRFOELR 8,930,589 1,439,071 172,196 10,541,856
T E SR 472,447 24,821 6,513 503,781

FEERHAE T 200 24,641 - 24,841

IS €/ QU537 1,104,370 94,420 - 1,198,790
Hit A~ 46,946 7,652 390 54,988
SRR~ E 13,466,775 1,806,171 217,708 15,490,654
AR

Bk % HAth & m AL 7RI 3,035,876 211,495 16,739 3,264,110
15 BT O EL A € BRANAG A 5K - 239,698 14,461 254,159
wARE 18,000 56,676 6,853 81,529
UrmET A EHITALHRENSRAR 164,744 - - 164,744
LT SR RR 31,036 2,125 328 33,489
S B 1 £ 3 =K 7,790 - - 7,790
Ul ec 1,826,587 199,155 76,565 2,102,307
ERTTHRFIESH 8,233,376 86,431 52,321 8,372,128
Hth e r A 170,085 4,512 644 175,241

SR ARETT 13,487,494 800,092 167,911 14,455,497
RAWTE L% (20,719) 1,006,079 49,797 1,035,157
CELTETR (AR/ZBXEE) 350,772 (807,510) (35,717) 7,545
(B ¥ S 3,395,858 303,369 62,636 3,761,863
2016412H31H

SRBE~a 11,958,289 1,693,724 190,131 13,842,144
ERINBET 11,958,121 757,651 147,192 12,862,964
FRATE L 168 936,073 42,939 979,180
CELTETR (FR/EXEE) 312,440 (284,268) (44,143) (15,971)

BEHRE 3,116,210 313,412 62,827 3,492 449




MERENE /123

MRARTNEMINTACEREF1%, WARARMGESRBLMAEKR, NHRATFINZ W RHT .

AREH AT
Comie . wes miE e
ETHBARTLCEED
EF1% 10,315 9,191 10,061 8,766
TB&1% (10,315) (9,191) (10,061) (8,766)
AR TN N R FENZ WA, RERzAECNRENESR, FREFEUTEE.

- AERfRBRASAZRILTHANEL,
- CEREHMNEFFITANEM,
- BEFETERSNERARTLTHAFTHEFES.
- LR THNEF .

- ENERUBE
RAMNERIEAFAREEEEN. ELERNUEERARBEEA S U E = B RA XA R B GHSH R . Rt R
JREMEEBRITEERNA FRANXSURTERRRERBRIRASHER.
AEART—BERSMEERRTRY SENRERLHRAASTOEHMNEE . £ TUARE2ITEF ARRE
RS
20174, ATHEBEXTLHAFHRMAZTR. RERESHMEXH BEFARMNGEEKINBBRESRENRE, £X7
BEBBEATS ENEREBRTHHENTNIFERE.
© REnEREEER BRMRE
AEFAARESXEBEASRANER, APEEEFHEXR. DHANERER. BEES. BRAH. BETERERABALEETNL
M T RAOMRER,
BARFNERYHAEENASRBREHNEAECEZARARARSMNEEENERRR. AT U SEETHENHRIT
REEH ARARFASMAGNENTECEEFAXHN. RERMLTTESRESKE. ERNBEFESERENNE. &
SRS NERCERA DA TRHESEEEZA.
RAFENREEZASERIURENEENE, RERIERMMNRHAEEOEER]. AEANRN T ERRESTE.
- MNERETHOINESR. FBEEEREE~HIKTE,
- BRAFAFRSMERA.
- EEGRSIHANEDEHL,
- #RRSRAITLY.
AEARHEBREET D LR THGENTRHTERE NN RN, THEREREMEARERRAN M, Lo, R\EHEZ
% M —MARANNG WEPER HASEIHERE MREBAKH. EHRRENFAIRANRLFTR, KEARE
TEEAENS R R,
BEBAT, RRAFFPNIE=ZTLRERLFEANERIEMRKENSTETRBAS, ALRE/BRNFREMEMFTNA
E—REMFARENSI. BN, BAEARETERLH . P EREFRHNENRREHTLELFET. BELERKENG
BEMFRDARZRKFAFNEHRAST R,
O ERI ARSI
REFAEHF DR MR, DURFERSNMERMETT . 7 & IR . M 8.
AEANRABRENARIRERSALTINS ERNRERATHNEEMER . LARMBABTRNEARAEFTENKGIRE
B, AR REARNRATRIBAFTRASHEN ., ARABIRTEENRLEINFREHFBEEFERABTR. X
ERESTRKRAEER, MEAKASERSHEIAERSIHZABED. B2, AEERARSNIARARTHETHRD
B4 T2017812A31 0, ARAKYPR (B AE—FH—F U L) EXTRSIESEFEITAART7.147127T(20165F 127
31H: ARM6.7051Z2%) R KBRS (BHEFEL R E M-SRV FRARM. @ BAMEMSrAIMER. L0 0 mEee s~
HAMRRTR) EFEITHARM3.28F{Z7T (20165F12F310 . ARM2.02H127T) .,



124/ MSREME

RERAENRKARD L, ARAETESRIAT ST RFLEENTESRITIARVEASGRASRABIITOT, K
ANXLESRTEMPNASRES TRTNONTREEZENER.

KER 20178128318
I
AT ERR
e RBEHHRETHR 408 264,460 - - - - - - 264,868
BHELHM 22950 1,156,788 7,430 373 16,997 1,244 105 - 1,205,887
bt - - 144,093 84,376 - - - - 208,469
Wiggggiiii‘mﬂ\ 91,205 5619 226,220 49,950 94,306 241,044 201,457 320594 1,230,485
ENEESRA = = 499,021 641 5289 2,243 = = 507,194
RIGEER AR 15,561 1,256 93,526 262,995 1566562 5747808 3,809,355 5098499 16,595,562
JHEESHAS 9,139 4,437 84,152 145,775 153,187 110,349 53,637 3,860 564,536
HEZHHRE - - 5423 10,681 8,975 2,780 1,528 - 29,387
RRETERA 142 = 336 5,454 55,198 667,610 630,227 97,576 1,456,543
Hiremane 599 4,355 168 618 4,001 3977 1,790 = 15,508
FOESRAS B 140,094 1436915 1,060,369 560,863  1,904515 6,777,055 4698099 5520529 22,098,439
EiTEERA R
Bl R E & RAMERT - 68,880 5,864 242 39,808 3,150,153 - - 3,264,947
BB AR &AM R - = 14,442 74,581 187,026 68,938 14,789 25,773 385,549
KINEE = = 21,777 15,810 43,479 - - - 87,066
”%Q%iﬁ?“ 27 - 72,293 63,808 29,263 1,598 = - 166,989
S EHEBASHK - - 7,810 7,810 3971 - - = 19,591
U CERA - 1,766,071 71,131 53,187 102,692 69,464 9,728 10,707 2,082,980
ERREIES - - 280,618 271550 1,032,410 4733334 2892336 1408531 10,618,779
Hith &Rl 1 67 176 4,037 882 1,222 2,227 5,898 5,783 2 20,227
FrEernREN 203 1,838,988 480,817 488210 1440876 8020385 2922636 1445013 16,646,128
BT 139,891 (402073) 579,552 72,653 463,639  (1,252,330) 1775463 4075516 5452311
fTESMIANSR
BANEENITEERTIA
T TIN = = 104 (111) 162 735 878 1,919 3,687
BRBEENITEERTIA
MWEHA - - 440,075 554,515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
M - - (439,733)  (555207) (1,032,807) (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)

fTEEBMIERERAT = = 446 (803) 4142 1,292 886 1,915 7,878




MERENE /125

2016412H31H

A S8 gmmer  10Am  1EAR 9ER0A 1ESE SEIOR  foEME A
Elhea
e REMARBITHR 1,221 274,361 - - - - - - 275,582
FE LM - 187,662 245,977 236,241 21,622 547 51 - 692,100
i - - 99,841 46,089 26,112 - - - 17204
X;\%fggﬁﬁﬁﬁ A 85,688 6970 26,603 85344 147517 90078 203670 530158 1,176,008
EINEESRA - - 623,197 51,936 6,323 %4 - - 681,550
R G AEAR 18,984 - 67,728 209,737 1,388,009 5461050 3,220,004 3882200 14,247,712
THREESRHAS 16,164 - 34,417 184,995 254,655 105,979 63,028 4115 663,353
HEZHHRA - - - 3 235 963 - - 1,201
S CES T - - 408 2,308 19,234 334,912 354,834 - 711,696
HithemA~ 1,258 2,449 125 874 2,831 5,082 2,875 - 15,494
i SpA~ B8 123,315 471442 1,098,296 817527 1866538 5098705 3844462 4416473 18,636,758
SRR R
B R H th & s A F IR - 132,305 2,300 2472 4204 2,074,367 - - 2215648
BB E SR ER - - 16,648 116,498 81,528 131,055 19,156 20,575 385,460
LN &3 - - 29,265 20,719 15,880 - - - 65,864
ug%ﬁ%g%&%mﬂ 139 - 13,224 38,067 80,889 - - - 132,319
L EBSRME K - - 2,649 2,648 3,487 4,056 - - 12,840
R HAR - 1835329 113,174 29,133 98,356 95,982 7,909 11,863 2,191,746
ERIREIH - - 234,304 161,568 1,062,569  4,355282 2,841,177 1302537 9,957,437
Hith& 21,379 7,428 2,307 162,693 8,515 4,239 6,206 137 212,904
ik Gam 21518 1975062 413 871 533798 10355428 6664981 2874448 1335112 15174218
Bkt 101,797 (1,503,620) 684,425 283,729 511,110 (666,276) 970014 3081361 3462540
TELBRIENER
BENAENTEERTIR
i)ﬁ/%m - - 51 (47) 166 986 1,107 1,234 3,497

MAEENITEEMTIA

E}'lﬁiﬁ)\ - - 283,074 198,065 750,844 62,720 862 18 1295583
et - - (282237)  (197,601)  (752,063) (66,044) (864) (15)  (1,298,824)

fTEEMIENERAT - - 888 47 (1,053) (2,338) 1,105 1,237 256




126 / MSREME

F:Xy 20174128310

R e o e
JETE SRR
ReRFEHPRETRIR - 264,460 - - - - - - 264,460
FHE LT 22943 1,088,688 = = = = = - 1,111,631
biideh 3 - - 144,093 84,376 - - - - 228,469
uiggggii;imm\ - - 225860 46,474 91,607 225641 201,181 319,816 1,110,579
FNBESRA - - 494,209 - - - - - 494,209
K GEHRLR 15,069 = 92816 258,101 1545680 5676334 3,780,426 5,099,679 16,468,105
THEESRMA> 4,444 - 84,151 144,854 149,667 106,187 52,203 3,860 545,366
HEZHBER - - 5,423 10,781 8,835 = = = 25,039
R A 11 - 336 5,435 53,713 659,397 626,563 97,576 1,443,031
Hittemi > - 1,348 66 1 2,654 224 - - 4,293
A SRAT BH 42467 1354496 1046954 550,022 1,852,156 6,667,783 4,660,373 5520931 21,695,182
FEfTE SR AR
Bl B £ fh & BT = 68,891 5,864 242 39,808 3,150,153 = - 3,264,958
BBURTE SR ER - - 706 73,765 132,830 47,602 5,962 1,054 261,919
HNEE - - 23,974 15,810 43,479 - - - 83,263
uiggggii?émﬂ - = 72,293 63,808 29,263 1,598 = - 166,962
SEH B SRE R - - 7,810 - - - - - 7,810
UTEEE A - 1,786,893 71,132 54,225 112,558 69,464 9,728 10,707 2,114,707
ERAREIES - - 280617 271550 1,022,347 4,689,048 2875694 1,408,531 10,547,787
Hib & 51657 - 813 858 403 923 651 5 2 3,655
FErELRMAKREE - 1,856,597 463,254 479,803 1,381,208 7958516 2,891,389 1,420,294 16,451,061
A3kt 42467 (502,101) 583,700 70219 470948 (1,290,733) 1768984 4,100,637 5,244,121
TEERTANS R
REMAHNTESHMTIA
REZRAN - - 108 (100) 158 739 876 1,919 3,700
RETMAENTESHTIA
RERA - - 440,075 554,515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
e - - (439,733)  (555,207) (1,082,807 (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)

TEEMIENERAET - = 450 (792) 4,138 1,296 884 1915 7,891




MERENE /127

2016412H31H

S OPD BBEE  1MAR  1E30A 0ER0A  1ESE  SEOE  0RME A
FETES A
& RFRNHRBITHM - 273,895 - - - - - - 273,895
FHELHTR - 135421 241,894 234,185 20,307 - - - 631807
HEAE - - 99,437 46,089 26,112 - - - 171,638
uﬁggg;iiiimﬂ\ - - 24,376 85344 139,113 99908 203256 530,158 1,082,155
PONGE 2 - - 623,174 47,871 - - - - 671,045
R 17,422 - 66,440 204,075 1,362,856  5393,167 3,189,930 3875554 14,109,444
T ESRA 33 - 34,417 185,113 252,434 100,560 61,227 4,115 637,899
FREIPRE - - - 3 235 448 - - 686
Il EES A - - 408 2,240 17942 327,111 352,398 - 700,099
HihemA - 74 1 1 541 156 - - 773
FLTE S RE = B 17,455 409,390 1,090,147 804,921 1819540 5921,350 3,806,811 4,409,827 18,279,441
FETEER AR
B R E b & BTN - 132,933 2,300 2,472 4,204 2,074,367 - - 2216276
1) BURFAI L Ath & B A R 3R - - 20 77,753 39,028 136,798 6,057 1,363 261,019
HARE - - 28,964 20,719 15,880 - - - 65,563
uigﬁggii?éﬂﬁ}\ - - 13,224 38,067 80,888 - - - 132179
S E SRR - - - - - - - - -
e - 1,833,461 112,417 29,857 107,133 94,993 7,909 11,863 2,197,633
ERTHESIES - - 233714 161,061 1038710 4315551 2,840,433 1,302,537 9,892,006
Hitveram K - 640 2,271 38 3,528 322 5 2 6,806
FLrELRAREM - 1,967,034 392,910 329,967 1,289,371 6,622,031 2,854,404 1315765 14,771,482
kT 17455 (1,557,644) 697,237 474954 530,169  (700,681) 952,407 3,094,062 3,507,959
fTESRTARSH
BATMAENTESRIA
HEBRN - - 55 7) 246 1,060 1,098 1,234 3,666
REBAEMTESHIA
RERN - - 283,074 198,065 750,567 62,720 862 18 1,295,306
Wi - - (282237)  (197,601)  (751,779)  (66,044) (864) (15)  (1,298,540)

TEEMIAENERA - - 892 437 (966) (2,264) 1,096 1,237 432




128 / MBREME

HEhfRMN A

AERATHKRE. FHRR, RITAKLCERALERIIEINGRESITIZEREHBE LA RAT.
ZREEH
BRI 7,847 13,875 126,226 183,574 330,096 2,987,820 3,649,438
FFHARE RIBR 3,566 839 4,782 35,770 14,603 479 60,039
RITREILE 2,943 5,156 10,342 - - - 18,441
FHAEAIE 1,694 5,237 5,774 2,085 - - 14,790
&it 16,050 25,107 147,124 221,429 344,699 2,988,299 3,742,708
2016412H31H 10,144 26,149 128,060 339,359 350,109 2,603,157 3,456,978
T
BRI 7,847 13,875 126,264 183,642 330,096 2,997,335 3,659,059
FFHRRRZIER 3,566 839 7,783 42,303 14,603 479 69,573
RITERFILCE 2,943 5,156 10,342 - - - 18,441
FHERIE 1,694 5,237 5,774 2,085 - - 14,790
&it 16,050 25,107 150,163 228,030 344,699 2,997,814 3,761,863
2016%125831H 13,613 26,019 133,148 344,447 357,046 2,618,176 3,492 449

5 EMASMEMAGHLLMNE
ERTAENANENREEERARA SR AGERRTH EREBEBOMRN . GLEENERTH LRIRNE, KEF B &
ERAKRBESHTANARNE. MERAGRARERZATUNE AT HEE, BN TR REAEE S SEIE, BIK
SEMRXANEERARGEERTHSSEEENTRTHSENNEER HS A ANERIEENEFERRE—BL
AEAUD I E-EXNEHIATREREXZIAXFINIESEES XARRASEERTZTHRNITE (REHEE).
AERUDPAE_RRANEHIATREAFIESRE . TESN BEAULAANETEAERNIT AL HRENREKIEY > 2
BRARFRRAEVEEA ST ARTRSPHAANERRIRERELEEERTELNINEELERHE . SMFHEFALR
NERZRYBENHEERHE. TEAAXRATAALRENMBRR - RN RIERET AN H#THEE. RAEY~RRAR
FERAFEVEERERABAANASREN A TEE. FEERGESEY AT HINE.
AEAMDABEZEANERIETZAREAFENRLER ETRNMNERATEER TRENER, EERERGERATE
NRAME. MRNEERREZQRASRITIVE FH~% THASE, LRAAANENTERA T N HEESEERZWHT
TRNESH, FESHTREAEZHN FRERARE . IR EYRRRAEA KEEKER RN THTLASERE.



(1) MasgEtENERIA
AEANAANMETEN SR TAZ=1ERITNT:
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¥ S

AR . ERR BSRR . ¥ESRR &

SRA

WA RNET B EEEHIA LR SRS

ZH M ERA

% 913 31,558 = 32,471
B 78 - 89,182 - 89,182
BERESHR 2,501 313 = 2,814
EE A UARMETEREHERITA
L HA 5 A S R
W TE - - 870,988 870,988
% - 72,734 - 72,734
ERZE3] - 19,640 - 19,640
ENBESRE > - 19,418 - 19,418
FRUE A R E L fE R - 26,043 - 26,043
BRI - 7,417 = 7,417
AT KT = & - - 10,323 10,323
ETESRA >~
CELTETAR - 30,768 - 30,768
MEHFETR - 7,119 - 7,119
TS SRR
% 28,667 179,058 3,462 211,187
E 78 - 301,053 - 301,053
EeRA - 717 - 717
R TE 4,522 396 4,521 9,439
&it 36,603 785,416 889,294 1,711,313
SRR
A AN ETTE B RTINS BRSNS 5k
RABIIRNG = R E Ath - (164,959) - (164,959)
ETHE SRR
CRETETR = (27,239) = (27,239)
FIRETETR - (6,256) = (6,256)
&it = (198,454) - (198,454)
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SRR
MARNMETEEETHITA L PRENSHE>
RS HERA
¥ 4,928 55,500 - 60,428
[ERZES - 63,107 - 63,107
BRERBESEKE 3,534 - - 3,534
BEAIUAAMETEBEL TN
YRR SRR
@ TH - - 910,392 910,392
% - 20,479 - 20,479
ERIZ:3: - 48,355 - 48,355
ENBRE SR~ - 19,579 - 19,579
FRUE L K =) b &R - 40,365 - 40,365
H BRI - 3,291 - 3,291
fb4T R AT RV IR M = S - - 6,238 6,238
PTESRA™
CELTETR - 16,670 - 16,670
FMELTETR - 8,816 - 8,816
B b
%5 2,012 188,650 - 190,662
Bl - 419,259 - 419,259
BEeRAE - 200 - 200
MHETH 4,786 2,019 9,159 15,964
ait 15,260 886,290 925,789 1,827,339
SR AR
MARMETEEEZTHIT AL PREN SR A5
RANEVIR Y = 3 R H A - (128,917) - (128,917)
e ot WA o
CELTETR - (23,983) - (23,983)
MELHFETR - (8,167) - (8,167)

&it — (161,067) - (161,067)
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AT
eowgieAME [ #-RR #SER SRR &t
ERLET
AR ETH B B TR A SRS SR T~
% - 102,257 = 102,257
A TFE - 108,822 - 108,822
ENEBRESRE ™ - 19,418 - 19,418
FHE L & &) &R - 26,043 - 26,043
REEEITR - 5,544 - 5,544
M@mTHR - - 768,779 768,779
ETESRA~
CELGETR - 30,768 - 30,768
FELTETR - 7,154 - 7,154
TRt ESMA
i 24,821 177,154 3,462 205,437
ERIZEE - 298,311 - 298,311
W@ T E - - a0 33
&it 24,821 775,471 772,274 1,572,566
ERG R
A ARMETEBEEHIT A LR E N SRR
RIS = G R HAth - (164,744) = (164,744)
PSR TSR
CRGETHR = (27,239) = (27,239)
MELGETR - (6,250) = (6,250)
&it = (198,233) = (198,233)

EREF
AR METTE B HEFIT A\ L EIRE NS RE >~
s - 72,389 - 72,389
ERIZeE - 111,462 - 111,462
ENBESRE ™ - 19,579 - 19,579
FRUE L R =)k fE R - 40,365 - 40,365
W@ TE - - 828,238 828,238
ETHE SR~
CEFETR - 16,670 - 16,670
MELGFETR - 8,971 - 8,971
T ESRMA
s 1,863 180,158 - 182,021
B FE - 419,259 - 419,259
NHETH - - 33 33
&it 1,863 868,853 828,271 1,698,987
SRR
A AN ETTE B RTINS BRSNS 55k
RAZIIRN = R EAth - (128,778) - (128,778)
T SRR
LCELTETAR - (23,966) - (23,966)
FELHTETR - (8,150) - (8,150)
&it - (160,894) - (160,894)

2017 EM2016F E AKAE —FAME_EREMIAZ A LERES,
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AEALRE=ZRREHMTALHNNT:

ikl SRAS
20171 B1H 916,630 9,159 925,789
S (18,158) (109) (18,267)
#n 39,260 3,070 42,330
#E (49,104) = (49,104)
MNE=ZEREEH (633) - (633)
BERET
EAES (6,139) = (6,139)
Hhgz &l (545) (4,137) (4,682)
20174128310 881,311 7,983 889,294
201712 A31 BHANE =/ A fRH:
201 7T N IR E R R A 2,499 - 2,499
2017HEIT AR AW (545) (4,137) (4,682)
H5H SR

201641 1H 501,764 14,980 516,744
S (18,770) - (18,770)
#n 437,331 75 437,406
e - - -
MNE=ZRE R H - - -
BEEI
EAES (2,834) (42) (2,876)
Hitr el (861) (5,854) (6,715)
20164E12831H 916,630 9,159 925,789
201641231 HHBE MR =/ fkH -
2016 T AR s R A E/ (R K) 1,200 (42) 1,158
2016 IT AR A AR (861) (5,854) (6,715)
ATERE=ZRAEHMTAEZNMNT:
AT SRR~

2017€181H 828,238 33 828,271
S = = =
Lyl = 3,462 3,462
%H (49,464) - (49,464)
NE=RREH = = =
REE

ZES (9.995) = (9,995)

HivZE b = = =
2017£12F318 768,779 3,495 772,274
2017412 A31 BHEHMH/ AR

2017 N IREE R P AR (1,357) - (1,357)

20174 N R A IR - = =
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#4 SRAm
AR
R an WMMESMAE  SMAFA
B A
20161 81H 424,350 - 424,350
o . . .
a0 407,726 75 407,801
o - - .
WEB=RRE - - .
WMEET
EnES (3,838) (42) (3,880)
Ak _ _ _
20165128 31H 828,238 33 828,271
2016512 31 B RN AF Ml .
20164 A3 T B (819) (42) (861)

20164 T AR Ath 7 & 2 - - -

(2) EUARRMETEHERTE
AEAEURAANETENSEASMOE, AAARNEGTET TITTHTETRE ARNERERIEZNDAEZEXR.
() ALERFERFRETRM. FRELRI. HFEAS IANRESHAS BLERENRM. EAEHERX FARE, T8
[B] £ B0 8 7= 5K FLA BT A0 E A 5 6 P — S P B H RS oAt S IR R A SR T
HFUEEREB~REMAFNIHARTIE—FMUR, BSATHTHHNERSETNEN, HKENERIEAANE.

(i) HEEZEHPRA MRS ISR E
ETFRIESHRANAANENTRESATHROAEMR. FTELTHIESRE, WEARNEZRIZEFRARKRBEA SRR
TIHRMIEF R R EN A ERARTEE.

(ill) RIMETFRANETR

BTFHFRERNMNETEREFEARBRTEANIHEF B BAEMSE AKENELLAANENSEGI. BEF
RERNAAMENRSRENRIUERE WIERE A SIZRRORKHRIE MO ERTIR, S TRERR, HARNENTR
TR SRS RRE.

(v) BEEMNEREFAER. BLEFREMER

BEMNEREFAEFR. BLEFRMEROL2ANENRSREWMIVERE W EE B 5ZFR AR R KRR M TRIE,
EROEW)FRUAANETENSRA S MARHKENERLEARNE.

(v) ERITHREIES
BENAANENTZRNIBMISEFLUSHRIANTHIRNAE. S TEERESTHRNALUESRIATHRNORK
%, HARNENSIZHES R KR LR SRR S R A M SRENIEHE.
TRITTERTRFIEFNIKEMEMNRBRAARNE .

A& 2017412H31H 2016412H31H

| MEOME  OARBE KEHE ORHE

ERITREIUES 8,446,592 8,174,343 7,898,521 7,969,603
1T 2017412H31H 2016412H31H
CMEGE ARGE | mmes  aco
ERITREIUES 8,372,128 8,125,485 7,824,695 7,895,112
6. REAEIE

AEAHRTAAEENNALP LA~ NHEERTN NG NEEAZ HENERE.

- BREAEHAZLEMEHRFETEEVNHRENRTRER,

- RIEAKABSLERNNEEBFEANMAEEREDR,

- REFEENAXREMNIFLSER.

AEFAEERETEERZERSHAXIES], MEXBESHEENE SNEBAANZTERMNLERANZABER, KATEEE
EMRES ERABRNELER.

=. AFARERARER

AEARATEERR S KB EEM.

TH. WERRZHAE
AFHRTRAHYSRET0184686ECEATERLHA.
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HARMEFERAIMLE R R

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

BEESNDNE

Board of Directors Office

EED

Board of Directors

BREEE

Executive Management

U)YN Wb BURMRE B (Fk)
Executive Office Financial Research Institute Policy Research Department Planning Department
v, v,

\ \ \ \

eSS AeH NEEER R
Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Market Risk Management sl By Dasarine
Department Department J Department J P

\ \ \ \
Efr&r 5 Eira el s W F FEERESE

International Finance Global Cooperation Large Corporate Client Information Technology
Department Department y Department y Department
| ﬁEQWH | |
B 5 = = N
LR (FFb Mo 2R L BEATHE
q b s ministrative Affairs ]
Compliance Department Education & Training Department D Retired Staff Department
(CDB Institute of Development Finance) / epartment )
\
EESrIEWE
Housing Program Finance
\ \ \
FEGZALEH FEEFHRE FEERRE
Housing Finance Planning Housing Finance Housing Finance Portfolio

Admin Project Appraisal ) Management )

\ \ \ \
ERmO 17 REDFT AL 17 WE 17
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch

v, W,

\ \ \ \
BRSLIFT LB/ I AT I 4T
Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch Suzhou Branch

A A

\ \ \ \
BEa1 SIPE 4T WERD 1T EB01T
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch

v, A

\ \ \ \
R31T I T BRI 1T ERDTT
Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch Chongging Branch

A A

\ \ \ \
HRD 1T HED1T B0 TENT
Gansu Branch Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch

/ /

\
BEEDT
Hong Kong Branch

\
FFEREL

Representative Office in Cairo

\
RETRRIRL

Representative Office in Moscow

\
BABRAARTAL
Representative Office
in Rio de Janeiro
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BES

Board of Supervisors

\
THERERE

Busﬁfivﬁﬁnent Market Development & Equity AEE SR Ll 55 B8
Department Investrent Department Legal Department Shanghai Head Office
7 v, v,
\ \ \
TE— WHE_B EREER
Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management
Department | J Department Il J Department y
\ \ \
EEEER Hif /3 Humakn?;irces
Operations Department Audit Department
y y Department y
|
PIAL T
Procurement Center
J
\
B A
Poverty Relief
Program Finance
‘ v,
\ \ \
ZEVER MRS X LE
Planning & Administration Infrastructure Development Regional Development
.
\ \ \ \
ARED 1T LFo1T RIEDTT HWD1T
Inner Mongolia Branch Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch
7 v, v, v,
\ \ \ \
AL 4T TRAFT TR 1T BEDT
Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
V. v . v
\ \ \ \
AT e 4T HE 1T I ERa1T
Henan Branch Hubei Branch Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch
A A Wy, A
\ \ \ \
™)1 4347 TN 4T RN 1T BeEg 247
Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch
v 7 W, 7
\
P 1T
Tibet Branch
v,
\ \ \
S \ [\ v N
PRI AR e R OB
Representative Office in CaracasJ Representative Office in London Vi
FEEARNE] EF&REREELH EFESRAERAHE ER&REERPERAT
Group Subsidiaries CDB Capital Co., Ltd. CDB Securities Co., Ltd. CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
FERREESHRAR EFREESHRAA

China-Africa Development Fund

CDB Development Fund




=T

BEIJING BRANCH

it LR AKX EXTAAEH158STFXESE

Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

B1E(Tel) : (010) 63223100

f£HE (Fax) : (010) 66412282

R4 (Zip) : 100031

KENT
TIANJIN BRANCH
ik KiFEmIA X RKEEISHRNERETOAEGRE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A,
9 Binshui Road, Hexi District, Tianjin
BiE(Tel) : (022) 85681234
f£E (Fax) : (022) 88355858
#B 4% (Zip) : 300061

LT

HEBEI BRANCH

Wi ARETHREFEKOSHEE HBEE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road, Shijiazhuang
i (Tel) : (0311) 85288100

f£E (Fax) : (0311) 85288112

IR 4 (Zip) : 050051

(AT

SHANXI BRANCH

Hik . KIRH/NERAKREES27S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
BiE(Tel) : (0351) 4937222

f£E (Fax) : (0351) 4937224

fE 4 (Zip) : 030006

MEREHT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

it RS RETE X ) K165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
i (Tel) : (0471) 3310140

f£HE (Fax) : (0471) 3310021

HR %% (Zip) : 010098

TT51T

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SEPAT LA X B E A #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
BiE(Tel) : (024) 22952975

fEHE (Fax) : (024) 22953371

#R 4% (Zip) - 110014

KESFT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KETHURARKI5-17SEREMAESE

Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17
Renmin Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

BiE(Tel) @ (0411) 82810918

& E (Fax) : (0411) 82633839

B % (Zip) : 116001

HWRST

JILIN BRANCH

it KET R AEE3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
i (Tel) : (0431) 85279600

£ H (Fax) : (0431) 85279700

IR 4 (Zip) : 130022
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BEINT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik e REM I X €IHT —E&277 S

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
BiE(Tel) : (0451) 53907900

fZE (Fax) : (0451) 53907808

BR 4% (Zip) : 150028

LigsiT

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik Ei#ETiEREKe8S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
B1E(Tel) : (021) 58883655

1ZHE (Fax) : (021) 58883659

B34 (Zip) : 200120

LT

JIANGSU BRANCH

ik BRAIRTE&2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
BiE(Tel) : (025) 83276222

f£H (Fax) : (025) 83276204

HR4R(Zip) : 210019

TN IT

SUZHOU BRANCH

ik AT Tl X R ERHE2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
g (Tel) : (0512) 67887142

f£H (Fax) : (0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip) : 215123

LT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

ik AT X2 B 69-5321%

Add: 32/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou
BiE(Tel) : (0571) 89778000

1 HE (Fax) : (0571) 89778068

BR 4% (Zip) : 310020

TRAT

NINGBO BRANCH

k. WM XERILRS77S

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
BiE(Tel) : (0574) 83872888

f£H (Fax) : (0574) 83872100

BR 4% (Zip) : 315040

ZRIT

ANHUI BRANCH

ik AE™ H WL XELERE99S

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
H1E(Tel) : (0551) 62867889

fZHE (Fax) : (0551) 62875868

#B% (Zip) : 230071

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BT REMEEE 1115 5% KE29-33F

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou
BiE(Tel) : (0591) 88569100

fZE (Fax) : (0591) 87856408

#R%%(Zip) : 350003
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EBEia217

XIAMEN BRANCH

ik B HRBXETEI00S AL L F O (EIMEH0)
35-40/=

Add: 35/F-40/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road, Siming District, Xiamen
3% (Tel) : (0592) 2978826

£ 2 (Fax): (0592) 2393111

B 45 (Zip) : 361001

ITEZT

JIANGXI BRANCH

it MEWAAETXFEMH KEI005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue,Honggutan New District, Nanchang
B1E (Tel) : (0791) 86592323

£ HE (Fax) : (0791) 86592333

8 48 (Zip) : 330038

WWZR 51T

SHANDONG BRANCH

Hit. SFEHEEBLE21SLUERAE-12F

Add: 9/F-12/F, Shandong Hotel, 2-1 Ma’anshan Road, Jinan
#iE(Tel) : (0531) 85198100

£ HE (Fax) : (0531) 85198282

HR4R(Zip) : 250002

BERMT

QINGDAO BRANCH

it E&THREABEISSHKBEREE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghaixi Road, Qingdao
B (Tel) : (0532) 81978277

f£H (Fax) : (0532) 81978288

iR 4R (Zip) : 266071

AT

HENAN BRANCH

ik XBTH & IKER2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
BiE(Tel) : (0371) 66000888

f£H (Fax) : (0371) 66000777
#R45(Zip) : 450008

#AE 31T

HUBEI BRANCH

ik RXTREX KA1 SERLEKRE

Add: Chutian Media Plaza, 181 Donghu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan
BiE(Tel) : (027) 86759555

1ZHE (Fax) : (027) 86759666

BR 4% (Zip) : 430077

HE T

HUNAN BRANCH

it Kb HROR AT ZR118SFHITKE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang middle Road, Tianxin
District, Changsha

BiE(Tel) : (0731) 84906658

1% HE (Fax) : (0731) 84906699

HR%R(Zip) : 410002

I &R®a1T
GUANGDONG BRANCH
ik MW R X &I AEE100-1 58 A BE HAK23A
Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu
Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
BiE(Tel) : (020) 38633017
£ E (Fax) : (020) 38633000
BR 4% (Zip) : 510627

w17

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ik SRYI IR P EE 10938 {5 KE10-152

Add: 10/F-15/F, Citic Building, 1093 Shennanzhong Road, Shenzhen
BiE(Tel) : (0755) 25985666

f£H (Fax) : (0755) 25987800

HR 4% (Zip) : 518031

I BT

GUANGXI BRANCH

it T mREKE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
HiE(Tel) : (0771) 8018114

fZH (Fax) : (0771) 8018510

HB 4R (Zip) : 530028

BET

HAINAN BRANCH

ik AT EEXKRER1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
B (Tel) : (0898) 68510780

£ H (Fax) : (0898) 68551933

B 4% (Zip) : 570311

BERNT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik BRI £RES

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
B (Tel) : (023) 67858000

fZE (Fax) : (023) 67858114

B 4% (Zip) : 400023

M) 434T

SICHUAN BRANCH

it AT ESHERERI205ERFTLEBITAE

Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone, Chengdu
BiE(Tel) : (028)86029637

f£H (Fax) : (028) 86029617

BB 4% (Zip) : 610041

RINST

GUIZHOU BRANCH

ik ST ER KOS L 2EIR HEE£10-21F

Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West Road,
Guiyang

BiE(Tel) : (0851) 88651588

f£E (Fax) : (0851) 88651605

#R 4% (Zip) : 550003

=EST

YUNNAN BRANCH

it BT iRE176S

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
HiE(Tel) © (0871) 63634094

f£E (Fax) : (0871) 63634001

BB 4% (Zip) : 650228

BEF 53T

SHAANXI BRANCH

it BemET—B2SERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 2 Hi-Tec Road, Xi'an
BiE(Tel) : (029) 87660578

f£HE (Fax) : (029) 87660581

HR %5 (Zip) : 710075



HHT

GANSU BRANCH

il =M 28817285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
B (Tel) : (0931) 8866628

£ H (Fax) : (0931) 8866237

#B 45 (Zip) : 730030

HEDT

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik BEARFHHILEIBSERFLRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Uruma;i
B1E(Tel) : (0991) 2335001

f£HE (Fax) : (0991) 2335002

HE 48 (Zip) : 830002

g0

QINGHAI BRANCH
it ATHRECH2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
#iE(Tel) : (0971) 6161900
f£E (Fax) : (0971) 6161900
#B 4% (Zip) : 810001

TEHT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik BRI RRFARRIEHS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
BiE(Tel) : (0951) 5695900

f£E (Fax) : (0951) 5695813

R 45 (Zip) : 750004

AT

TIBET BRANCH

ik R /\— R E&28A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
B3 (Tel) : (0891) 6623818

f£H (Fax) : (0891) 6623818

R 4% (Zip) : 850000

BT
HONG KONG BRANCH
it FEEPFERESERSR P O— 3

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour View Street,

Central, Hong Kong
B1E(Tel) : (00852) 28016218
£ HE (Fax) : (00852) 25304083

FEFHRFRA

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

it BRI B BERE R A 18H415 (A) 1. 2857

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18,
Maadi, Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

BiE(Tel) : (002-02) 27507406

EEHRRRLS

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW

it BTSN B TR LSRR EH1S

Add: Novatorov str.1, Moscow 119421, Russian Federation
B3E(Tel) : (007-495) 9894612

fEE (Fax) : (007-495) 9894611
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BHMAAREL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE JANEIRO

ik EFEEARNA AT HOXE N S5 KEHISS10F

Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

B1E (Tel) : (0055-21) 982839080

hnbL g R Ak
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik ZA KRR T % SHEEPERREL

Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

THERRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik HERH T BAEGIS

Add: 4 Lombard Street, London, EC3V 9HD, UK
BiE(Tel) : (0044) 2079338704

E 2

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
ik WA RTEDIEHE

Add: Sisattanak District, Vientiane Capital of Lao PDR.
B (Tel) : (00856) -21-242902

f£HE (Fax) : (00856) -21-242902

EFERERIFENT
CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.
it LR AKX &R AH7SRERRSR P OI10E
Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre,
7 Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
B1E(Tel) : (010) 88308477
1ZHE (Fax) : (010) 66553276
848 (Zip) : 100033

E SR ERAF

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

ik ERTHEBX ERITIMREH9S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
Bi%(Tel) : (010) 88300999

1ZHE (Fax) : (010) 88300946

8 48 (Zip) : 100037

EsREmESRMERAT

CDB LEASING CO., LTD.

ik R IEE X iEHR = 1520035 BB SR F O KE

Add: CDB Financial Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BiE(Tel) : (0755) 23980999

f£E (Fax) : (0755) 23980900

HR4%(Zip) : 518026

FELRESHRLF
CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

it AERWEHRKEXTARE28SYRHE R FOREI-11E

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade Centre,
28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 59892900

f£E (Fax) : (010) 59566969

4R (Zip) : 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 143 to 196,
which comprise:

* the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;

* the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CICPA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
* Impairment of loans and advances to customers and disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application of IFRS 9

» Consolidation of structured entities in relation to wealth management products, asset-backed securities, assets management plans and
funds

BFAE K K2 I G (RSB 4 1K)

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 3-11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center,
2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC
T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwcen.com



Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and disclosure of estimated
impact upon initial application of IFRS 9

1. Impairment of loans and advances to customers — Incurred loss model under IAS 39

Refer to Note 3 (10) (b), Note 4 (1), Note 21 and Note 49 (2) (e) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gross loans and advances to customers
amounted to RMB11,036.8 billion, with the corresponding allowance for impairment
losses of RMB394.2 billion.

Allowance for impairment losses represented management's best estimates of
losses incurred within loans and advances to customers as at the balance sheet
date. It was assessed individually or on a collective basis, where appropriate

Management performed individual assessments for all loans, except for student
loans, to assess if an objective evidence for impairment existed, so as to identify
impaired loans and advances to customers. If a loan was identified as impaired,
management regularly assessed the associated allowance for impairment losses
based on estimation of future cash flows.

Non-impaired loans and student loans were included in homogenous groups with
similar credit risk characteristics for impairment assessment on a collective basis.

Models were used for this purpose, applying key assumptions such as historical
loss experience, loss identification period for incurred but unidentified impairment
losses, macro-economic factors, sovereign rating of countries where borrowers or
underlying projects were located, as well as special considerations for higher risk
industries and geographical locations.

Management assessed these key assumptions on a periodic basis, and made
adjustments where appropriate.

Identification and assessment of impairment of loans and advances to customers
involved significant judgments by management, and as such, we focused on this
area as a key audit matter.

2. Disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application of IFRS 9 - expected
credit losses model

Refer to Note 2.2 (3) to the consolidated financial statements.

International Accounting Standard 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (“IAS 8”) requires disclosure in the financial statements of the
reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible impact of new
standards issued but not yet effective. International Financial Reporting Standard
9: Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9" or “the standard”) took effect on 1 January 2018
and its adoption is expected to reduce the Group's total equity as at 1 January
2018 by approximately 2.5%, mainly due to the application of the expected credit
losses measurement models (“ECL models”) in determining the loan loss reserve
on its loans and advances to customers measured at amortized cost, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The implementation of IFRS 9 requires the Group to make considerable judgements,
assumptions, and interpretation of the standard and requires the use of new
parameters in the development of new models to estimate the loan loss reserve
on loans and advances to customers measured at amortized costs, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts using the expected credit losses
concept. The Group has developed new controls in relation to the implementation
of IFRS 9 and the disclosure of the estimated impact.

The Group’s estimation of the possible impact upon initial application of IFRS 9
involves significant judgment, and the process is highly complex, accordingly, we
included this as a key audit matter.

Consolidation of structured entities in relation to wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds

Refer to Note 3 (3), Note 4 (2) and Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Structured entities primarily included wealth management products, asset-backed
securities, assets management plans and funds that were issued, initiated,
managed or invested by the Group. As at 31 December 2017, total assets of
consolidated structured entities and total assets of unconsolidated structured
entities, issued, initiated and managed by the Group, amounted to RMB211.6
billion and RMB226.4 billion, respectively. In addition, as at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group
which were issued and managed by other institutions included in the consolidated
statement of financial position amounted to RMB38.8 billion

Management had determined that the Group had control of certain structured

entities based on their assessment of the following:

*  its power over these structured entities;

* its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities; and

* its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from these
structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the Group

had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such structured

entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key area of audit focus.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the relevant controls over the impairment identification and
assessments for loans and advances to customers. These controls primarily included
controls in post-lending review processes through which management timely identified
impaired loans and advances to customers; reviews and approvals of the impairment
assessment models, key assumptions applied and the results of the assessments.

We performed independent credit reviews of selected samples of loans, with reference
to available financial information of borrowers and guarantors, underlying project
information, latest collateral valuations, expected payment arrangements in borrowers’
own capacity or with assistance from relevant institutions, changes of sovereign risk
where borrowers or underlying projects were located and other relevant external
evidence and factors, to ascertain whether management's identification of impaired
loans was appropriate

For impaired loans identified individually, we examined, on a sample basis, forecasted
future cash flows prepared by the Group based on financial information of borrowers
or underlying projects and guarantors, as well as latest collateral valuations and other
available information.

We also tested discount rates in supporting the assessment of impairment allowance
and the mathematical accuracy of calculations.

For collectively assessed impairment allowance, we performed independent testing on
the appropriateness of the model used by management. We assessed the parameters
and inputs used in the impairment models, including evaluation of the accuracy and
completeness of source data, appropriateness of loan segmentation by similar risk
characteristics, and mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the appropriateness of those key
assumptions applied in management's impairment assessment, and compared them
with available external evidence and market practice where necessary.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of the inherent uncertainties
associated with impairment assessments, the assessment approaches, methodologies
and key assumptions adopted by management were considered acceptable.

We performed the following procedures to assess the reasonableness of the Bank's
disclosed possible impact of the initial adoption of IFRS 9:

*  Understood the relevant controls over the selection and approval of the
accounting policies and modelling methodologies;

*  With the support of our credit loss and modelling specialists, we obtained
an understanding of the ECL modelling methodologies and development
processes through review of documentation and discussion with management;
and assessed the reasonableness of related key judgements, parameters and
assumptions made by management;

*  Gained an understanding of the Group’s key processes over the preparation
of the disclosure made in accordance with IAS 8 and inspected the related
approval documentation.

Based on the procedures we have performed, the estimated impact upon initial
application of IFRS 9 disclosed by the Group is acceptable.

For different types of structured entities, we selected samples and performed the
following tests:

* assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

* performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities; and

*  assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through analysis
of the scope of the Group’s decision-making authority over the structured
entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its role as the
assets manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of
returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Based on the procedures performed, we found management's consolidation
judgment of these structured entities acceptable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for
such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wang Wei.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
7 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 6 560,484 501,193
Interest expense 6 (380,234) (365,069)
Net interest income 6 180,250 136,124
Fee and commission income 7 10,900 14,160
Fee and commission expense 7 (1,127) (1,009)
Net fee and commission income 7 9,773 13,151

Net trading and foreign exchange (loss)/gain 8 (39,308) 62,500
Net loss on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss (4,830) (3,752)
Dividend income 9 10,816 8,015
Net gain on investment securities 10 665 468
Other income, net 1 4,312 30,133
Operating income 161,678 246,639
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 94 153
Operating expenses 12 (16,044) (23,201)
Impairment losses on assets 13 (5,080) (82,770)
Profit before income tax 140,648 140,821

Income tax expense 14 (27,041) (31,098)
Profit for the year 113,607 109,723

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 112,405 109,103
Non-controlling interests 1,202 620
113,607 109,723

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 113,607 109,723

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,710) 525
Fair value change of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax (6,780) (8,461)
Others (4) 178

(8,494) (7,758)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation (63) 63
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (8,557) (7,695)
Total comprehensive income for the year 105,050 102,028

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 104,146 101,096
Non-controlling interests 904 932
105,050 102,028

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 15 264,868 275,469
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 16 1,129,033 686,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 17 227,739 162,663
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 1,151,030 1,175,768
Derivative financial assets 19 37,887 25,486
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 506,172 680,394
Loans and advances to customers 21 10,642,675 9,894,173
Available-for-sale financial assets 22 522,396 626,085
Held-to-maturity investments 23 28,388 1,136
Debt instruments classified as receivables 24 1,201,815 581,089
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 1,835 1,762
Property and equipment 26 72,098 68,129
Deferred tax assets 27 85,982 90,487
Other assets 28 86,791 70,409

Total assets 15,958,709 14,339,903

Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 3,264,100 2,212,391
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 366,992 361,864
Placements from banks 31 85,329 65,493
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 32 164,959 128,917
Derivative financial liabilities 19 33,495 32,150
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 19,327 12,589
Due to customers 34 2,070,579 2,178,492
Debt securities issued 35 8,446,592 7,898,521
Current tax liabilities 15,869 47,355
Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,198 2,752
Other liabilities 36 249,373 237,256

Total liabilities 14,718,813 13,177,780
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 169,448 169,549
Investment revaluation reserve 39 244 6,966
Surplus reserve 40 121,672 100,485
General reserve 40 213,934 186,732
Currency translation reserve (1,132) 305
Retained earnings 41 293,454 255,664
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,218,868 1,140,949
Non-controlling interests 42 21,028 21,174
Total equity 1,239,896 1,162,123
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 15,958,709 14,339,908

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Huaibang Zheng Zhijie Yang Baohua

Chairman Vice Chairman, President Head of Finance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 140,648 140,821

Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 5,080 82,770
Depreciation and amortization 3,942 3,803
Interest expense for debt securities issued 275,602 265,045
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 5,378 8,142
Interest income for investment securities (50,987) (29,968)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (563) (761)
Revaluation loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (3,857) 8,000
Net gain on investment securities (665) (468)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment and other assets 7 (75)
Dividend income (2,178) (4,996)
372,407 472,313

Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:

Net increase in balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions (583,618) (191,245)
Net decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 11,531 88,995
Net decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 55,242 (478,087)
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (1,610,444) (1,426,041)
Net decrease/(increase) in placements with banks and other financial institutions 19,731 (25,505)
Net decrease/(increase) in other operating assets 97,725 (87,595)
Net increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions 943,796 1,030,466
Net increase/(decrease) in placements from banks 19,836 (3,472)
Net increase/(decrease) in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 6,735 (10,973)
Net (decrease)/increase in other operating liabilities (26,636) 6,730
(1,066,102) (1,096,727)

Income tax paid (52,601) (50,200)

Net cash outflows from operating activities (746,296) (674,614)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from proceeds from disposal/redemption of investment securities 310,541 245,944
Cash received from returns on investment securities 44,205 24,990
Cash received from proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 9,958 1,204
Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 43 (5,679) -
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment and other assets (16,527) (9,889)
Cash paid for purchase of investment securities (105,288) (512,416)
Cash paid for other investing activities (205) (172)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities 237,005 (250,339)

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from debt securities issued 2,328,387 1,965,207
Cash received from borrowed funds 81,459 53,093
Transactions with non-controlling interests (737) 14,834
Cash paid for repayments of debt securities issued and borrowed funds (1,836,660) (1,478,629)
Cash payment for interest on debt securities issued and borrowed funds (263,804) (262,117)
Dividends paid (26,837) (24,031)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 281,808 268,357
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (9,077) 9,782
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (236,560) (646,814)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,388,154 2,034,968
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43 1,151,594 1,388,154

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:

Interest received 532,883 468,833

Interest paid (99,159) (62,185)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned
policy bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State
Council of the PRC, China Development Bank was converted into a joint
stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established jointly by the Ministry of
Finance (the “MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”), and renamed
as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the CBRC and after completing the
review by and registration of corporate changes with the State Administration
of Business and Commerce, China Development Bank Corporation changed its
name to China Development Bank, and changed its form of organization from
a joint stock corporation to a limited liability company. After these changes,
the Bank operates under business license No. 911100000000184548 issued
by Beijing Administration of Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and
financial institution license No. G0001H111000001 issued by the CBRC on 13
June 2017. The registration of corporate changes does not affect the rights and
obligations of the Bank. After the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets,
creditor’s rights, debts and businesses of the former China Development Bank
Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align
their business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium- and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as to raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student
loans, and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture,
and people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative, industrial
capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure connectivity,
energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going Global”;

- Initiatives that support China's development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

—  Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development
strategies and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”.
Branches and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2017 relevant to and adopted by the Group
The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2017:

(1) Amendments to IAS 12
(2)  Amendments to IAS 7
(8)  Amendments to IFRS 12

Income Taxes

(1) Amendments to IAS 12: Income Taxes

Statement of Cash Flows

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities — Included in The Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 Cycle

The IASB has issued amendments to IAS 12 — Income taxes. These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses clarify how to
account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value.

(2) Amendments to IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows

The IASB has issued an amendment to IAS 7 introducing an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities

arising from financing activities.

(3) Amendments to IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities - Included in The Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 Cycle

These amendments clarify the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that the disclosure requirements, except for those summarized financial information for
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, apply to an entity’s interests which are classified as held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with

IFRS 5.

The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures — Included

(1) Amendments to IAS 28

)

) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
) Amendments to IAS 40
)
)

IFRS 16 Leases
(7)  Amendments to IFRS 9

5 Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS
® 12 and IAS 23

9 IFRIC 23

Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture

(10)  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(1) Amendments to IAS 28: Investment in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Included in The Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016
Cycle

These amendments clarify that the election to measure investees at fair value
through profit or loss is available for each investment in an associate or
joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(2) IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when
to recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a
5-step approach. The core principle is that a company should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
It moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an ‘earnings
processes’ to an ‘asset-liability’ approach based on transfer of control.
IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of contract cost
and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. The
Group anticipates that the adoption of this new standard will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(3) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The complete version of IFRS 9 - Financial instruments was issued in July
2014, which introduces the classification and measurements, impairment
and hedge accounting to replace the guidance in IAS 39 - Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCl")
and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on
the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option
at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI in which case the
accumulated fair value changes in OCI will not be recycled to the profit or
loss in the future.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss (ECL) model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The impairment requirements apply to debt financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, lease receivables, certain
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition,
impairment allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and
guarantees) is required for expected credit losses (“ECL’) resulting from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (“12-month
ECL). In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an allowance (or
provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument (“lifetime ECL"). Financial
assets where 12-month ECL is recognized are considered to be “stage 1”;
financial assets which are considered to have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk are in “stage 2"; and financial assets for which there

in The Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 Cycle
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Transfer of Investment Property

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and
Modifications of Financial Liabilities

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed.

is objective evidence of impairment, so are considered to be in default or
otherwise credit impaired are in “stage 3”.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be
unbiased and probability-weighted, and should incorporate all available
information relevant to the assessment, including information about past
events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of
economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation
of ECL should take into account the time value of money. As a result,
the recognition and measurement of impairment is intended to be more
forward-looking than under IAS 39.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the group’s risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge relationships might be eligible for hedge
accounting, as the standard introduces a more principles-based approach.

Impact analysis from the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018

In order to assess the potential impact on the Group’s financial statements
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group developed the expected
loss model and analysed changes to the credit risk of financial assets.
The Group has also performed analysis of business models and cash flow
characteristics in the contract terms of its investments and other financial
instruments, and completed the classification of its existing financial
assets under IFRS 9. The adoption of IFRS 9 is expected to reduce the
Group’s total equity as at 1 January 2018 by approximately 2.5%, mainly
due to the application of the ECL model in determining the loan loss
reserve on its loans and advances to customers measured at amortised
cost, certain loan commitments and financial guaranteed contracts. These
estimates are based on accounting policies, assumptions, judgements and
modelling that remain subject to further enhance and calibrations in 2018.

The requirements of IFRS 9 will be adopted from 1 January 2018. The
classification and measurement and impairment requirements are applied
retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the date of
initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative periods. The
Group does not intend to restate comparatives.

For the hedge accounting, the group has assessed that its current hedge
relationships will qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

(4) Amendments to IAS 40: Transfer of Investment Property

On 8 December 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 40 — Transfer
of Investment Property. These amendments specify that an entity shall
transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only
when, there is a change in use of a property supported by evidence
that a change in use has occurred. They also clarify that the list of
circumstances set out in IAS 40 is non-exhaustive list of examples of
evidence that a change in use has occurred instead of an exhaustive list.
The examples have been expanded to include assets under construction
and development and not only transfers of completed properties. The
Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(5) IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The IASB issued IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration, to clarify the date of the transaction for the purpose of
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determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of this interpretation will not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(6) IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 provides updated guidance on the definition of leases and the
combination and separation of contracts, which replaces IAS 17 — Leases.
Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize a lease
liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use” asset for
almost all lease contracts, with an exemption for certain short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The lessors accounting stays almost the
same as under IAS 17. However, the new accounting model for lessees
is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. The
Group anticipates that the adoption of this interpretation will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(7) Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation and Modifications of Financial Liabilities

On 12 October 2017, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation and Modifications of Financial
Liabilities. These amendments permit more assets to be measured at
amortized cost than under the previous version of IFRS 9, in particular
some prepayable financial assets. These amendments also clarify the
accounting for a modification or exchange of a financial liability measured
at amortized cost that does not result in the derecognition of the financial
liability. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

(8) Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23: The Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various IFRSs, including the amendments
to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, the amendments to IFRS 11 —
Joint Arrangements, the amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes and
IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs. The Group anticipates that the adoption
of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(9) IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In December 2017 the IASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments to clarify how to apply the recognition and measurement
requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The Group anticipates that the adoption of this interpretation
will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

(10) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between An Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements
in IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements and those in IAS 28 —
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. A full gain
or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business. A partial
gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if those assets are in a subsidiary. The
Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by The International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or in some
circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to liabilities.

(2

—

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,

(3

-

or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bank
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred assets.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss). When the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the fair value
of the assets transferred by the Group at the acquisition date, liabilities
incurred or assumed by the Group, and any equity interests issued by
the Group. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed are recognized at their fair values; except that deferred tax
assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 —
Income Taxes and IAS 19 - Employee Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the
consideration transferred, the fair value of any non-controlling interests in
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the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the
acquiree, and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are accounted for at either fair value
or the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

The Group periodically assesses whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the associate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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(5)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a)
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial assets, except for those
classified as held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or

loss, are recognized within “Interest income” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Interest income

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial asset or liability and of allocating the interest income
or expense over the period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and interest paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when
the related service has been provided.

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading,

are recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency translation
(a)
The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Functional and presentation currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analyzed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the
monetary assets and other changes in the carrying amount. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying
amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the date that fair value is determined.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets classified as
available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
items in equity holders’ equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date when the items
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occurred, or a rate that approximates the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

(8) Taxation

-

(a) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when
they related to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(b) Value-added Taxes (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit
business, fee income on financial services, income from trading of financial
products at 6%, instead of business tax at 5% prior to 1 May 2016.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for
Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui [2016] No.140) and “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No.2), managers of asset management
products shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1
January 2018.

After the implementation of the VAT Pilot Programs, the Group’s interest
income, fee and commission income and trading gain on financial
products are presented net of their respective VAT in the consolidated
financial statements.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits

include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those
services as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Short-term
employee benefits include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical
insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing
funds as well as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to governments
mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. The group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in
which the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank participate in an annuity scheme established
by the Bank (the "Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions
with reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011.
The entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of
early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is
recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for
recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes
in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred.

(10) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories
including: financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the
fair value of the financial assets on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.



(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified into this category when the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near future; or

- on initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or a group
of both financial assets and financial liabilities, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
any dividends or interest earned on financial assets.

(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets traded in
active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables primarily include
balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions,
financial assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances to
customers, and debt instruments classified as receivables.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are either designated as such or are not classified in any of the other
categories.

Equity and debt instruments held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, translation differences
related to changes in the amortized cost of the available-for-sale financial
assets and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets,
excluding those classified as FVTPL, is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
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more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- the lender granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization;

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the group, national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group of financial assets;

- any significant change with an adverse effect that has taken place in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which
the issuer operates and indicates that the cost of investments in
equity instruments may not be recovered,;

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity instrument
investments; or

- other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial asset
or a group of financial assets.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for all loans except student loans, debt instruments classified
as receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
investments, and collectively for the remainder of financial assets (other
than those at fair value through profit or loss). If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes these assets together with student
loans in groups of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses these for impairment. Financial assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognized are not included in collective assessment of
impairment.

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the assets are impaired. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. For financial assets with variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collaterized financial asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to
result from foreclosure, less the cost of obtaining and selling the collateral.

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. When a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account and recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The reversal shall not result in the carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date the
impairment is reversed.

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

When a decline in the fair value of a financial asset classified as
available-for-sale has been recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
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there is objective evidence that asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and is measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortization) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. With respect to equity instruments, such reversals are made through
the investment revaluation reserve within other comprehensive income. If
there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on
an unquoted equity investment that is not carried at fair value because its
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the impairment loss should not be
reversed.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("“ABS”) to investors.
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these
ABS. As the asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining
account records related to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes or partially derecognizes the transferred financial assets
according to the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred financial assets.

(11) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument in IAS 39 and IAS 32,
respectively.

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
liabilities held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if
it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments.

The criteria for a financial liability designated at FVTPL is the same as
those for a financial asset designated at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising on re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using the
effective interest method.

(c) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of
proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs.

(d) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(12)Derivative financial instruments and embedded

derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL.

(13) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

-  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

(14) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group has an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle
the financial liability simultaneously.

(15) Repurchase agreements and agreements to resale

Financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase
agreements, involving fixed repurchase dates and prices, continue to be
recognized, and are recorded as different categories of financial assets
as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included in “Financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements”.

Financial assets held under agreements to resell are not recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the corresponding
consideration paid is recorded as “Financial assets held under resale
agreements”.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognized as interest
expense or income in profit or loss over the term of the agreements using
the effective interest method.

(16) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office
equipment, motor vehicles, aircrafts and construction in progress.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS / 157

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office equipment 3-10 years 0%-5% 9.50%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 15-20 years 3%-15% 4.25%-6.47%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate category
of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(18) Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in “Other assets” and amortized over a
straight-line basis over their authorized useful lives which generally range
from 35 to 50 years. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the useful lives and amortization method of land use rights.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation
and amortization is recognized the same way as property and equipment
and land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the
carrying amount and related expenses, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Lease classification

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(b) Finance lease

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, the present value of the
aggregation of the minimum lease payment receivable from the lessee and
unguaranteed residual value, net of initial direct costs, recognized as a
receivable in “Loans and advances to customers”. The difference between
the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized
as unearned finance income. Unearned finance income is recognized over
the term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate
of return.

The Group has no finance leases business as a lessee.
(c) Operating lease

When the Group is the lessor in an operating lease, the assets subject to
the operating lease continue to be accounted for as the Group’s assets.
Rental income is recognized as “Other income, net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease, rental expenses
are charged in “Operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other
intangible assets. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives

is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which generally range from 5 to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.
Cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit,
and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata
basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount

of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s equity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as
a result of a past event, (i) it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
(iii) a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
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into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

Provisions related with financial guarantee contracts are measured
based on experience of similar transactions, historical losses and by
management judgement.

(26) Hedge accounting

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting
to account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria.
The Group’s hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

(@)
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
designation of hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when the hedge no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. The adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
item for which the effective interest method is used is amortized to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the
hedged item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying value adjustment
is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged item. When the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a financial asset or a
financial liability, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period during which the hedged
forecast transaction affect profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

- When the Group revokes the designation of hedging relationship,
when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the forecast transaction ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gains or losses in equity is transferred immediately to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(27) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies,
other institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under
custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants
loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangement and collection of the
entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assets or liabilities of the Group.

(28) Contingent liabilities

(1

—

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognized, but
disclosed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations
for future events

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
twelve months.

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers to assess
impairment on a periodical basis during the year. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that there is objective evidence
of impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows related to individually
assessed loans and advances or pools of loans and advances to
customers with similar risk characteristics.

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective
evidence of impairment exists in individually assessed loans and
advances to customers or pools of loans and advances to customers
with similar risk characteristics. Individually significant loans include all
loans and advances except student loans. Among other things, objective
evidence of impairment includes deterioration in the financial condition of
specific borrowers (or specific pools of borrowers) affecting their ability to
meet their loan payment obligations, overdue status, financial position of
guarantors, underlying projects’ information, latest collateral valuations,
the expected payment arrangements in borrowers’ own capacity or with
assistance from relevant institutions, changes of sovereign risk where
borrowers or underlying projects are located and concessions by the
Group that would not otherwise be granted to borrowers for economic or
legal reasons relating to their financial difficulties, as well as increasing
industry sector over-capacity or obsolescence, or deterioration in regional
economic conditions that are correlated to increasing loan defaults. These
judgments are made both during management’s regular assessments of
loan quality and when other circumstances indicate the possibility that
objective evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impairment exists,
significant judgments and estimates are made in estimating the adverse
impact on future cash flows related to individually assessed impaired
loans and advances to customers. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experienced. Factors affecting these estimates include the
availability and granularity of information related to specific borrowers or
underlying projects and guarantors, latest collateral valuations and other
available information, and the clarity of the correlation between qualitative
factors, such as industry sector performance or changes in regional
economic conditions and defaults of related borrowers.

Such loans and advances to customers not identified as impaired from
individually assessments, together with student loans are included
in homogenous groups with similar credit risks characteristics for
performance of impairment assessments on a collective basis.
Significant judgments are applied to the calculation of collectively
assessed impairment. The collective impairment loss is assessed after
taking into account: (i) historical loss experience in portfolios of similar
credit risk characteristics; (ii) loss identification period for incurred
but unidentified impairment losses; (i) macro-economic factors; (iv)



sovereign rating of countries where borrowers or underlying projects
were located; (v) industries and geographic locations; and (vi) the
current economic and credit environments and whether in management’s
experience these indicate that the actual level of inherent losses is
likely to be greater or less than that suggested by historical experience.
The Group considers the impact of the changes and uncertainty in
the macro-economic environment, in which the Group operates when
assessing the methodology and assumptions used for loss estimation, as
well as management's capability in managing loan portfolio, and makes
adjustments where appropriate.
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use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net
asset value, and comparable companies approach and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants. To the extent practical,
the Group uses only observable market data, however areas such
as credit risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighted average
cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount and similarity
to comparable companies index may not be observable and require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.

(5) De-recognition of financial assets transferred

(2) Consolidation of structured entities In its normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
entities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates partial de-recognition.
the Group's power over the structured entities, performs analysis and Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including but not financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine
any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities. The whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.

Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through ) L ) )
analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the structured The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset with such transfers to determine:

manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns - whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by flows from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass
other parties in the structured entities. through” of those cash flows to independent third parties.

(3) Impairment of available-for-sale debt instruments and - the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
debt instruments classified as receivables the financial assets are transferred.

The Group determines the impairment of investment securities according - where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially
to IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. all of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the
The determination of impairment requires significant judgment from Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these
management. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other financial assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment transferred financial assets.

is less than its cost, quality of underlying asset of the investment (for (6) Taxes

example, delinquency ratio and loss coverage ratio), near-term business ) - . .

outlook (for example, industry performance and credit ratings) and if the l:‘irc? i:rin(;irrttzliz t;?]neszcrt(‘)znsW?;fesazts'\t/i'g;stefsogrmh'iz t:;eﬁlg':gftﬁe:‘:
issuer has experienced severe financial difficulty. In determining whether of uncertaint tak.in info a(i:oum existing taxation Jle igslation and past
the previously recognized impairment loss was recovered and should be . Y. 9 . 9 ) 9 P
reversed, the Group makes judgements as to whether the decrease of practice of rg\evant tax authorities. Where the flna.l t.a.x outcome of these
the impairment loss can be related objectively to an event occurring after matters s d|ﬁerem fromlthe amounts that were |n|t|a]|y rec‘orded, SL,]Ch
the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s Q|ffer§nces will affect the income tax and other tax provisions in the period
credit rating). in which such a determination is made.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments 5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Name of entity

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the

Place of  Registered capital % of equity interest

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2017
are as follows:

Principal business

incorporation (in millions) and voting rights

China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB60,624 100% directly held Equity investment

China Development Bank Development Fund Mainland China RMB50,000 100% directly held Non-securities investment & mvestment
management and advisory

China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management

China Development Bank Financial Mainland China RMB12,642  64.40% directly held Leasing

Leasing Co., Ltd.

China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting

Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

On 20 December 2017, the Bank transferred its equity interests in 15 rural banks, of which 13 rural banks were controlled by the Bank, and 2 rural banks were
associates of the Bank, to Bank of China Limited and Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd for a total consideration of RMB1,087 million. The consideration was fully
settled in 2018. Upon completion, these rural banks ceased to be subsidiaries and associates of the Bank.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries other than
those stated above, and there was no restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.
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6. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 457,467 424,099
Investment securities 50,987 29,968
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 21,640 26,917
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 30,325 20,099
Others 65 110
560,484 501,193

Interest expense
Debt securities issued (275,602) (293,738)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (78,329) (49,402)
Due to customers (13,067) (12,058)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (10,151) (8,142)
Others (3,085) (1,729)
(380,234) (365,069)
Net interest income 180,250 136,124
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 563 774

(1) Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments and debt instruments
classified as receivables.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 3,804 4,688
Loan arrangement fee 3,025 3,902
Credit commitment fee 2,414 3,634
Consultancy and advisory fee 197 276
Brokerage fee 79 102
Others 1,381 1,558
10,900 14,160
Fee and commission expense
Fee expense (907) (810)
Commission expense (220) (199)
(1,127) (1,009)
Net fee and commission income 9,773 13,151

8. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (57,002) 69,794
Net gain on financial assets held-for-trading 6,358 3,208
Net gain/(loss) on foreign exchange derivatives 11,094 (11,253)
Net gain on interest rate derivatives 242 751

Total (39,308) 62,500




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS / 161

9. DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 10,252 6,436
Available-for-sale equity investments 564 1,126
Others - 453
Total 10,816 8,015

10.NET GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 106 210
Others 583 258
Total 665 468

11.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 3,294 3,461
Others 1,018 26,672
Total 4,312 30,133

12.OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Taxes and surcharges 3,899 11,102
Staff costs 6,382 6,022
General operating and administrative expenses 4,505 4,761
Depreciation and amortization 1,258 1,316
Total 16,044 23,201

13.IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ASSETS

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 4,722 82,201
Available-for-sale financial assets 4 192
Debt instruments classified as receivables 136 1
Others 218 366
Total 5,080 82,770

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 20,922 54,913
Deferred tax (Note 27) 6,119 (23,815)
Total 27,041 31,098

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 140,648 140,821
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 35,162 35,205
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (140) (45)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (9,735) (5,127)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 616 536
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 1,138 529

Income tax expense 27,041 31,098
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15.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 2 36
Statutory reserve with central banks 353 1,221
Other deposits with central banks 264,513 274,212
Total 264,868 275,469

16.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 1,036,582 556,417
Other domestic financial institutions 5,014 5,094
Overseas banks 87,435 125,331
Other overseas financial institutions 2 11
Total 1,129,033 686,853

As at 31 December 2017, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB5,037 million (31 December 2016:
RMB4,813 million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing house.

17.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 166,256 119,197
Other domestic financial institutions 8,000 38,610
Overseas banks 53,483 4,856
Total 227,739 162,663

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Financial assets held-for-trading

Government and quasi-government bonds 19,017 9,157
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,677 620
Corporate bonds 11,777 50,651
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 89,182 63,107
Stock and fund investments 2,814 3,534
124,467 127,069

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Government and quasi-government bonds 15,062 9,377
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,757 2,331
Corporate bonds 51,488 8,771
Asset-backed securities 4,427 -
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 19,640 48,355
Financial assets held under resale agreements 19,418 19,579
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions 26,043 40,365
Asset management plans 7,417 3,291
Wealth management products issued by other banks 10,323 6,238
Equity investments 870,988 910,392
1,026,563 1,048,699
Total 1,151,030 1,175,768

(1) Certain comparative amounts in this footnote have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the
consolidated statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets)
or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly.

The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2017

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 205,913 2,347 (41)
Subtotal 30,768 (27,239)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 1,282,188 6,942 (6,079)
Interest rate options 10,152 177 (177)
Subtotal 7,119 (6,256)
Total 37,887 (33,495)

31 December 2016

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 1,274,120 16,522 (23,836)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 201,812 148 (147)
Subtotal 16,670 (23,983)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 960,531 8,523 (7,874)
Interest rate options 11,735 293 (293)
Subtotal 8,816 (8,167)
Total 25,486 (32,150)

(2) Hedge accounting
The Group’s hedging instruments included in the above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2017

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 17,948 655 (81)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 3,833 21 (17)

Total 676 (98)

31 December 2016

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 24,664 700 (139)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 4,803 10 (18)

Total 710 (157)
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Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits
issued by the Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the current and prior year, there were no significant ineffectiveness to be recorded from the fair value hedges.
Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks of the variable rate borrowings
from other banks for the Group’s leasing business.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging were
insignificant, which is expected to be recognized in profit or loss from 2018 to 2024.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 497,965 674,071
Others 8,266 6,354
506,231 680,425

Less: Individually assessed allowance for impairment losses (59) (31)
Total 506,172 680,394

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments - Collateral.

21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers 10,933,412 10,225,793
Finance lease receivables and others 103,420 92,354
11,036,832 10,318,147

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed (40,087) (57,645)
Collectively assessed (354,070) (366,329)
(394,157) (423,974)

Loans and advances to customers, net 10,642,675 9,894,173

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2017

1 January 2017 57,645 366,329 423,974
Charge for the year 21,844 119,275 141,119
Reverse (14,823) (121,574) (136,397)
Write offs and transfer out (22,779) (3,565) (26,344)
Unwinding of discount on allowance (563) - (563)
Foreign exchange differences (1,237) (6,395) (7,632)
31 December 2017 40,087 354,070 394,157
1 January 2016 45,506 296,083 341,589
Charge for the year 21,018 120,937 141,955
Reverse (3,192) (56,562) (59,754)
Transfer in - 16 16
Write offs and transfer out (6,207) - (6,207)
Unwinding of discount on allowance (761) - (761)
Foreign exchange differences 1,281 5,855 7,136
31 December 2016 57,645 366,329 423,974

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by
installment, if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.
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Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

31 December 2017

Unsecured loans 2,665 1,343 156 374 4,538
Guaranteed loans 2,307 9,582 2,696 2,365 16,950
Loans secured by collateral 2,058 5,353 6,370 2,957 16,738
Pledged loans 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
Total 10,835 17,556 14,021 8,257 50,669

31 December 2016

Unsecured loans 1,222 67 911 9 2,209
Guaranteed loans 1,048 2,430 14,987 477 18,942
Loans secured by collateral 5,469 7,672 11,975 4,377 29,493
Pledged loans 3,055 1,998 16,136 104 21,293
Total 10,794 12,167 44,009 4,967 71,937

22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December

Debt instruments:

Government and quasi-government bonds 135,736 138,075
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 37,345 12,611
Corporate bonds 37,890 39,698
Assets-backed securities 216 278
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 301,053 419,259
Subtotal 512,240 609,921
Equity instruments 9,439 15,964
Fund investments 717 200
Total 522,396 626,085

As at 31 December 2017, the cumulative individually assessed impairment allowance of available-for-sale financial assets amounted to RMB18,215 million (31
December 2016: RMB18,212 million).

23.HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 98 -
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 25,093 786
Corporate bonds 3,197 350

Total 28,388 1,136
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24.DEBT INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,096,088 570,138
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 5,571 4,045
Corporate bonds 97,587 259
Assets-backed securities 713 1,010
Investments in trust plans and others 5,284 5,990

1,205,243 581,442

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed (488) (353)
Collectively assessed (2,940) -
(3,428) (353)

Debt instruments classified as receivables, net 1,201,815 581,089

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 1,835 1,762

Movements of interest in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

As at 31 December

1 January 1,762 1,680
Additions 209 168
Disposals (136) (86)
31 December 1,835 1,762

Information of principal associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Tianjin Eco-City Investment &

Mainland China RMB3,000 20% indirectly held Land and infrastructure development
Development Co., Ltd.

CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB1,250 40% indirectly held Investment management and advisory

Manufacturing of electronic instruments

Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China RMB213 25% indirectly held . .
and electric appliance

Huaxin Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB120 45% indirectly held Investment management and advisory
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26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The net book value of property and equipment consisted of the following:

Cost

1 January 2017 19,278 2,769 1,144 56,690 3,924 83,805
Additions 691 109 452 15,451 787 17,490
Transfers 755 - - - (755) -
Disposals (209) (274) (14) (11,808) (3) (12,308)
31 December 2017 20,515 2,604 1,582 60,333 3,953 88,987

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2017 (3.635) (1,657) (327) (9,738) = (15,357)
Additions (776) (295) (69) (2,551) = (3,691)
Disposals 9% 108 12 2,185 = 2,401

31 December 2017 (4,315) (1,844) (384) (10,104) = (16,647)

Allowance for impairment losses

1 January 2017 = = = (319) = (319)
Additions = = = (61) = (61)
Disposals - - - 138 - 138
12 December 2017 = = = (242) = (242)

Net book value

31 December 2017 16,200 760 1,198 49,987 3,953 72,098
1 January 2017 15,643 1,112 817 46,633 3,924 68,129
Cost

1 January 2016 18,429 2,696 1,139 48,785 4,425 75,474
Additions 305 296 9 9,068 614 10,292
Transfers 1,115 - - - (1,115) -
Disposals (571) (223) (4) (1,163) - (1,961)
31 December 2016 19,278 2,769 1,144 56,690 3,924 83,805

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2016 (2,932) (1,399) (284) (8,318) - (12,933)
Additions (802) (380) (75) (2,275) - (3,532)
Disposals 99 122 32 855 - 1,108
31 December 2016 (3,635) (1,657) (327) (9,738) - (15,357)

Allowance for impairment losses

1 January 2016 - - - - _ _

Additions - - - (319) - (319)

12 December 2016 - - - (319) - (319)

Net book value

31 December 2016 15,643 1,112 817 46,633 3,924 68,129

1 January 2016 15,497 1,297 855 40,467 4,425 62,541
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27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 85,982 90,487
Deferred tax liabilities (2,198) (2,752)
Net 83,784 87,735

(1) Movements of deferred income tax asset and liability:

As at 31 December

1 January 87,735 61,250
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (Note 14) (6,119) 23,815
Credit to other comprehensive income 2,168 2,670
31 December 83,784 87,735

(2) Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are
attributable to the following items:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for impaired loans 299,936 74,984 329,334 82,334
Allowance for impaired available-for-sale financial assets 23,502 5,876 18,212 4,553
Allowance for debt instruments classified as receivables 3,428 857 353 88
Allowance for other impaired assets 816 204 824 206
Fa!;:/;\d;i (;r:gztg(osrslgllinancial instruments at fair value 47,389 11,847 36,634 9,159
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 3,237 809 2,788 697
Provisions 1,243 31 3,143 786
Others 2,186 547 794 198
381,737 95,435 392,082 98,021
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value chaqges of financial instruments at fair value (45.918) (11,480) (31,306) (7.827)
through profit or loss
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (683) (171) (8,906) (2,227)
Others - - (928) (232)
(46,601) (11,651) (41,140) (10,286)

Net 335,136 83,784 350,942 87,735
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As at 31 December

Interest receivable 52,347 41,417
Prepayment to vendors 7,828 8,151
Prepayment for leasing equipment 6,384 6,499
Deposits with securities exchange 4,586 1,149
Investment property 1,755 1,213
Land use rights 1,598 1,647
Goodwill 1,250 1,254
Receivables from disposal of rural banks (Note 5) 1,087 -
Receivables from disposal of bond investments 957 5
Intangible assets 701 7"
Continuing involvement assets of asset-backed securitization 575 868
Prepayment for bond redemption 409 409
Long-term deferred expenses 258 223
Others 7,618 7,337
Total 87,353 70,883
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (562) (474)
Other assets, net 86,791 70,409

(1) Goodwill is primarily arising from acquisition of China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd. As
at 31 December 2017, goodwill arising from acquisition of China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and China Development Bank Securities
Co., Ltd. was RMB560 million and RMB629 million, respectively (31 December 2016: RMB560 million and RMB629 million). For the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related subsidiaries, and did not identify any

indication that the goodwill was impaired.

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 3,186,470 2,145,275
Other domestic financial institutions 34,993 39,902
Overseas banks 42,633 27,211
Overseas other financial institutions 4 3
Total 3,264,100 2,212,391

30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 324,650 326,553
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 27,924 18,097
Foreign banks — import credit 5,447 7,884
Foreign governments 8,971 9,330
Total 366,992 361,864

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 21,800 29,672
Overseas banks 63,529 35,821
Total 85,329 65,493
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32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group designated the liabilities to investors and the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth
management products issued and managed by the Group as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. For the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, there were no significant changes in the fair value of these liabilities attributable to the changes in the Group’s own credit risk.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 15,677 9,049
Others 3,750 3,640
Total 19,327 12,689

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 1,774,162 1,822,658
Term deposits 121,761 188,937
Pledged deposits 5,261 8,533
Certificates of deposit 169,395 158,364
Total 2,070,579 2,178,492

35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions M 8,316,281 7,745,181
Subordinated bonds issued (2 64,925 66,957
Tier-two capital bonds issued ) 41,841 41,989
Asset-backed securities issued 4 23,545 41,399
Inter-bank certificates of deposit issued - 2,995
Total 8,446,592 7,898,521

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.
(1) Debt securities issued

As at 31 December 2017

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2017 2018-2065 1.93-5.90 6,728,379
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2017 2019-2037 2.65-4.58 1,395,183
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2018-2032 3.60-4.50 7,992
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013-2015 2018 2.39-2.69 18,702
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2017 2018-2037 0.13-4.00 120,106
Bonds issued by the Bank 8,270,361
USD bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2017 2019-2027 2.00-4.25 25,588
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2014-2017 2018-2022 3.00-6.05 23,254
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (2,922)

Debt securities issued by the Group 8,316,281
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As at 31 December 2016

RMB bonds issued in domestic market (i) 2001-2016 2017-2065 1.83-5.90 6,438,726
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2017-2032 3.30-4.50 10,748
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013-2015 2018 2.00-2.25 19,903
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2014-2016 2017-2026 0.13-3.00 61,200
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2016 2019-2036 2.65-3.80 1,187,176
Debt securities issued by the Bank 7,717,753
USD bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2016 2017-2024 2.00-4.25 18,269
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2014-2016 2018-2020 3.00-6.05 9,268
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (109)
Debt securities issued by the Group 7,745,181

(i) As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, included in this balance were two RMB bonds issued in the domestic market on the same day with the same maturity
date, with face value totaling RMB20,000 million. These two bonds bear fixed and floating interest rates respectively and had embedded conversion
options which allow the holders of these two bonds to convert part or all of the bonds at face value to the other bond on a specified date.

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2017

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,926
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 64,925

As at 31 December 2016

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2009-2012 2022-2062 4.70-6.05 61,958
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 66,957

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the bonds.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2017

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,841

As at 31 December 2016

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,989

The Bank issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates. The Bank has an option to redeem part or all of the bond at face value upon the
closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to regulatory
approval. If the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

Asset-backed securities issued

The Group consolidated certain special purpose trusts established in relation with its assets securitization business when the Group determined it has control
over these special purpose trusts (Note 44 (2)).

(4

=

As at 31 December 2017, total face value of unexpired asset-backed securities issued by these consolidated special purpose trusts held by third party
investors were RMB23,545 million, with remaining maturities ranging from one month to six years, and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7% (31 December
2016: face value of RMB41,399 million with remaining maturities ranging from one month to seven years and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.5%).
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36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Interest payable 172,887 156,618
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 24,897 25,347
Deferred government subsidies for education loans 17,703 14,477
VAT and other taxes payable 8,012 7,807
Security deposits for leasing 5,291 5777
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,115 2,017
Accrued staff cost 2,079 1,854
Continuing involvement liabilities of asset-backed securitization 575 868
Provision for losses on financial guarantees 1,243 2,738
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 921 1,065
Payables for security brokerage service 1,053 1,844
Amounts received in advance from customers 4,419 4,717
Others 8,178 12,127
Total 249,373 237,256

37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016

MOF 153,908 37
Huijin 146,092 35
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1
Total 421,248 100

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

2017
Capital premium 169,434 (1) 169,433
Others @ 115 (100) 15
Total 169,549 (101) 169,448
2016
Capital premium © 168,993 441 169,434
Others @ (24) 139 115
Total 168,969 580 169,549

(1) During the year ended 31 December 2017, capital premium of the Group was reduced by RMB1 million due to the disposal of rural banks (Note 5).
(2) Others include remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges.

(8) During the year ended 31 December 2016, changes of capital premium of the Group amounted to RMB441 million, which arose from the initial public
offering of China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., and increase of share capital of China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd. by other
investors.
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39.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

2017
o cowammt Teefet  Neteffeot
1 January 2017 9,438 (2,472) 6,966

Fair value changes on available-for sale financial assets
- Recognized directly in other comprehensive income (9,126) 2,312 (6,814)
- Removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss 122 (30) 92
31 December 2017 434 (190) 244
2016
S cosamm Teefer  Neteffeol
1 January 2016 20,569 (5,142) 15,427
Fair value changes on available-for sale financial assets
- Recognized directly in other comprehensive income (10,889) 2,612 (8,277)
- Removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss (242) 58 (184)
31 December 2016 9,438 (2,472) 6,966

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve
According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory
surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank’s share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to
statutory surplus reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated losses of the Bank or to increase the
Bank's share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank 210,397 183,336
Subsidiaries 3,537 3,396
Total 213,934 186,732

Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No.20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the
Bank is required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5% of the
outstanding balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the year as
general reserves.

41.RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 31 December

1 January 255,664 230,569
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 112,405 109,103
Disposal of subsidiaries 207 -
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (1) (10,707) (10,480)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve 2) (i) (10,480) (9,601)
Appropriation to general reserve (2) (ii) (27,408) (39,668)
Dividends (2) (i) (26,200) (24,003)
Transactions with non-controlling interests (27) (256)
31 December 293,454 255,664

(1) Profit appropriation for 2017

The Bank appropriated RMB10,707 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the statutory surplus
reserve has been recognized as appropriation. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 is pending for
approval by the Board of Directors.

Profit appropriation for 2016

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 8 August 2017, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approved as following:

—
)

(i) An appropriation of RMB10,480 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017;
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(i) An appropriation of RMB27,061 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2017,

(i) A cash dividend of RMB26,200 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016 which had been included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the cash dividend has been paid.

(3) As at 31 December 2017, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that
attributable to the Bank amounting RMB1,699 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,684 million).

42.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

2016

China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd 9,492 9,127
China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 8,369 7,939
China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd 3,167 2,992
Others - 1,116
Total 21,028 21,174

43.CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Cash

2016

2 36
Balance with central banks 264,513 274,212
Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:
Financial assets held under resale agreements 497,946 660,637
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 188,169 336,843
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 200,964 116,158
Investments in government bonds — 268
Total 1,151,594 1,388,154
(2) Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates
Amount
Cash received from disposal of the rural banks during the year (Note 5) _
Less: cash and cash equivalents held by the rural banks at the date of disposal (5,679)
Net cash outflow from disposal of the rural banks (5,679)

44.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued and managed by the Group

The Group issued and managed principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to
the investors are presented as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.

(2) Other consolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and
managed by the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able
to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to in (1) and (2) above totaled RMB211,609 million (31 December

2016: RMB222,445 million).

(3) Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group provides asset management services for the investors. The Group has no plans to

provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated structured entities.

As at 31 December 2017, the size of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB226,392 million (31
December 2016: RMB256,380 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB3,326 million(31 December
2016: RMB5,734 million). These amounts represent the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the types of return that the Group obtained from these structured entities include fee income, interest income and

investment gains, which amounted to a total of RMB1,125 million (2016: RMB1,256 million).
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(4) Other unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale financial assets and debt instruments classified as receivables. The information on the size of total assets of these unconsolidated
structured entities was not readily available from the public domain. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, interest held by the Group in structured entities issued
by other entities are as follows:

As at 31 December

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 34,489 7,499
Debt instruments classified as receivables 3,361 5,990
Available-for-sale financial assets 900 229
Total 38,750 13,718

45.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets
and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3 (10)(c) and Note 4 (5).

As at 31 December 2017, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB50,664 million (31
December 2016: RMB57,702 million), among which:

- RMB32,783 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and
therefore has not been derecognized in the consolidated financial statements.

RMB3,621 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group concluded it had continuing involvement in these assets.
- RMB14,260 million was in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full derecognition.

For those loans that the Group had continuing involvement, the Group continues to recognize the transferred loans to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognizes continuing involvement assets and liabilities, respectively. The net carrying amount of the continuing involvement assets and continuing
involvement liabilities reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

As at 31 December 2017 2017

Interest in special

purpose trust 575 575 575 575 575 - 37

As at 31 December 2016 2016

Interest in special
purpose trust

868 368 368 368 868 - 28

(2) For those loans that the Group had fully derecognized amounted to RMB14,260 million, the Group presents its investments in these asset-backed securities
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets or debt instruments classified as receivables, according to the different
nature of the investments.

As at 31 December 2017 2017

Interest in special purpose trust 714 713 714 — 78

As at 31 December 2016 2016

Interest in special purpose trust 1,372 1,384 1,372 - 170

46.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office level.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating
segments are set out below:
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(1) Banking operations
This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the main
source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily consist of money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions,
bond investments, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

(2) Equity investment

This segment consists of equity investment activities.
(3) Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.
(4) Securities operations

This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

Interest income 554,021 1,354 5,889 651 (1,431) 560,484
Interest expense (374,040) (1,650) (4,985) (1,040) 1,481 (380,234)
Net interest income 179,981 (296) 904 (389) 50 180,250
Include: Net interest income from customers 178,834 486 1,319 (389) - 180,250

Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,147 (782) (415) - 50 =
Net fee and commission income 8,614 427 (62) 815 (21) 9,773
Include. Net fee and commission from customers 8578 427 (26) 794 - 9,773

Inter-segment net fee and commission 36 = (36) 21 21) -
Other income, net (37,215) 5,019 3,624 1,309 (988) (28,251)
Operating expenses and impairment losses on assets (18,045) (1,072) (1,658) (624) 275 (21,124)
Profit before income tax 133,335 4,078 2,808 1,111 (684) 140,648

31 December 2017

Total assets 15,688,904 170,078 187,099 43,559 (130,931) 15,958,709

Total liabilities 14,505,925 72,194 163,590 28,173 (51,069) 14,718,813

Other information:

Depreciation and amortization 1,144 50 2,699 49 _ 3,942
Capital expenditure 1,113 240 16,941 96 = 18,390
Impairment losses on assets 4,193 215 913 28 (269) 5,080
Credit commitments 3,761,863 - - - (19,155) 3,742,708
2016 Banking inve:x;:\}; Leasing Securities a:dor;:oml::::::: Total
Interest income 494,859 1,264 5,456 554 (940) 501,193
Interest expense (359,216) (1,330) (4,400) (1,176) 1,053 (365,069)
Net interest income 135,643 (66) 1,056 (622) 113 136,124
Include: Net interest income from customers 134,798 438 1,065 (177) - 136,124

Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 845 (504) 9) (445) 113 -
Net fee and commission income 12,250 242 (56) 820 (105) 13,151
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 12117 242 (57) 849 - 13,151

Inter-segment net fee and commission 133 - 1 (29) (105) -
Other income, net 88,793 3,707 3,453 1,566 ) 97,5617
Operating expenses and impairment losses on assets (101,885) (926) (2,385) (776) 1 (105,971)
Profit before income tax 134,801 2,957 2,068 988 7 140,821

31 December 2016

Total assets 14,101,423 168,392 166,512 43,113 (129,537) 14,339,903

Total liabilities 12,995,223 59,476 144,210 28,382 (49,511) 13,177,780

Other information:

Depreciation and amortization 1,223 53 2,477 50 - 3,803
Capital expenditure 1,384 223 8,510 36 - 10,153
Impairment losses on assets 80,851 26 1,826 153 (86) 82,770

Credit commitments 3,492,710 - - - (85,732) 3,456,978
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47.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS
(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
transactions with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 95,971 85,618
Interest receivable 1,365 1,253
Interest rate range (%) 2.29-4.68 2.14-4.47

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,854 2,638
Net trading gain 146 44
(2) Huijin

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the
obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin are as follows:

As at 31 December

Available-for-sale financial assets 8¥85) 5,821
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 148 120
Interest rate range (%) 3.32-4.38 3.16-4.20

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the outstanding balance of the Group's interest receivable from Huijin was RMB51 million and RMB70 million, respectively.

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 114 203

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under
normal commercial terms.

(3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd.

As at 31 December 2017, Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2016: 27.19%).
(4) Transaction with subsidiaries

Outstanding balances of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of financial position are as follows:

As at 31 December

Assets

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 31
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 9,012
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,675 -
Derivative financial assets 56 165
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,286 -
Interest receivable 43 50
Loans and advances to customers 36,863 27,137
Other receivables 123 3
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1" 699
Derivative financial liabilities 7 -
Due to customers 31,728 15,836
Debt securities issued 900 109

Interest payable 39 14
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As at 31 December 2017, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and letters of guarantee issued to subsidiaries were RMB16,154 million (31
December 2016: RMB35,732 million).

Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,304 853
Interest expense (195) (56)
Fee and commission income 52 135
Fee and commission expense (28) 2)
Dividend income 952 -

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Bank and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group's
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 were not significant.

Transactions with other government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a significant portion of the Group’s banking transactions are entered into with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other State controlled entities. These transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions and mainly include provision of credit and

guarantee, deposits, borrowings, foreign exchange transactions, derivative transactions, agency services, purchase, sales and redemption of investment
securities issued by government agencies.

o
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Management considers that transactions with other government related entities are conducted in the ordinary course of business, and that the dealings of the
Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are government related. The Group has also established
pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the customers are government related entities.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.
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48.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,
management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of
the Group.

(2) Capital commitments

o
—_
~

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

- equity instruments 50,201 50,815
- property 99,130 39,989
Total 149,331 90,804

(3) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,649,438 3,339,971
Letters of guarantee issued 60,039 82,460
Bank acceptance 18,441 20,762
Letters of credit issued 14,790 13,785
Total commitments 3,742,708 3,456,978

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB6,257 million (31 December 2016:
RMB1,629 million), with the rest of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(4) Operating lease commitments
At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessee, has the following non-cancellable operating lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Within one year 528 499
One to two years 286 305
Two to three years 246 179
Above three years 481 292

Total revocable or irrevocable commitments 1,541 1,275
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(5) Finance lease commitments
At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, has the following non-cancellable finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Contractual amount 7,790 1,600

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s finance lease commitments were all within one year.
(6) Underwriting obligations
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no securities underwriting obligations.
(7) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

Bonds 16,130 9,971
Others 3,750 3,540
Total 19,880 13,5611

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB19,327 million (31 December 2016:
RMB12,589 million) as set out in Note 33 Financial Assets Sold under Repurchase Agreements. All repurchase agreements are due within 5 years from the
effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under finance lease, where the Group is a lessor, were pledged as collateral for borrowings
from other banks. As at 31 December 2017, carrying amounts of these collateral amounted to RMB6,485 million and RMB2,326 million, respectively (31
December 2016: RMB9,164 million and RMB5,958 million).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

49.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports risks or combination of financial risks during
its operations. Taking risk is core to the financial business of the Group, and facing these financial risks is an inevitable consequence of carrying out business.
The Group’s aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns and minimize potential adverse effects arising from these risks on
the Group's financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through the issuance of debts with different maturities at both fixed and floating rates, and seeks to earn interest margins by
investing these funds in medium to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries and pillar industries. With the basic saving and lending
interest rate impacted by the central bank, and debt issuing rates fluctuating, the Group seeks to increase its net interest margins by issuing different varieties
of bonds and reducing its cost of funding to the extent possible.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including, among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, to meet the needs of risk management as well as the needs of its customers.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adhere to risk limits by use of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and emerging best practices. The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives.
Off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial guarantees, also expose the Group to credit risk.

—
)

Following the internal credit rating directives and guidelines issued by the CBRC, and considering its unique business features, the Group establishes a credit
rating framework including credit rating methodologies, policies, procedures, control management, data collection and IT supporting. This is a two-dimension
risk rating framework that assesses both customer credit rating based on the probability of default and the facility credit rating considering, among other, the
estimated loss given default. To ensure the accuracy and completeness of rating results, the Group also established internal guidelines for country rating,
sovereign rating, local government rating, and ratings based on considerations of regional and industry risks.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there are no material changes to the Group’s risk management policies and processes.
(a) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of loans and advances based on the “Guideline for Loan Credit Risk Classification “issued by the CBRC,
which requires banks to classify loans into the following five grades: “Normal”, “Special-mention”, “Substandard”, “Doubtful” and “Loss”, among which loans
classified in the “Substandard”, “Doubtful” and “Loss” grades are regarded as non-performing loans.
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“Normal”: Borrowers can honor the terms of their loans. There is no reason to doubt their ability to repay principal and interest in full on a timely basis.
“Special-mention”: Borrowers are able to service their loans currently, although repayment may be adversely affected by specific factors.

“Substandard”: Borrowers’ ability to service their loans is in question as they cannot rely entirely on normal business revenue to repay principal and interest.
Losses may occur even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

“Doubtful”: Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in full and significant losses will need to be recognized even when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

“Loss”: Only a small portion or no principal and interest can be recovered after taking all possible measures and exhausting all legal remedies.

The Group uses a risk-based methodology to evaluate the quality of loan assets. The classification methodology takes into consideration of different factors
including loan grading as stated above, credit rating and loss events judgement. The classification leverages quantitative and qualitative factors, including
various financial factors, non-financial factors, industrial and regional differences, as well as the Group’s management capability. The Group reviews quality of
its credit assets on a regular basis, and such assets are centrally monitored by the Loan Management Department and International Financial Department, and
reported to management.

(i) Debt instruments and derivatives

For debt instruments, the Group manages the credit risk exposure by using its internal rating system, and also taking external ratings such as Standard &
Poor’s rating or their equivalents into account. Investments in debt instruments are viewed as a way to gain better credit quality assets and, at the same time,
to maintain a readily available source of funding to meet funding requirements. The derivative credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending
limits set for customers and counterparties

(i) Loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued and bank acceptance

For loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued and bank acceptance, the Group manages the credit risk using the five-grade
mechanism and its internal credit rating system in the same way as it manages loans and advances to customers.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages limits and controls concentration of credit risk wherever they are identifiable, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to
industries and geographical regions.

The Group has established a credit limit management framework to assess the levels of credit risk it undertakes in relation to a single borrower or a group
client, to allocate the economic capital for industries and branches, as well as to set the appropriate credit limit by country. Such risks are monitored
periodically and are subject to review at the Executive Management Meeting over Risk Management.

The credit limit to a customer is further split into sub-limits of different business products covering on and off-balance sheet exposures, and update on a daily
basis the risk limits in relation to trading and non-trading portfolios of treasury business. Actual exposures are monitored against limits regularly.

To manage its credit risk, the Group applies rigorous underwriting procedures to each loan application and has developed a disciplined credit risk
management process. Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet their principal
and interest repayment obligations. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees.

Other specific controls and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(i)  Collateral

The Group has designed a set of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk, among which, the most traditional and the most widely used one is to take
collateral from borrowers. The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific types of collateral or the level of credit risk mitigation, and
reviews the valuation results of collateral periodically.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as toll collection rights, real estates, land use rights, equity securities, cash deposits
and equipment. Collateral held for financial assets other than loans and advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the financial instrument. Debt
instruments are generally unsecured, but for asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally secured by pools of financial assets.

(i) Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as needed. Letters of guarantee and letters of credit, which
represent irrevocable commitment that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its payment obligations to third parties, carry
the same credit risk as loans. In some cases, pledged deposits are received by the Group to reduce the credit risks arising from these commitments. Pledged
deposit is determined as a certain percentage of the notional amount of credit related commitments based on the creditworthiness of the customer.

Commitments to extend credit represent undrawn portions of authorized credit in the form of loans, bank acceptance, letters of guarantees or letters of credit.
With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total undrawn commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total undrawn commitments as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers
maintaining their creditworthiness. The Group monitors the term to expiry of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater
degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

(c) Impairment and allowance policies

Impairment allowances presented in the consolidated statement of financial position is calculated based on asset quality and related grading as disclosed in
Note 49 (2)(a)(i), which is adopted by management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists under IAS 39, based on the principles set
out in Note 3 (10)(b).

The Group’s policy requires at least quarterly review of individually significant financial assets or more frequent when specific circumstances require. For all the
individually significant financial assets, discounted cash flow method is used to assess the impairment individually. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held by the Group and other assets that can be disposed of for recovery.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually insignificant; and (i) losses that have

been incurred but have not yet been identified in non-impaired individually significant financial assets, by using the available historical experience, judgment
and statistical techniques.
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(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 264,866 275,433
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1,129,033 686,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 227,739 162,663
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,046,007 1,090,080
Derivative financial assets 37,887 25,486
Financial assets held under resale agreements 506,172 680,394
Loans and advances to customers 10,642,675 9,894,173
Available-for-sale financial assets 512,240 609,921
Held-to-maturity investments 28,388 1,136
Debt instruments classified as receivables 1,201,815 581,089
Other financial assets 66,450 53,935
15,663,272 14,061,163

Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,649,438 3,339,971
Letters of guarantee issued 60,039 82,460
Bank acceptance 18,441 20,762
Letters of credit issued 14,790 13,785
3,742,708 3,456,978
Total 19,405,980 17,618,141

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, without taking into account of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are

based on net carrying amounts of these assets.
(e) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

31 December 2017

Unsecured loans 378,725 383,282 1,763,138 2,625,145
Guaranteed loans 188,477 207,545 1,104,322 1,500,344
Loans secured by collateral 64,664 117,451 1,087,689 1,269,804
Pledged loans 39,719 95,419 5,606,401 5,741,539
Total 671,585 803,697 9,561,550 11,036,832

31 December 2016

Unsecured loans 282,858 325,788 1,791,645 2,400,291
Guaranteed loans 212,635 247,321 1,145,426 1,605,382
Loans secured by collateral 82,422 178,993 1,142,840 1,404,255
Pledged loans 112,666 126,654 4,668,899 4,908,219
Total 690,581 878,756 8,748,810 10,318,147

Credit quality of loans and advances to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 10,951,827 10,222,719
Past due but not impaired (i) 8,207 4,826
Impaired (iii) 76,798 90,602
11,036,832 10,318,147

Less: allowance for impairment losses
Individually assessed (40,087) (57,645)
Collectively assessed (354,070) (366,329)
(394,157) (423,974)

Loans and advances to customers, net

10,642,675 9,894,173
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(i) Loans and advances to customers — neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed with reference to the asset
quality grading adopted by the Group.

As at 31 December

Normal 10,258,048 9,115,606
Special-mention 693,779 1,107,113
Total 10,951,827 10,222,719

(i) Loans and advances to customers — past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, past-due student loans but not impaired totalled RMB1,816 million and RMB1,572 million, respectively. In accordance with
the relevant regulatory policies, deferred government subsidies for student loans will be utilized to cover any losses incurred in relation to student loans, and
after taking into account this mitigation measure, past due student loans were not identified as impaired. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, other past due
loans but not impaired excluding student loans amounted to RMB6,391 million and RMB3,254 million, respectively. After taking into account of the underlying
collaterals held and other controls and mitigation measures, these loans were not identified as impaired.

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

As at 31 December

Past due up to 90 days 6,453 3,995
Past due over 90 days 1,754 831
Total 8,207 4,826
Exposure covered by collateral and pledge 3,873 2,319

(iii) Loans and advances to customers — impaired
Impaired loans and advances to customers are listed below:

As at 31 December

Impaired loans and advances to customers 76,798 90,602
Less: individually assessed impairment allowance (40,087) (57,645)
Net 36,711 32,957
Exposure covered by collateral and pledge 25,039 20,890

(iv) Restructured loans and advances

Restructured loans and advances to customers are loans that have been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position which resulted
in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations. Restructuring measures are based on the judgment of management that payment will most
likely continue. These measures are under continuous review by management. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total restructured loans amounted to
RMB12,310 million (31 December 2016: RMB9,147 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, as a result of loan renegotiations, the Group recognized modified loans and advances as well as bonds and
shares of RMB9,457 million and RMB100,794 million, respectively. The loss associated with these loan renegotiations was not significant for the year ended 31
December 2017.

(f) Investment in debt instruments
Credit quality of debt instruments is as follows:

As at 31 December

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 2,017,851 1,452,170
Impaired (ii) 2,458 2,321
2,020,309 1,454,491

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

- individually assessed (638) (503)

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments 2,019,671 1,453,988
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(i) Investment in debt instruments — neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2017

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 34,079 135,736 98 1,096,088 1,266,001

Financial institutions 3,434 37,345 25,093 5,571 71,443

Corporates 63,265 37,874 3,197 94,458 198,794
Asset-backed securities 4,427 216 - 713 5,356
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 108,822 301,053 - - 409,875
Financial assets held under resale agreements 19,418 - - - 19,418
e e e - — - =
Wealth management products issued by other banks 10,323 - - - 10,323
Asset management plans 7,417 - - - 7,417
Investment in trust plans and others - - - 3,181 3,181
Total 277,228 512,224 28,388 1,200,011 2,017,851

31 December 2016

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 18,534 138,075 - 570,138 726,747

Financial institutions 2,951 12,611 786 4,045 20,393

Corporates 59,422 39,682 350 62 99,516
Asset-backed securities - 278 - 1,010 1,288
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 111,462 419,259 - - 530,721
Financial assets held under resale agreements 19,579 - - - 19,579
e e e : — - e
Wealth management products issued by other banks 6,238 - - - 6,238
Asset management plans 3,291 - - - 3,291
Investment in trust plans and others - - - 4,032 4,032
Total 261,842 609,905 1,136 579,287 1,452,170

(i) Investment in debt instruments - impaired

Debt securities issued by corporations 189 197
Trust plan and others 2,103 1,958
2,292 2,155

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

- individually assessed (488) (353)

Investment in debt instruments — impaired, net 1,804 1,802

The Group’s available-for-sale debt instruments were individually assessed for impairment. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of impaired
available-for-sale debt instruments of the Group was RMB16 million (31 December 2016: RMB16 million). The accumulative impairment losses recognized for
these impaired available-for-sale debt instruments by the Group as at 31 December 2017 was RMB150 million (31 December 2016: RMB150 million).
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Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:
31 December 2017

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 14,982 - - - 1,250,817 202 1,266,001
Financial institutions 10,276 1,605 650 1,035 - 57,877 71,443
Corporates 31,810 13,327 21 3,627 - 150,025 198,810
Asset-backed securities 2,398 - - 131 - 2,827 5,356
Inter-bank certificates of deposit © 409,875 - - - - - 409,875
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - - - - 19,418 19,418

Deposits and placements with banks and

other financial institutions - - - - - 26,043 26,043

Asset management plans - - - - - 7,417 7,417

Wealth management products issued

by other banks - - - - - 10,323 10,323

Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 4,985 4,985

Total 469,341 14,932 671 4,793 1,250,817 279,117 2,019,671

31 December 2016

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 14,503 - - - 702,867 9,377 726,747
Financial institutions 14,715 4,484 1,092 - - 102 20,393
Corporates 24,415 8,947 8,966 703 - 59,792 102,823
Asset-backed securities 971 - - - - 317 1,288
Inter-bank certificates of deposit @ 470,271 12,095 - - - 48,355 530,721
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - - - - 19,579 19,579

Deposits and placements with banks and

other financial institutions - - - - - 40,365 40,365

Wealth management products issued

by other banks N B - N B 6,238 6,238
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 5,834 5,834
Total 524,875 25,526 10,058 703 702,867 189,959 1,453,988

(1) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and policy banks
of China.

(2) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.

(3) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
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(9) Financial assets by industry of counterparties

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
lomsandavancestocustoners [ Ament % Amem %
Urban renewal 2,728,850 25 2,130,237 21
Road transportation 1,792,708 16 1,694,640 16
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,048,395 9 964,109 9
Railway transportation 929,434 8 894,690 9
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 860,768 8 949,813 9
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 745,828 7 727,199 7
Manufacturing industry 551,846 5 570,188 6
Urban public transportation 412,919 4 353,912 3
Mining industry 300,629 3 433,376 4
Financial industry 246,855 2 201,943 2
Other transportation 208,577 2 186,960 2
Education 129,289 1 108,356 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission services 95,688 1 100,630 1
Others 985,046 9 1,002,094 10

11,036,832 100 10,318,147 100
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (394,157) (423,974)
Loans and advances, net 10,642,675 9,894,173
31 December 2017
Balances with central banks 264,866 - - 264,866
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 1,129,033 - 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 227,739 - 227,739
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 286,759 167,717 601,531 1,046,007
Derivative financial assets 6,408 29,263 2,216 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 497,965 8,207 506,172
Available-for-sale financial assets 135,736 338,398 38,106 512,240
Held-to-maturity investments 98 25,093 3,197 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 1,096,088 Sl 100,156 1,201,815
Other financial assets 20,794 7,524 38,132 66,450
Total 1,810,749 2,418,303 791,545 5,020,597
31 December 2016
Balances with central banks 275,433 - - 275,433
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 686,853 - 686,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 162,663 - 162,663
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 415,930 63,727 610,423 1,090,080
Derivative financial assets 237 22,107 3,142 25,486
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 669,917 10,477 680,394
Available-for-sale financial assets 138,075 431,870 39,976 609,921
Held-to-maturity investments - 786 350 1,136
Debt instruments classified as receivables 570,138 4,045 6,906 581,089
Other financial assets 8,849 15,374 29,712 53,935

Total 1,408,662 2,057,342 700,986 4,166,990
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(8) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance
sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates including interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The
Group’s major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk
in it trading book and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within an acceptable range to optimize
return on risk. The aim is to ensure the Group could operate safely and
soundly under a reasonable market risk level and undertake market risk
consistent with the market risk management capabilities and capital
capacity.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors and its affiliated committees. The Governors’ Meeting on Risk
Management and the Asset & Liability Committee ("ALCQO”) supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports
periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and
banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions
held for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists
of on and off balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading
book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the
Risk Management Department and the Treasury Department within the
scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management
Department assumes the responsibility for the overall risk management
and the periodical submission of market risk reports to the Governors’
Meeting of Risk Management. The Treasury Department assumes the
responsibility for the overall asset and liability management as well as
management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in banking
book, and the periodical submission of interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk reports related to banking book to the ALCO.

Market risk measurement and management approaches

Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value
revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book
The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading

book through limits control, risk limits control, enforcement of stop-loss
limits and sensitivity analysis.

The Group adopts stress testing approach to estimate the potential
maximum losses under extremely unfavorable conditions. The Group
also continues adjusting and refining the stress testing scenarios and

measurements in relation to its trading book, so as to capture impact
of market price on market value, and to improve its ability in identifying
market risks.

The Group establishes appropriate risk limits for each risk category
considering its risk management capabilities over risks as well as capital
capacity. The Risk Management Department is responsible for the
identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures
from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity
analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement
results to Governors' Meeting of Risk Management by means of market
value revaluation, duration analysis, etc. The Treasury Department is
responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk using gap analysis and other
methods, and regularly reporting to the ALCO

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk,
please refer to Note 49 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 49 (3) (b) foreign
exchange risk (including trading book and banking book).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable
movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the
macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC.
The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby
financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit
risk; commercial and market factors. In general, the interest rates of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity
terms will move in the same direction. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the PBOC has not adjusted the benchmark interest rates for RMB
loans and deposits.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based
on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and
economic value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis, basis point
(“BP") analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group
adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to
mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading
book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and
breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly
measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the
sensitivity of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest
net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).
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Repricing gap analysis
The table below summarizes the Group's financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

31 December 2017

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 264,823 - - - - 45 264,868

Dgpo;lts. with banks and other financial 1,096,067 6.105 3,813 105 B 22,043 1129.033
institutions

Plgcemehts with banks and other financial 227,739 B B B B B 227739
institutions

F|r;?r|1§|sasl assets at fair value through profit 113,025 78122 72629 14,200 1,870 871,162 1,151,030

Include: Financial assets held-for-trading 64,973 50,604 7,055 1,661 = 174 124,467

Financial assets designated at 48,052 27,518 65,574 12,561 1,870 870,988 1,026,563
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 37,887 37,887

Financial assets held under resale 499,126 4,94 2104 B B B 506,172
agreements

Loans and advances to customers 5,244,599 2,981,302 151,997 211,184 2,053,573 20 10,642,675

Available-for-sale financial assets 230,860 144,767 89,564 44,408 2,944 9,853 522,396

Held-to-maturity investments 16,159 8,715 2,360 1,154 = - 28,388

Debt instruments classified as receivables 96,207 19,963 521,818 563,827 = - 1,201,815

Other financial assets 6,384 - - - - 60,066 66,450

Total financial assets 7,794,989 3,243,916 844,285 834,900 2,058,387 1,001,976 15,778,453

Financial liabilities:

Dgpo;ltsl from banks and other financial 111,102 B 3.150,142 B B 2,856 3.264.100
institutions

quroyvm.gs from governments and financial 152,159 198,391 5,581 8,564 2297 B 366,992
institutions

Placements from banks 42,538 42,791 - - - - 85,329

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 134,792 08,452 1688 _ B o7 164,959
or loss

Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 33,495 33,495

Financial assets sold under repurchase 15,577 3,750 B B B B 19,307
agreements

Due to customers 1,887,691 101,427 65,122 8,021 5,801 2,517 2,070,579

Debt securities issued 1,472,958 1,081,955 2,904,767 2,269,492 717,420 - 8,446,592

Other financial liabilities 21 64 551 1,158 = 189,401 191,195

Total financial liabilities 3,816,838 1,456,830 6,127,851 2,287,235 725,518 228,296 14,642,568

Net interest repricing gap 3,978,151 1,787,086 (5,283,566) (1,452,335) 1,332,869 773,680 1,135,885
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31 December 2016

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 275,361 - - - - 108 275,469

Dgpolsns' with banks and other financial 632,419 21315 B _ _ 33,119 686,853
institutions

Plgcemehts with banks and other financial 145,403 17,260 B _ B B 162,663
institutions

F'nggg assets at fair value through profit 112,300 132,696 15,829 929 79 913,926 1175768

Include: Financial assets held-for-trading 62,006 50,884 9,637 929 79 3,654 127,069

Financial assels designated at 50,303 81,812 6192 - - 910392 1,048,699
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 25,486 25,486

Financial assets held under resale 673.982 6,321 91 _ _ B 680,394
agreements

Loans and advances to customers 4,801,380 3,041,957 110,215 245,551 1,695,070 - 9,894,173

Available-for-sale financial assets 217,762 242,213 91,336 55,345 3,265 16,164 626,085

Held-to-maturity investments - 200 936 - - - 1,136

Debt instruments classified as receivables 254 2,632 257,469 320,734 - - 581,089

Other financial assets 8,297 1,494 2 - - 44,142 53,935

Total financial assets 6,867,167 3,466,088 475,878 622,559 1,698,414 1,032,945 14,163,051

Financial liabilities:

De'zpolsns' from banks and other financial 154,002 2,306 2,052,801 _ _ 3.062 2212391
institutions

Bgrrowlnlgs from governments and financial 169,357 181,916 7.708 2199 684 B 361,864
institutions

Placements from banks 49,732 15,761 - - - - 65,493

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 50,303 78,475 B _ B 139 128,917
or loss

Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 32,150 32,150

Financial assets sold under repurchase 5.59 3.419 3.911 B B B 12,589
agreements

Due to customers 1,975,888 97,082 91,501 6,104 6,297 1,620 2,178,492

Debt securities issued 1,175,802 1,417,550 2,621,323 2,024,432 659,414 - 7,898,521

Other financial liabilities 2,410 3,986 1,162 647 123 199,132 207,460

Total financial liabilities 3,682,773 1,800,495 4,778,406 2,033,382 666,518 236,303 13,097,877

Net interest repricing gap 3,284,394 1,665,593 (4,302,528) __(1,410,823) 1,031,896 796,642 1,065,174

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on
the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount,
and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Increase 100 basis points 41,510 (6,240) 34,984 (8,331)
Decrease 100 basis points (41,510) 6,616 (34,984) 8,829

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on available-for-sale financial
assets held at the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group's capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore the above analysis may differ from the actual
situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the
risk management activities to mitigate the interest rate risk.
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(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (‘JPY") and, to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group manages its foreign currency exposures by using exchange rate derivatives, and economically hedges its USD
exposure to the extent possible. RMB appreciated by 0.4028 RMB/1 USD during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: depreciation of 0.4434 RMB/1
UsD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and
liabilities presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

31 December 2017

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 264,790 75 3 264,868
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1,016,879 78,800 33,354 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 68,980 154,395 4,364 227,739
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,124,921 24,886 1,223 1,151,030
Include: Financial assets held-for-trading 120,734 3733 - 124,467

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,004,187 21,153 1,223 1,026,563
Derivative financial assets 34,664 2,023 1,200 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements 506,172 - - 506,172
Loans and advances to customers 9,025,935 1,444,120 172,620 10,642,675
Available-for-sale financial assets 486,142 29,655 6,599 522,396
Held-to-maturity investments 3,262 25,126 - 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 1,107,126 94,650 39 1,201,815
Other financial assets 57,821 8,026 603 66,450
Total financial assets 13,696,692 1,861,756 220,005 15,778,453

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 3,035,866 211,495 16,739 3,264,100
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 95,419 255,804 15,769 366,992
Placements from banks 21,800 56,676 6,853 85,329
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 164,959 - - 164,959
Derivative financial liabilities 31,036 2,131 328 33,495
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 19,327 - - 19,327
Due to customers 1,806,261 188,768 75,550 2,070,579
Debt securities issued 8,288,732 105,539 52,321 8,446,592
Other financial liabilities 180,677 9,868 650 191,195
Total financial liabilities 13,644,077 830,281 168,210 14,642,568
Net on-balance sheet position 52,615 1,031,475 51,795 1,135,885
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 350,772 (307,510) (85,717) 7,545

Credit commitments 3,383,314 296,758 62,636 3,742,708
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31 December 2016

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 275,041 356 72 275,469
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 544,661 95,519 46,673 686,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 123,400 39,263 - 162,663
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,149,014 25,079 1,675 1,175,768
Include: Financial assets held-for-trading 123,658 3511 - 127,069

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,025,456 21,568 1,675 1,048,699
Derivative financial assets 21,413 2,847 1,226 25,486
Financial assets held under resale agreements 680,394 - - 680,394
Loans and advances to customers 8,110,721 1,642,807 140,645 9,894,173
Available-for-sale financial assets 612,098 5,004 8,983 626,085
Held-to-maturity investments 621 515 - 1,136
Debt instruments classified as receivables 581,027 62 - 581,089
Other financial assets 43,655 9,414 866 53,935
Total financial assets 12,142,045 1,820,866 200,140 14,163,051

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,974,412 222,002 15,977 2,212,391

Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 32,517 322,539 6,808 361,864
Placements from banks 20,300 44,405 788 65,493
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 128,798 119 - 128,917
Derivative financial liabilities 28,497 3,236 417 32,150
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 12,589 - - 12,589
Due to customers 1,910,757 166,579 101,156 2,178,492
Debt securities issued 7,799,460 77,191 21,870 7,898,521

Other financial liabilities 200,693 6,230 537 207,460
Total financial liabilities 12,108,023 842,301 147,553 13,097,877
Net on-balance sheet position 34,022 978,565 52,587 1,065,174
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 312,440 (284,276) (44,143) (15,979)
Credit commitments 3,093,231 300,920 62,827 3,456,978

Given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of RMB against other currencies, there is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
The table below summarizes the effect of such movement on the Group’s profit before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
1% appreciation 10,315 9,191

1% depreciation (10,315) (9,191)




=

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or losses due
possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios
are adopted and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the
balance sheet date;

- the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the
exchange rate;

- the effect of economic hedge on the Group’s net position in USD by
using certain derivative instruments; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange
rate.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity,
however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase
its assets as needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and
fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and
to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches
include the forecasting and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing
scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2017, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through
issuance of debt securities. In accordance with the approval from the
CBRC, all RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoy sovereign debt credit
rating, which enables the Bank to continuous raise funds in the market
through issuance of sovereign debt.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from
current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of
debt securities issued, loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees
and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and the mismatching
of maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is a
significant mission of the Group. It is impracticable for the Group to be
completely matched in such positions since business transactions are
often of uncertain terms and of different types. A mismatched position
might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss.
The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions within a
reasonable range.

Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The Treasury
Department is the execution department for detailed daily management.
The Group’s liquidity management processes include:
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- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the
level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on balance sheet;
- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and
- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of
its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to
finance of new debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a
certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will
remain within the Group but not to be withdrawn. Management maintains
an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash
demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of
the committed funds under letters of guarantees issued or letters of credit
issued. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend
to credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since
some of these commitments will either expire, be terminated or not meet
funding requirements due to customers’ inability to fulfill the conditions of
drawdown.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide
diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between
its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a
presence and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt
capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs.
The Group issues fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year.
These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the
Group or the bond holders to redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective
maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small
portion of all bonds issued. As at 31 December 2017, long-term (with
a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group
amounted to RMB7.14 trillion (31 December 2016: RMB6.70 trillion), and
other long-term debts (include deposits from banks and other financial
institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions,
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and due to customers)
amounted to RMB3.28 trillion (31 December 2016: RMB2.02 trillion).

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in
net or gross by their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash
flows of these financial instruments by the Group may have different with
the table as below:
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(a) Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets

31 December 2017

Cash and balances with central

408 264,460 - - - - - - 264,868
banks
Deposits with banks and other 20,950 1,156,788 7,430 373 16,997 1,244 105 ~ 1,205,887
financial institutions
Placements with banks and ofher S - 144003 84,376 = = S = 228,469
financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value 91,205 5619 226,220 49,950 94306 241,044 201457 320594 1,230,485
through profit or loss
Financial assets held under B B 499,021 641 5.89 0243 B B 507.194
resale agreements
Loans and advances (o 15,561 1,256 93526 262,995 1,566,562 5,747,808 3,809,355 5,008,499 16,595,562
customers
Available-for-sale financial assets 9,139 4,437 84,152 145,775 153,187 110,349 53,637 3,860 564,536
Held-to-maturity investments - - 5,423 10,681 8,975 2,780 1,528 - 29,387
Debt instruments classified as 142 - 336 5454 55198 667,610 630227 97576 1456543
receivables
Other financial assets 599 4,355 168 618 4,001 3,977 1,790 - 15,508
T°;Z's;‘t°s"'de”"at“’e financial 140,004 1436915 1,060,369 560,863 1904515 6,777,055 4,698,009 5520,529 22,098,439
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other - 68880 5,864 242 39,808 3,150,153 - - 3264047
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments - - 14,442 74581 187,026 68,938 14,789 25,773 385,549
and financial institutions
Placements from banks - - 27,777 15,810 43,479 - - - 87,066
Financial I|ab|||.t|es at fair value 7 B 72,293 63,808 29,263 1598 B B 166,989
through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under B B 7,810 7,810 3,971 B B B 19,501
repurchase agreements
Due to customers ~ 1,766,071 71,131 53187 102,692 69,464 9,728 10707 2,082,980
Debt securities issued - ~ 280,618 271550 1,032,410 4733334 2892336 1408531 10,618,779
Other financial liabilities 176 4,037 882 1,222 2227 5,898 5,783 2 20,227
T"ItI:L:‘“‘:I"e :e”"at“’e financial 203 1,838,988 480,817 488210 1440876 8,029,385 2922,636 1445013 16,646,128
Net position 139,891  (402,073) 579,552 72,653 463,639 (1,252,330) 1775463 4075516 5452311
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 104 {111 162 735 878 1,919 3,687
Derivatives settled on a gross
basis:
Total inflow - ~ 440075 554515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
Total outflow - ~ (439,733)  (555.207) (1,032,807)  (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)
Total derivative cash flows - - 446 (803) 4,142 1,292 886 1,915 7,878
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31 December 2016

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

1021 274,361 - - - - - - 275,582

banks

Deposits with banks and other - 187,662 245977 236,241 21,622 547 51 - 692,100
financial institutions

Placements wilh banks and other - - 99841 46089 26112 - - - 172,042
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value 85,688 6,970 26,603 85,344 147,517 90,078 203670 530,158 1,176,028
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under B B 623197 51,936 6,323 94 B B 681,550
resale agreements

Loans and advances o 18,984 - 67,728 209,737 1,388,009 5461050 3,220,004 3,882,200 14,247,712
customers

Available-for-sale financial assets 16,164 - 34,417 184,995 254,655 105,979 63,028 4,115 663,353

Held-to-maturity investments - - - 3 235 963 - - 1,201

Debt instruments classified as - - 408 2,308 19234 334912 354,834 - 711,696
receivables

Other financial assets 1,258 2,449 125 874 2,831 5,082 2,875 - 15,494

Total non-derivative financial

assets 123,315 471,442 1,098,296 817,527 1,866,538 5,998,705 3,844,462 4,416,473 18,636,758

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! S - 132,305 2,300 2,472 4,204 2,074,367 - - 2,215,648
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 16,648 116,498 81528 131,055 19,156 20,575 385,460
and financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 29,265 20,719 15,880 - - - 65,864

Financial I|ab||{t|es at fair value 139 B 13,204 38,067 80,889 B B B 132,319
through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 2,649 2648 3.487 4,056 B B 12,840
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 1,835,329 113,174 29,133 98,356 95,982 7,909 11,863 2,191,746

Debt securities issued - - 234,304 161,568 1,062,569 4,355,282 2,841,177 1,302,537 9,957,437

Other financial liabilities 21,379 7,428 2,307 162,693 8,515 4,239 6,206 137 212,904

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 21,5618 1,975,062 413,871 533,798 1,355,428 6,664,981 2874448 1335112 15,174,218

Net position 101,797 (1,503,620) 684,425 283,729 511,110 (666,276) 970,014 3,081,361 3,462,540

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow - - 51 (47) 166 986 1,107 1,234 3,497
Derivatives settled on a gross
basis:
Total inflow - - 283,074 198,065 750,844 62,720 862 18 1,295,583
Total outflow - - (282237)  (197,601)  (752,063) (66,044) (864) (15)  (1,298,824)
Total derivative cash flows — - 888 417 (1,053) (2,338) 1,105 1,237 256
Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity
date.
Loan commitments 7,847 13,875 126,226 183,674 330,096 2,987,820 3,649,438
Letters of guarantee issued 3,566 839 4,782 35,770 14,603 479 60,039
Bank acceptance 2,943 5,156 10,342 - - - 18,441
Letters of credit issued 1,694 5,237 5774 2,085 - - 14,790

Total 16,050 25,107 147,124 221,429 344,699 2,988,299 3,742,708
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Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10

31 December 2016 month months e years years years Total
Loan commitments 3,014 16,575 80,340 303,371 333,963 2,602,708 3,339,971
Letters of guarantee issued 1,117 498 30,840 33,410 16,146 449 82,460
Bank acceptance 3,230 5,245 12,287 - - - 20,762
Letters of credit issued 2,783 3,831 4,593 2,578 - - 13,785
Total 10,144 26,149 128,060 339,359 350,109 2,603,157 3,456,978

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities Fair value of debt investments denominated in foreign currencies is determined

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market
for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market
data and relies as little as possible on the Group’s specific unobservable inputs.
In other words, the valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all
factors that market participants could consider in setting a price, and are consistent
with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of
derivatives are calculated by applying discounted cash flow method or the Black
Scholes Pricing Model. Fair value of underlying assets of principal-guaranteed
wealth management products and the associated liabilities to investors in relation
to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products are estimated by
discounted cash flow method. Al significant inputs for the fair valuation of these
financial assets and liabilities are observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments
and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash
flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies approach. The fair

value of these financial instruments based on unobservable inputs which may
have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including
credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual
growth rate, liquidity discount and similarity to comparable companies index, etc.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of
principal-guaranteed wealth management products and the associated liabilities
to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products.
Fair value of securities investments denominated in RMB is determined based
upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

31 December 2017

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held-for-trading

- Bonds 913 31,558 - 32,471
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 89,182 - 89,182
- Stock and fund 2,501 313 = 2,814
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
- Equity investments - - 870,988 870,988
- Bonds - 72,734 - 72,734
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 19,640 - 19,640
- Financial assets held under resale agreements - 19,418 - 19,418
et gl mattons - 26,043 - 26,043
- Asset management plans - 7,417 - 7,417
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 10,323 10,323
Derivative financial assets
- Exchange rate derivatives - 30,768 - 30,768
- Interest rate derivatives - 7119 - 7,119
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Bonds 28,667 179,058 3,462 211,187
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 301,053 - 301,053
- Fund investments = 77 = 77
- Equity investments 4,522 396 4,521 9,439
Total 36,603 785,416 889,294 1,711,313
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Wealth management products with principal guaranteed - (164,959) - (164,959)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (27,239) - (27,239)
— Interest rate derivatives - (6,256) - (6,256)
Total - (198,454) - (198,454)
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31 December 2016

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held-for-trading

- Bonds 4,928 55,500 - 60,428
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 63,107 - 63,107
- Stock and fund 3,534 - - 3,534

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

— Equity investments - - 910,392 910,392
- Bonds - 20,479 - 20,479
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 48,355 - 48,355
- Financial assets held under resale agreements - 19,579 - 19,579
ber nanal s - 40,365 : 40,365
— Asset management plans - 3,291 - 3,291
— Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 6,238 6,238
Derivative financial assets
- Exchange rate derivatives - 16,670 - 16,670
— Interest rate derivatives - 8,816 - 8,816
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Bonds 2,012 188,650 - 190,662
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 419,259 - 419,259
- Fund investments - 200 - 200
- Equity investments 4,786 2,019 9,159 15,964
Total 15,260 886,290 925,789 1,827,339
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Wealth management products with principal guaranteed - (128,917) - (128,917)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (23,983) - (23,983)
- Interest rate derivatives - (8,167) - (8,167)
Total - (161,067) - (161,067)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

1 January 2017 916,630 9,159 925,789
Sales (18,158) (109) (18,267)
Additions 39,260 3,070 42,330
Settlements (49,104) - (49,104)
Transfer out from Level 3 (633) = (633)
Total gains/(losses) recognized in

- Profit or loss (6,139) = (6,139)

- Other comprehensive income (545) (4,137) (4,682)
31 December 2017 881,311 7,983 889,294

Change in unrealized (losses)/gains for the year for
assets/liabilities held at 31 December 2017 recognized in

— Profit or loss 2,499 - 2,499

- Other comprehensive income (545) (4,137) (4,682)
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Financial assets

1 January 2016 501,764 14,976 516,740
Sales (18,770) - (18,770)
Additions 437,331 75 437,406
Settlements - - -

Total gains/(losses) recognized in

— Profit or loss (2,834) (42) (2,876)
- Other comprehensive income (861) (5,850) (6,711)
31 December 2016 916,630 9,159 925,789

Change in unrealized gains/(losses) for the year for
assets/liabilities held at 31 December 2016 recognized in

— Profit or loss 1,200 (42) 1,158

— Other comprehensive income (861) (5,850) (6,711)

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate
the fair value.

(i) Held-to-maturity investments and debt instruments classified as receivables

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using bid market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take into
consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rates which are based on PBOC's established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities. For impaired loans, fair value
is estimated by discounting the future cash flows, which they are expected to be recovered.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
(v) Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2017

Debt securities issued 8,446,592 8,174,343

As at 31 December 2016

Debt securities issued 7,898,521 7,969,603

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
- to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and
- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the management in accordance with the guidelines established
by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with
the CBRC.
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